
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Democratic Services/ 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Mawrth, 5 Medi 2023 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod Pwyllgor Craffu Testun 1 Hybrid yn Siambr y Cyngor - Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd 
yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, CF31 4WB ar Dydd Llun, 11 Medi 2023 am 11:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 

2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    
 Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiant personol a rhagfarnus (os oes rhai) gan 

Aelodau/Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau’r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd 
gan y Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008 (gan gynnwys datganiadau chwipio) 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 10 

 Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod 13 03 23 i’w cymeradwyo 
 

4.  Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid a Chynllun Gweithredol   11 - 80 

 Gwahoddwyr: 
 
Cynghorydd Jon-Paul Blundell – Aelod Cabinet Addysg 
 
Lindsay Harvey - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Nicola Echanis - Pennaeth Addysg a Chefnogaeth i Deuluoedd 
Mark Lewis - Rheolwr Grŵp Cymorth i Deuluoedd 
Christa Bonham-Griffiths – Rheolwr Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid 
Owen Shepherd - Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Cymorth Ieuenctid 
Kevin Reeves – Rheolwr Gweithredol, Gwasanaethau Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid 
Catherine Evans - Rheolwr Gweithredol, Gwasanaethau Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


5.  Casgliadau ac Argymhellion  
 

 

6.  Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith  
 

81 - 114 

7.  Materion Brys    

 Ystyried unrhyw eitem(au) o fusnes y mae hysbysiad wedi’i roi ynddynt 
yn unol â Rhan 4 (paragraff 4) o Reolau Gweithdrefn y Cyngor ac y mae’r sawl sy’n 
llywyddu’r cyfarfod o’r farn y dylai, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig, gael ei drafod yn y 
cyfarfod fel mater o frys. 
 

Nodyn:  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod Hybrid a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy Siambr y 
Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft. 
Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes gennych unrhyw 
gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643148 / 
643694 / 643513 / .643696 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
RJ Collins 
M J Evans 
H Griffiths 
D M Hughes 

M Jones 
J Llewellyn-Hopkins 
I M Spiller 
T Thomas 

JH Tildesley MBE 
A Williams 
AJ Williams 
E D Winstanley 



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 13 MAWRTH 2023 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 A GYNHALIWYD YN SIAMBR 
Y CYNGOR, SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PENYBONT AR OGWR CF31 
4WB DYDD LLUN, 13 MAWRTH 2023, AM 11:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd A Williams – Cadeirydd  

 
RJ Collins M J Evans H Griffiths D T Harrison 
M Jones J Llewellyn-Hopkins AJ Williams E D Winstanley 

 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
E Richards a/ac T Thomas 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Lucy Beard Swyddog Craffu 
Nicola Echanis Pennaeth Addysg a Chymorth Cynnar 
Lindsay Harvey Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
Rachel Keepins Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Meryl Lawrence Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Craffu 
Jessica Mclellan Swyddog Craffu 
Susan Roberts Rheolwr Grŵp Gwella Ysgolion 

 
10. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Y Cynghorydd Johanna Llewellyn-Hopkins, Y Cynghorydd Ellie Richards a’r Cynghorydd 
Tim Thomas.  
 
Cynrychiolydd Cofrestredig 
Lyndsey Morris, Pennaeth Ysgol Iau Llangewydd   
 

11. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU 
 
Fe wnaeth y canlynol ddatgan buddiant personol: 
 
Y Parch Ganon Edward Evans fel Llywodraethwr Cymunedol yn Ysgol Gyfun Bryntirion;  
Y Cynghorydd Melanie Evans fel Llywodraethwr Cymunedol yn Ysgol Gyfun Pencoed ac 
Ysgol Gynradd Croesty; 
Y Cynghorydd Richard Collins fel Llywodraethwr Cymunedol yn Ysgolion Cynradd y 
Santes Fair a Sant Padrig;  
Y Cynghorydd Martyn Jones fel Cadeirydd Bwrdd Gweithredol Dros Dro Ysgol Gynradd 
Cwm Ogwr; a’r  
Cynghorydd Alex Williams gan fod ei bartner yn athrawes mewn ysgol yn gweithredu 
peilot Cwricwlwm Cymru mewn awdurdod lleol arall.   
   

12. ADRODDIAD CRAFFU AWDURDOD LLEOL BLYNYDDOL CONSORTIWM 
CANOLBARTH Y DE 2021-22 
 
Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol ar gyfer Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd y 
Cynrychiolwyr o Gonsortiwm Canolbarth y De (CSC) a chyflwynodd Rheolwr 
Gyfarwyddwr CSC yr adroddiad, a'i bwrpas oedd rhoi trosolwg ar waith CSC a rhoi’r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Aelodau am y cyfraniad yr oedd CSC yn ei wneud, gan 
weithio mewn partneriaeth â'r awdurdod lleol, i godi safonau mewn ysgolion ar draws 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 13 MAWRTH 2023 

 
 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd 
a Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr CSC a bu’r Aelodau’n trafod y canlynol: 
 

 Y fformiwla ar gyfer y cyfraniad blynyddol oedd yn cael ei wneud i CSC, y 

defnyddio o gronfeydd a sut yr oedd yr awdurdod yn mesur canlyniadau 

pendant mewn perthynas â'r buddsoddiad refeniw.  

 Digonolrwydd cefnogaeth gan CSC o ystyried y gostyngiad mewn cyllid ac 

arbedion effeithlonrwydd yng nghyllidebau ysgolion, effaith llai o gyllid ar 

bartneriaid gwella CSC o fewn Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a thargedu 

blaenoriaethau awdurdodau lleol unigol i leihau effaith unrhyw 

newidiadau.    

 Systemau i olrhain a dadansoddi perfformiad disgyblion er mwyn sicrhau 

bod ysgolion yn gwella, a oedd ysgolion yn ddigon tryloyw drwy 

hunanasesu, a data cyson arall o brofion a gynhaliwyd, yn unol â'r 

fframwaith asesu yr oeddent yn ei ddatblygu i gyd-fynd â'r cwricwlwm i 

Gymru.  

 Ffynonellau cyllid cydweithredu/clystyrau ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr, gan 

gynnwys cyllid grant a grantiau dysgu proffesiynol sy'n mynd i mewn i 

CSC, a roddir i ysgolion yn lwmp swm i'w ddefnyddio'n ystyrlon ar unrhyw 

fath o gydweithrediad.  

 Themâu allan o werthusiadau canol blwyddyn a diwedd blwyddyn a 

gyflwynwyd gan y 9 clwstwr, yn cadarnhau system o hunan-wella a'r 

clwstwr yn cytuno ynghylch yr hyn yr hoffai ganolbwyntio arno, e.e. asesu 

a dilyniant gyda dull cyson yn unol â'r cwricwlwm ar gyfer Cymru.  

 Rhesymau pam yr ystyriwyd bod 16% o glystyrau yn aneffeithiol, pryderon 

nad oedd pob ysgol yn cymryd rhan yng nghefnogaeth CSC a dysgu 

proffesiynol a rôl y Grŵp Gwella Ysgolion wrth bennu blaenoriaethau 

strategol mewn ysgolion penodol.  

 Partneriaid Gwella sy'n gweithio gydag ysgolion i integreiddio 

argymhellion allan o arolygiadau Estyn i'w cynlluniau datblygu ysgolion a'r 

posibilrwydd y bydd Estyn yn cynyddu rheoleidd-dra eu harolygiadau. 

 Nid yw Ysgol yr Archesgob McGrath bellach yn cael ei hadolygu gan 

Estyn ar ôl gwneud cynnydd priodol yn erbyn pob argymhelliad a wnaed 

yn yr arolygiad gwreiddiol.  

 Rhoddodd cynrychiolwyr yr ysgolion yr adborth canlynol am yr agweddau 

allweddol o'u profiad o weithredu a pharhau i gyflwyno'r cwricwlwm 

newydd ar gyfer Cymru; 

- Y dysgwyr a llais dysgwyr wrth wraidd yr hyn y maent yn ei wneud. 

- Pwysigrwydd sefydlu’r pedwar pwrpas yng nghyfnod allweddol 5, cyn 

eu bod yn orfodol 

- Ymreolaeth staff i benderfynu ar y dulliau gweithredu gorau ynghyd ag 

addysgeg addysgu a dysgu 

- Sicrhau bod llythrennedd, rhifedd a chymhwysedd digidol yn rhan 

annatod o wersi 

- Rhannu ymarfer ag ysgolion eraill.  

- Gwella mewn canlyniadau meddal - meddwl, datrys problemau, sgiliau 

llythrennedd a rhifedd 

Page 4



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 13 MAWRTH 2023 

 

- Cyfraddau presenoldeb yn uwch na'r flwyddyn flaenorol  

a rhai heriau, yn cynnwys: 

- Y Model yn gwrthdaro yn erbyn strwythurau mewn mannau eraill yn yr 

ysgol 

- Adeiladau ysgol ddim yn addas i’r diben o ran dull arloesol 

 Canlyniad astudiaeth achos Ysgol Gynradd Corneli ar ymwybyddiaeth 

ariannol.   

 Meysydd ffocws / blaenoriaeth allweddol i ysgolion: 

- Llythrennedd   

- Gweithredu a Mireinio'r Cwricwlwm ar gyfer Cymru 

- Y fframwaith asesu y cytunwyd arno gan gyrff llywodraethu fel rhan o 

fabwysiadu'r cwricwlwm i Gymru 

- Datblygu prosesau hunanarfarnu effeithiol i sicrhau eu bod yn cael 

effaith ar addysgu a dysgu 

- Rhwydweithiau a dderbyniodd gyllid o £30,000 ychwanegol i gynllunio 

a hwyluso dysgu proffesiynol er mwyn cwrdd ag anghenion yr ysgolion  

- Ysgolion Cyfrwng Cymraeg ac Arbennig   

 Y lefelau isaf o gefnogaeth a mesurau i sicrhau bod cefnogaeth yn cael ei 

rhoi a bod ysgolion a Phartneriaid Gwella yn cyfranogi’n effeithiol yn unol 

â'r Rhwydwaith Gwella Ysgolion.   

 Gwybodaeth am y gefnogaeth a ddarperir i'r ddwy ysgol na chawsant 

gefnogaeth bwrpasol a'r gefnogaeth pwnc-benodol a ddarparwyd gan 

CSC.  

 Sefydlu Tîm Cymorth Grŵp Bregus a’i rolau allweddol, gan gynnwys 

cynnal archwiliadau diogelu gan ddefnyddio'r Offeryn Archwilio Diogelu a 

gymeradwywyd gan Estyn.   

 CSC yn gweithio ar arweinyddiaeth a diogelu drwy wneud y canlynol: 

- Cynyddu lefel yr hyfforddiant diogelu i staff; 

- Datblygu strwythurau llywodraethu mewnol; 

- Symleiddio'r ffordd yr oeddent yn gwneud cynlluniau busnes er mwyn 

rhyddhau capasiti; 

- Parhau â'r bartneriaeth waith dda rhwng Cyfarwyddiaethau Addysg a 

Chymorth i Deuluoedd a'r Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles, er 

mwyn sicrhau bod pwysau a llwyddiannau yn cael eu rhannu a gwersi 

a ddysgwyd; 

- Darparu gweledigaeth glir a chodi cyrhaeddiad pobl iau ddifreintiedig a 

sicrhau'r gefnogaeth fwyaf posibl ar gyfer prydau ysgol am ddim drwy 

gynllun peilot y cymerodd Coleg Cymunedol y Dderwen ran ynddo; 

- Datblygu proffiliau un dudalen, pecynnau cymorth ar gyfer addysgu a 

dysgu a pholisïau ysgolion cyfan; ac  

- Olrhain llythrennedd, rhifedd a chyfranogiad. 

 Cyllid Grant Datblygu Disgyblion a'r effaith ar gyllid os nad oedd disgyblion 

cymwys yn hawlio’r prydau ysgol am ddim yr oedd ganddynt hawl iddynt.   

 Diweddariad ynghylch yr 11 blaenoriaeth a’r cynnydd a wnaed gan 

ysgolion nad oeddent ar y trywydd iawn yn ystod cyfnod adrodd 2021-22 a 

diwedd y flwyddyn academaidd. 

Page 5



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 13 MAWRTH 2023 

 

 Y cryfderau niferus y dylid llongyfarch y Gyfarwyddiaeth a'r Ysgolion 

arnynt a meysydd sydd angen eu datblygu ymhellach.  

 Yr adborth gan awdurdodau lleol eraill ac a roddwyd ystyriaeth i ailsefydlu 

Cyd-bwyllgor Craffu neu beidio i ychwanegu gwerth o bosibl at gynllun 

busnes drafft 2023-24 CSC. 

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd cwestiynau pellach i'r Gwahoddedigion, 

diolchodd i'r Gwahoddedigion am fod yn bresennol a dywedodd, os nad oedd eu 

hangen ar gyfer yr eitem nesaf, eu bod yn rhydd i adael y cyfarfod.  

PENDERFYNWYD:   Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaethau manwl gyda Swyddogion ac 
Aelodau’r Cabinet, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr Argymhellion a ganlyn:  

 

1. Tynnodd y pwyllgor sylw, er ei bod yn ddefnyddiol adolygu adroddiad 
blynyddol 2021-2022, y byddai'r cyd-destun wedi newid rhywfaint yn 
ystod y flwyddyn ddiwethaf. Gan fod gwerth ystyriaeth y Pwyllgor yn 
gorwedd mewn craffu ar y sefyllfa fel yr oedd ar y pryd, argymhellwyd y 
dylid rhoi cyfle i’r Pwyllgor graffu ar Gynllun Busnes Drafft Consortiwm 
Canolbarth y De 2023-2024 cyn i benderfyniadau gael eu gwneud.  

 
2. Cydnabu aelodau fod Consortiwm Canolbarth y De yn cyflawni 

agweddau ar wasanaethau gwella ysgolion: herio a chefnogi ar ran y 
pum awdurdod lleol, sy'n cael ei lywodraethu drwy Gyd-bwyllgor 
Aelodau'r Cabinet o bob Awdurdod. Yn hanesyddol, fodd bynnag, 
buasai Gweithgor Craffu anffurfiol ar y cyd rhwng y pum awdurdod hyn 
nad oedd yn bodoli mwyach yn anffodus. Felly argymhellodd y 
Pwyllgor y dylai'r adran Graffu archwilio'r posibilrwydd o ailsefydlu rhyw 
fath o Graffu ar y cyd i ystyried materion strategol cyfannol lefel uchel 
sy'n ymwneud â Chonsortiwm Canolbarth y De a nodi blaenoriaethau 
awdurdod lleol unigol.  

 

a gofynnodd y Pwyllgor: 
 

3. am ddadansoddiad manwl o’r cyfraniadau cyllido craidd a ddyrannwyd 
i'r gwahanol swyddogaethau a restrwyd ar dudalen 41 o'r adroddiad a 
beth oedd cyfraniad Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ar 
bob un.  

 
4. Roedd cydweithrediadau dysgu proffesiynol yn cynnwys naw clwstwr 

ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr oedd i gyd yn cyflwyno gwerthusiad canol 
blwyddyn a diwedd y flwyddyn. Gofynnodd yr aelodau am fanylion pa 
themâu oedd wedi codi o adroddiadau gwerthuso canol a diwedd 
blwyddyn y clystyrau hynny.  

 
5. Ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr, yn hydref 2022, archwiliwyd pedair ysgol 

gan Estyn a gofynnwyd i Ysgol Gynradd Corneli gynhyrchu ‘Astudiaeth 
Achos Ymarfer Diddorol neu Arloesol’ oedd ar waith yn yr ysgol oedd 
yn datblygu dealltwriaeth disgyblion o ymwybyddiaeth ariannol. 
Gofynnodd yr aelodau am i'r astudiaeth achos hon gael ei chylchredeg 
ymhlith y Pwyllgor.  

 

Page 6



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 13 MAWRTH 2023 

 

6. Yn ystod 2021-22, darparodd Consortiwm Canolbarth y De gefnogaeth 
bwrpasol yn dilyn 155 o geisiadau gan ysgolion yn y rhanbarth. Roedd 
y rhain yn cynnwys 20 ar gyfer ysgolion Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr; roedd 18 
a ddarparwyd gan Gwricwlwm Consortiwm Canolbarth y De  a’r tîm 
Dysgu Proffesiynol yn gysylltiedig â'r cwricwlwm. Gofynnodd y pwyllgor 
am fanylion am yr hyn a ddarparwyd yn bwrpasol i'r ddwy ysgol arall 
ym Mhen-y-bont ar Ogwr nad oedd yn ymwneud â'r cwricwlwm.  

 
7. Roedd diogelu wedi cael ei nodi fel rhan o'r blaenoriaethau strategol 

blaenorol yn y Gyfarwyddiaeth ac o ganlyniad cafwyd Tîm Ymgysylltu 
ag Addysg, a'i rôl allweddol oedd ymgymryd ag ystod o archwiliadau 
diogelu gydag ysgolion gan ddefnyddio'r offeryn archwilio diogelu 
ysgolion cymeradwy. Cynigiodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Chymorth i 
Deuluoedd grynodeb ysgrifenedig o'r archwiliadau diogelu a 
gynhaliwyd gan y Tîm Ymgysylltu ag Addysg i'w gylchredeg i aelodau. 

 
8. Roedd y Pwyllgor yn ymwybodol mai'r adroddiad dan sylw oedd yr 

adroddiad blynyddol o 2021-22 ac felly gofynnodd am ymateb 
ysgrifenedig ar feysydd oedd wedi gwneud cynnydd penodol, ynghyd â 
meysydd a allai fod angen sylw yn ysgolion yr ardal sirol, ers y cyfnod 
adrodd. Roedd ganddynt ddiddordeb hefyd i ddeall sut yr oedd yr 
Awdurdod yn cymharu ag Awdurdodau Lleol eraill yn y rhanbarth a'r 
hyn y gellid ei ddysgu oddi wrth arfer gorau.   

 
9. Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i ddatblygu gyda Chonsortiwm Canolbarth y De y 

cyfle i fonitro a derbyn diweddariadau ar amrywiol feysydd o fewn eu 
cylch gwaith, gan nodi'r rhai isod i ddechrau, i allu craffu'n llawn ar 
anghenion ac effeithiolrwydd y gwasanaeth a'r gefnogaeth i ysgolion:  

 
- Tegwch, dysgwyr agored i niwed a grantiau  

- Diogelu  

Cymorth i Lywodraethwyr 
 

13. FFRAMWAITH NEWYDD AR GYFER GWERTHUSO, GWELLA AC ATEBOLRWYDD I 
GEFNOGI'R CWRICWLWM AR GYFER CYMRU 
 
Cyflwynodd Rheolwr y Grŵp, Cymorth i Ysgolion, yr adroddiad, a'i bwrpas oedd rhoi’r 
wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Aelodau am y ‘Canllaw Gwella Ysgolion: Fframwaith ar gyfer 
Gwerthuso, Gwella ac Atebolrwydd’ (Llywodraeth Cymru, 2021) a’r goblygiadau i’r 
awdurdod lleol a phrosesau a systemau Rhanbarthol. 

 
Diolchodd y Cadeirydd i Reolwr y Grŵp, Cymorth i Ysgolion, a bu’r Aelodau’n trafod y 
canlynol: 
  

 Mae tystiolaeth hunanarfarnu yn cael ei defnyddio i ganolbwyntio ar 
welliannau ysgolion a chynnydd dysgwyr unigol, yn symud i ffwrdd oddi 
wrth y mesurau cul, gan ganolbwyntio ar gynnydd yn hytrach na 
chyrhaeddiad, sy'n golygu bod y data, yr oedd yr ysgolion yn ei ddefnyddio 
eu hunain yn canolbwyntio ar ba gynnydd a wnaeth y plant ers dechrau'r 
ysgol neu'r flwyddyn.  

Page 7



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 13 MAWRTH 2023 

 

 Mae ysgolion yn cyhoeddi crynodeb o'u cwricwlwm ar wefan yr ysgol 
ynghyd â'u cynllun datblygu ysgol i rieni / darpar rieni gael ei weld. Symud 
i ffwrdd oddi wrth set ddata gul ac edrych ar y cwricwlwm y bydd y plant yn 
ei dderbyn, blaenoriaethau strategol yr ysgol yn seiliedig ar 
hunanarfarniad yr ysgol a sut maent yn diwallu anghenion y dysgwyr 
bregus hynny.  

 Hyfforddiant a ddarperir ar gyfer Cyrff Llywodraethu ysgolion:  

- Hyfforddiant Sefydlu Llywodraethwyr Newydd; 

- Hyfforddiant Sefydlu Cadeirydd; 

- Hyfforddi fel rhan o'r rôl; 

- Sesiynau cwestiwn ac ateb ar y Cwricwlwm ar gyfer Cymru;  

- Rhannu profiadau o arolygiadau Estyn;  

- Cyflwyniad i'r Pecyn Cymorth Hunanwerthuso; 

- Lles. 

 Gohiriwyd cefnogaeth tymor byr i Gyrff Llywodraethu ac nid oedd 

Partneriaid Gwella eto wedi mynychu cyfarfodydd corff llywodraethu i 

gefnogi'r broses honno. Byddai'n mynd ymlaen yn barhaus ac wedi cael ei 

ddatblygu'n llawn yn ystod y misoedd nesaf.  

 Cyfrifoldeb ysgolion oedd gweithio ar sicrhau bod pob swydd wag 

Llywodraethwr Ysgol wedi cael ei llenwi. Awgrymwyd gan Aelodau y gallai 

rhestr o swyddi heb eu llenwi gael ei rhannu â Chynghorau Tref a 

Chymuned lleol.  

 Cefnogaeth ychwanegol i ysgolion wrthi’n cael ei benderfynu; roedd y 

Fframwaith Gwella Ysgolion yn datgan y byddai ysgolion fel rhan o'u 

cynllun datblygu yn nodi o ble roeddent yn derbyn cefnogaeth, p'un a 

oedd hynny gan ddarparwr allanol, CSC neu gefnogaeth bwrpasol. Yna 

câi unrhyw gefnogaeth ychwanegol ei thrafod gyda'r Partneriaid Gwella fel 

rhan o'u cyfarfodydd yn nhymor yr hydref. 

 Roedd y cyllid ar gyfer Cymdeithas Llywodraethwyr Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 

wedi cael ei ddileu ac er na châi ei gydlynu’n uniongyrchol gan yr 

Awdurdod Lleol wrth symud ymlaen, gallai’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol 

Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd a Swyddogion fod yn bresennol i 

gynrychioli’r Awdurdod a rhoi mewnbwn pe bai angen.  

 Sicrhau y ceid ymatebion i bob Argymhelliad Craffu.  

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd fod Aelodau’r Pwyllgor oedd yn dymuno gofyn 

cwestiynau i gyd wedi siarad ac felly, gan nad oedd cwestiynau pellach i’r 

Gwahoddedigion, diolchodd iddynt am eu presenoldeb a dweud eu bod yn rhydd 

i adael y cyfarfod. 

PENDERFYNWYD:   Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaethau manwl gyda Swyddogion ac 

Aelodau’r Cabinet, gwnaeth y Pwyllgor yr Argymhellion a ganlyn:  

10. Gyda Hyfforddiant Llywodraethwyr Ysgolion yn cael ei ddiwygio yn 

unol â'r cwricwlwm newydd, gallai fod yn bosibl bod yna 

Lywodraethwyr nad oeddent wedi derbyn y data newydd a'r 

hyfforddiant sefydlu oedd yn ofynnol. Felly argymhellodd y Pwyllgor fod 

hyfforddiant ar gyfer Llywodraethwyr Ysgolion presennol yn cael ei 

gynnig ac iddo fod ar gael iddynt cyn gynted â phosibl.    

Page 8



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 13 MAWRTH 2023 

 

11. Mynegodd yr Aelodau bryder ynghylch nifer y swyddi gwag cyfredol ar 

gyrff llywodraethu ysgolion yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol a'r effaith y gallai hyn 

ei chael ar fonitro perfformiad ysgol yn effeithiol a gyrru gwelliant 

ymlaen. Felly argymhellodd y Pwyllgor y dylid llunio rhestr o'r swyddi 

oedd yn weddill i fod ar gael i Gynghorau Tref a Chymuned lleol iddynt 

ei chylchredeg ymhlith eu Haelodau eu hunain ac o fewn eu 

cymunedau i gynyddu'r dewis o ymgeiswyr o bosibl ar gyfer swyddi’r 

cyrff llywodraethol.  

a gofynnodd y Pwyllgor: 

12. Yn dilyn trafodaeth ac ystyried safbwyntiau’r Penaethiaid a fynegwyd 

yn ystod y cyfarfod, ynghylch tystiolaeth hunanarfarnu a'r defnydd 

ohoni ar gyfer gwella ysgolion a chynnydd dysgwyr unigol, dymunai’r 

aelodau gael gweld y ddogfennaeth ar ddata a chynnydd dysgwyr a 

ddarparwyd gan Estyn. 

13. Gofynnodd yr Aelodau am i’r wybodaeth a gynhyrchwyd gan ysgolion 

a'i chyflwyno i'w Cyrff Llywodraethu, oedd yn darparu trosolwg ar y 

cwricwlwm newydd a chynlluniau'r ysgol, gael ei rhannu gyda'r 

Pwyllgor. 

Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am fanylion pellach am gyfanswm y cyllid cydweithredu o 
£929,392 a ddyrannwyd i ysgolion Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr i gefnogi cyfranogi mewn 
gweithio cydweithredol o fewn a thu hwnt i'w hysgol a sut y gwariwyd y cyllid hwn.  
  

14. DIWEDDARIAD AR Y FLAENRAGLEN WAITH 
 
Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Craffu y Flaenraglen Waith (FWP) yn Atodiad A i'r Pwyllgor ei 

thrafod a'i hystyried, gan ofyn am unrhyw wybodaeth benodol a nodwyd gan y Pwyllgor 

i'w chynnwys yn yr eitemau ar gyfer y ddau gyfarfod nesaf, gan gynnwys y bobl y 

dymunent eu gwahodd i fynychu. Gofynnodd i’r Pwyllgor nodi unrhyw eitemau pellach 

i'w hystyried ar y Flaenraglen Waith gan gofio’r meini prawf dethol ym mharagraff 4.3 a 

gofynnodd i'r Pwyllgor nodi’r Daflen Weithredu Monitro Argymhellion i olrhain ymatebion 

i argymhellion y Pwyllgor a wnaed mewn cyfarfod blaenorol yn Atodiad B a gofynnodd i’r 

Pwyllgor nodi yr adroddid am y Flaenraglen Waith ar gyfer y Pwyllgor a’r Daflen 

Weithredu Monitro Argymhellion yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 

Corfforaethol. 

Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am i'r eitemau canlynol gael eu hystyried i'w hychwanegu at y 

Flaenraglen Flynyddol yn y Cyfarfod Cynllunio Craffu nesaf ar gyfer SOSC 1:  

1. Cludiant o’r cartref i’r ysgol / llwybrau diogel i'r ysgol  

2. Oedi mewn Cynlluniau Cyfalaf - Prydau Ysgol am Ddim Cyffredinol; 

edrych ar ysgolion i weld a ydynt yn barod.  

3. Cyrff Llywodraethu - Cefnogi a Chyllid. Gwahoddiad i'w ymestyn i 

gynrychiolwyr a Chymdeithas y Llywodraethwyr.  

Ni nodwyd eitemau pellach i'w hystyried ar y Flaenraglen Waith gan ystyried y meini 

prawf dewis ym mharagraff 4.3, a gellid ailedrych ar hyn yn y cyfarfod nesaf.  

Nid oedd ceisiadau i gynnwys gwybodaeth benodol yn yr eitem ar gyfer y cyfarfod nesaf.  

PENDERFYNWYD:   1. Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor hefyd am i lwybrau gael eu hystyried gan 

y Pwyllgor Craffu mewn cydweithrediad â'r Gyfarwyddiaeth 

Addysg ar sut i symud ymlaen gyda monitro cynnydd dysgwyr yn 

Page 9



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU TESTUN 1 - DYDD LLUN, 13 MAWRTH 2023 

 
y dyfodol. Gwnaed awgrymiadau gan gynnwys, ond heb fod yn 

gyfyngedig i; sicrwydd ynghylch y cyfeiriad teithio, arolygiadau 

Estyn, ffynonellau gwybodaeth a thystiolaeth sydd eu hangen i 

benderfynu ynghylch cynnydd dysgwyr, gweithgareddau gwella 

a hunanarfarniadau.    

2. Cytunodd y Pwyllgor i fonitro ar ffurf adroddiad 

canlyniadau ynghylch sut mae arweinyddiaeth a diogelu yn cael 

ei archwilio, yn benodol mewn perthynas â'r cydweithredu o 

fewn yr awdurdod rhwng y Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a’r 

Gyfarwyddiaeth Addysg a Lles, yn gweithio'n agos gyda'i gilydd, 

i sicrhau bod ysgolion yn derbyn cefnogaeth arbenigol yn 

amserol.   

Bod y Pwyllgor wedi cymeradwyo'r Flaenraglen Waith yn Atodiad A, yn amodol ar 
gynnwys y ceisiadau uchod, yn nodi’r Daflen Weithredu Monitro  Argymhellion yn 
Atodiad B ac yn nodi yr adroddid am y Flaenraglen Waith, y Daflen Weithredu Monitro  
Argymhellion ac unrhyw ddiweddariadau gan y Pwyllgor yng nghyfarfod nesaf COSC. 
 

15. EITEMAU BRYS 
 
Dim. 
 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 13:57 
 

Page 10



Meeting of:  SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 1 

Date of Meeting:  11 SEPTEMBER 2023 

Report Title:  
BRIDGEND YOUTH JUSTICE SERVICE UPDATE AND 
OPERATIONAL PLAN 

Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

LINDSAY HARVEY 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR EDUCATION AND FAMILY 
SUPPORT 

Responsible Officer:  
CHRISTA BONHAM-GRIFFITHS 
STRATEGIC YOUTH JUSTICE SERVICE MANAGER 

Policy Framework and 
Procedure Rules:  

There is no effect on policy framework or procedure rules. 

 
Executive Summary:  
 

 
This report presents an update on the Youth Justice Service 
progression against the combined recommendations for 
Bridgend Youth Justice Service from His Majesty’s 
Inspectorate of Probation in February 2022 and its Youth 
Justice Annual Plan actions for 2022-2023.  
 
Recommendations and actions covered mental health 
provision, management board membership, Youth Bureau 
format, child exploitation framework, planning and services, 
and quality assurance processes.  
 
Progress to date includes developing mental health provision, 
improving the Youth Bureau, and enhancing trauma-informed 
support.  
 
For 2023-2024, plans include stronger collaboration, 
development of preventative models, compliance with 
performance measures, multi-agency partnership working, 
and the development of the trauma recovery model.  
 

 
1.  Purpose of Report 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the committee with an update on the 

progress made regarding the combined recommendations, actions and 
developments outlined in its Youth Justice Plan for 2022-2023 and the 
priorities identified in the current Bridgend Youth Justice Service (BYJS) 
Youth Justice Annual Plan for 2023-2024 (Appendix A).   

 
2. Background 
 
2.1 BYJS is a statutory multi-agency partnership that has a legal duty to co-

operate to secure appropriate local youth justice services. The service is 
funded from a variety of sources including UK Government, Welsh 
Government and the statutory partners (that is, Bridgend County Borough 
Council (BCBC), South Wales Police, the Probation Service and Cwm Taf 
Morgannwg University Heath Board). 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



2.2 Statutory duties to prevent offending are outlined in criminal justice and civil 
legislation, including the Legal Aid Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders 
Act 2012, the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and Standards for Children in the 
Youth Justice System 2019.  The principle aim of Youth Justice Services in 
England and Wales is to prevent offending and re-offending by children in line 
with the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. Local authorities in Wales also have 
statutory duties to provide preventative services contained in Section 15 of the 
Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014. Local authorities must 
provide services to: 

 

• encourage children not to commit offences; 

• avoid the need for children to be placed in secure accommodation and 
enable children to live their lives as independently as possible; and 

• work with victims of crime in compliance with the Code of Practice for 
Victims to offer restorative services and referral to specialist support 
services where necessary.  The aim of this intervention is to repair harm 
and ensure the needs of victims are met. 

 
3. Current situation/proposal 
 
3.1 The BYJS plan for 2023-2024 is attached at Appendix A. This was developed 

with input from all partners including children and young people. 
 
3.2 The plan is consistent with the relevant priorities contained within the 

Authority’s Corporate Plan for 2023-2028 and the Education and Family 
Support Directorate Strategic Plan for the same period. 

 
3.3 Following His Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation (HMIP) inspection in March 

2019, of the, then, Western Bay Youth Justice and Early Intervention Services 
(WBYJEIS) (which encompassed youth offending services in Swansea, Neath 
Port Talbot, and Bridgend) the service received an 'Inadequate' rating in the 
report ‘An inspection of youth offending services in Western Bay’ 
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprobation/wp-
content/uploads/sites/5/2019/03/Western-Bay-YJS-inspection-report.pdf. This 
assessment prompted a proactive and determined response from BCBC, 
leading to a series of significant structural enhancements aimed at rectifying 
the identified deficiencies. 

 
3.4 In response to the 'Inadequate' rating, BCBC immediately decided to 

disaggregate from Western Bay and established the standalone Bridgend 
Youth Justice Service (BYJS). This enabled BCBC to have full control over 
the improvement journey. A comprehensive reorganisation of the service was 
undertaken. This restructuring enabled the establishment of improved 
management oversight, ensuring a more robust framework for guiding and 
supporting the dedicated staff working with the children within their care. The 
objective was to foster an environment where every staff member is equipped 
with clear directions and substantial support, thereby enhancing the overall 
effectiveness of the service. 

 

Page 12

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprobation/wp-content/uploads/sites/5/2019/03/Western-Bay-YJS-inspection-report.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprobation/wp-content/uploads/sites/5/2019/03/Western-Bay-YJS-inspection-report.pdf


3.5 A noteworthy focus of BYJS's efforts has been the enhancement of the quality 
and analytical depth of assessments conducted. By prioritising this aspect, 
BYJS aims to achieve a holistic understanding of each child's circumstances, 
paying specific attention to identifying and addressing potential risks of harm 
as well as concerns related to safety and overall well-being. This shift in 
approach aligns with the service's commitment to safeguard the interests and 
welfare of the children under their care. 

 
3.6 Recognising the importance of collaboration and synergy within the realm of 

youth justice and early intervention, BYJS has actively forged and fortified 
relationships with partner agencies. This collaborative ethos has been 
instrumental in advancing a shared agenda aimed at augmenting the safety 
and well-being of the children involved, while also contributing to the broader 
welfare of the community at large. 

 
3.7 A further inspection was undertaken in February 2022, and it was recognised 

by HMIP that BYJS was on a journey of improvement as outlined in the report 
entitled ‘An inspection of youth services in Bridgend’ 
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprobation/wp-
content/uploads/sites/5/2022/06/Annex-3-Bridgend-YJS-Inspection-report-
v1.0.pdf. The continued diligent and resolute endeavours of BYJS throughout 
2022-2023, have borne effective results. The trajectory of progress has been 
so promising that the service has been deemed to have made substantial 
improvements, leading to its removal from requiring additional monitoring by 
the Youth Justice Board (YJB). This recognition serves as a testament to the 
commitment and diligence that BYJS has exhibited in its quest to elevate the 
standards of service delivery. 

 
3.8 The service continues to strive to create effective strategies that yield positive 

intervention and outcomes for its stakeholders. 
 
3.9 The service has developed a pathway process for children subject to BYJS 

intervention which is reviewed on a quarterly basis by the BYJS and Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) teams. The CAMHS pathway 
has drastically improved operationally, and there are plans for CAMHS to 
deliver criteria training to the service. However, there has remained 
insufficient CAMHS resource for vulnerable children across the county 
borough. After some negotiation, the service is planning to appoint a specific 
CAMHS officer to be part of the Youth Justice Service which will enable 
immediate referral and advice from CAMHS for children who require service 
involvement, this will be a new post. A CAMHS Youth Justice manager is in 
post appointed to help to problem solve and overcome any blockages or 
issues for children involved with BYJS. 

 
3.10 Additional speech and language support capacity is now in place for 2.5 days 

per week, an increase from one day per week, and a speech and language 
therapist commenced their role in January 2023. An updated service level 
agreement has been signed between the two services. 

 

Page 13

https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprobation/wp-content/uploads/sites/5/2022/06/Annex-3-Bridgend-YJS-Inspection-report-v1.0.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprobation/wp-content/uploads/sites/5/2022/06/Annex-3-Bridgend-YJS-Inspection-report-v1.0.pdf
https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmiprobation/wp-content/uploads/sites/5/2022/06/Annex-3-Bridgend-YJS-Inspection-report-v1.0.pdf


3.11 The BYJS Management Board membership has been reviewed and 
confirmed. The management board has identified a new chair and board 
members, including CAMHS and Forensic Assertive Community Treatment 
Service (FACTS), to ensure all YJS required representation and has 
developed knowledge and understanding of roles and responsibilities between 
members. The frequency of the Board meetings has been reviewed and the 
management board now operates on a bi-monthly basis. All reports prepared 
for the BYJS Management Board include recommendations and actions and 
these are followed up as part of the management board agenda. The team 
and board members have recently met to consult on the Youth Justice plan for 
2023-2024 and have made combined improvement actions to further enhance 
quality and performance of the service.  

 
3.12 The Bureau Panel has now been extended to include multi-agency 

partnership attendance from education, children’s social care, health, 
substance misuse and victim services. The purpose of the Bureau Panel is to 
make out of court decisions in partnership on the most appropriate way to 
deal with lower-level offences where a child has pleaded guilty and 
acknowledges the harm caused by their offence. This process allows the child 
to receive an out-of-court disposal. The multi-agency panel provides a holistic 
approach to decision making for youth bureau interventions within Bridgend. 

 
3.13 BYJS has devised an in-house process called ‘My Voice’, which is being 

utilised across all interventions (paper-based and online). This captures the 
child’s perception of their needs and strengths. It also includes any diversity 
needs and language requirements the child may have. 

 
3.14 BYJS and its partners have proactively implemented development and 

education engagement meetings, with a strong focus on identifying and 
addressing the needs of children who seek their services. These meetings are 
an integral part of their approach to providing comprehensive and holistic 
support to the children they serve. 

 
3.15 The Regional Safeguarding Board has developed a multi-agency forum 

focusing on a strategy and toolkit to address child exploitation issues. BYJS 
has been a pro-active representation on this group, and there is an 
assessment and screening toolkit being utilised by social workers within 
Children’s Social Care and Youth Justice Team staff. Additionally, an 
Exploitation Panel has been set up in partnership with all relevant services 
including BYJS to effectively share intelligence, disrupt exploitative activity 
and create a robust multi agency plan for all children at risk of exploitation 
within the Authority. The exploitation lead for Children’s Social Care meets 
weekly with the Youth Justice Service and any ongoing relevant intelligence is 
shared. 

 
3.16 A quality assurance audit group runs bi-monthly with targeted themes being 

audited to assist improvement of practice with its stakeholders. To date, the 
service has concentrated its efforts on reoffending, violent offending, 
education training and employment, disproportionality and in September 2023 

Page 14



will concentrate the group efforts on auditing national standards for court 
services in line with Youth Justice Board requirements. 

 
3.17 A Resettlement Policy has been developed in conjunction with all relevant 

partners. A resettlement panel is to be convened which will continue to 
monitor and plan for cases in relation to resettlement, transitions and custody. 

 
3.18 Further developments have been made in conjunction with South Wales 

Police. An out-of-court disposal guidance document has been produced. 
BYJS has secured further funding from the Ministry of Justice Turnaround 
Programme to be able to offer restorative street disposal interventions where 
harm can be repaired without the child having to go through a formal police 
process.  

 
3.19 The service also has developed its preventative services which aim to prevent 

children entering the police station and provide earlier intervention to those 
most of risk of criminality or harm related incidents. As part of this work, the 
service holds a multi-agency prevention panel for cases being referred and 
has developed its prevention assessment and planning toolkit. 

 
3.20 Training on trauma-informed approaches has been provided to all staff 

members. The referral process for Enhanced Case Management (ECM) has 
been formalised, and there is a trauma screening process in place for all 
children. This will be further enhanced with the Relationship Building Together 
Project due to commence in September 2023 where this model of practice will 
be developed across the Education and Family Support departments. Links 
have been made with the ECM service for staff with cases going through the 
ECM process, and clinical supervision is in place. This supervision will be 
further extended when the Youth Endowment Project commences in October 
2023. 

 
3.21 Staff development and recognition of positive practice is now integral to the 

service planning. A development morning is held monthly where themed 
practice workshops are delivered. Positive examples of practice have been 
acknowledged as part of the Youth Justice Plan and the service has utilised 
the Butler Trust award scheme to recognise innovative practitioners who have 
produced exemplary work for the service. 

 
3.22 All necessary identified training for 2022-2023 has been delivered to service 

practitioners. 
 
3.23 Regular monthly meetings are in place with all multi-agency partners, so there 

is adequate planning for service area delivery in place. There are many 
positive examples of joined-up planning for those most complex cases to 
ensure the safety and wellbeing of the child are at the centre of the plan. 

 
3.24 The implementation of the recommendations by BYJS reflects its strong 

commitment to achieving positive outcomes for the vulnerable children and 
young people in its care and upholding public safety. By taking proactive steps 

Page 15



to address the areas identified for improvement, BYJS aims to enhance its 
effectiveness and the quality of its services. 

 
3.25 Theme 12 of the Education and Family Support Directorate Strategic Plan 

2023-2026 has an aim to ensure effective youth development and youth 
justice services. It recognises that BYJS has reduced the number of first-time 
entrants into the youth justice system and made significant improvements to 
the service (as reported by regulators). Additionally, there is a recognition that 
we have reduced reoffending rates. BYJS has made significant progress in 
reducing the rate of first-time entrants into the justice system. Comparing the 
current year’s data to the previous year’s figures, there has been a notable 
decrease of 10.7% in the rate of first-time entrants, with the rate dropping from 
136 to 121. This decrease reflects a positive trend in preventing children from 
becoming involved in the justice system for the first time. 

 
3.26 In conclusion, the BYJS Plan for 2023-2024 reflects a comprehensive and 

dedicated approach to addressing the needs of vulnerable children in 
Bridgend. The outlined strategies and initiatives emphasise early intervention, 
collaboration with partner agencies, trauma-informed responses, and a focus 
on the holistic well-being of the children and families served by BYJS.  

 
3.27 By targeting the prevention of offending behaviours, prioritising education and 

individual development, amplifying the voices of children, and fostering strong 
relationships with Children's Social Care and other relevant entities, BYJS aim 
to create a seamless support network that promotes positive outcomes for the 
children. Through continuous training, the integration of trauma recovery 
models, and a commitment to multi-agency cooperation, our service is poised 
to evolve as effective, compassionate, and integrated entities, working in 
tandem to create a safer and more nurturing environment for the children and 
families of Bridgend. 

 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh 

Language) 
 
4.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-

economic Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been 
considered in the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the 
Council must consider the impact of strategic decisions, such as the 
development or the review of policies, strategies, services and functions. It is 
considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts 
as a result of this report. 

 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to 

Corporate Well-being Objectives 
 

5.1 The well-being goals and principles prescribed for within the Well-being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 connect directly to the approach to 
supporting children, young people and their families. The approach is 
consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable 
development principle and more specifically as follows: 

Page 16



 

Long term The approach family support services focuses on meeting 
the needs of a wide range of service beneficiaries including 
children, young people, adults, and families. 
 

Prevention The focus of family support services is upon early 
identification of need and ensuring that there is appropriate 
provision in place to meet individual needs. 
 

Integration The approach to family support services addresses the 
need for a coherent delivery of economic, social, 
environmental, and cultural outcomes. 
 

Collaboration A fundamental principal of the approach to family support 
focuses on improving collaboration and creating a unified 
system. 
 

Involvement Ensuring that children, young people, adults, and families 
are at the heart of the system and that needs are discussed 
in a person-centred way. 

 

6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1  There are no climate change implications resulting from this project. However, 

we are committed to supporting the implementation of the local authority’s 
‘Bridgend 2030 – Net Zero Carbon Strategy’ and Welsh Government’s carbon 
reduction commitments. 

 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications   
 
7.1  BYJS has a commitment to establishing and maintaining effective ties with 

Children’s Social Care and this is evident through their engagement across 
various pivotal areas, including the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH), 
Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA) services, long-term teams, and 
safeguarding leads. Involvement with these services has ensured quality of 
strategy meetings, thereby fostering improved coordination and integrated 
planning for children who are subject to interventions from both BYJS and 
social care. 

 
7.2 In a clear demonstration of their proactive approach to holistic safety planning, 

BYJS staff have participated in the comprehensive Signs of Safety model 
training alongside their counterparts in social care. This synchronicity in 
training equips both teams with a shared framework, vocabulary, and 
methodology, allowing for consistent and coherent safety planning. This 
endeavour reinforces the vital connection between BYJS and Children’s 
Social Care, creating a unified front in safeguarding and nurturing the well-
being of the children they collectively serve. 

 
7.3 BYJS’s continuing involvement with care experienced children provides a 

wider depth of understanding of the unique challenges and needs faced by 

Page 17



these individuals who have traversed the care system. The child’s experience 
in foster care, residential care, or other forms of out-of-home placement 
necessitates a tailored and empathetic approach of support. BYJS recognises 
the imperative of comprehending the intricate tapestry of these care journeys 
to deliver interventions that are sensitive, relevant, and efficacious. The 
trauma model enables robust multi-agency formulation and understanding of 
the child’s needs and strengths, how to avoid re-traumatisation and provide a 
better response to those needs. 

 
7.4 Aligned with this ethos, the YJB Strategic Plan for 2021-2024 underscores 

BYJS’s alignment with a broader vision that seeks to shield children from 
undue criminalisation that stems from their vulnerabilities and the obstacles 
they encounter. This overarching plan provides a commitment to empowering 
children to overcome challenges and thrive in a nurturing environment. 

 
7.5 BYJS’s multi-faceted engagement with Children’s Social Care, their emphasis 

on tailored care for those with unique experiences, and their alignment with 
progressive strategic goals exemplifies an organisation that not only 
recognises the importance of collaboration and understanding but actively 
champions the holistic well-being and development of all children under their 
care. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. The ongoing 

development work is funded through the Youth Justice grant, Welsh 
Government, Police and Crime Commissioner Ministry of Justice Turnaround, 
Youth Endowment funding and Bridgend County Borough Council and partner 
funding.  

 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1 It is recommended that the Committee considers the contents of the report 

and attached 2022-2023 Annual Plan and makes any comments on any 
further areas for development for the service. 

 
Background documents 
 
None  
 
 
 

Page 18



   

 

APPENDIX A 
 

 

 

 

BRIDGEND YOUTH JUSTICE 

SERVICE 

 

YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 2023-2024 
 

Christa Bonham-Griffiths Strategic Manager, Youth Justice Service (YJS)  
 
Chair of Bridgend Youth Justice Service: Lindsay Harvey Corporate Director 
Education and Family Support, Bridgend County Borough Council 
 

 
Together we will support children, children and victims to prevent offending behaviour by listening 
and responding to their voice. We will prevent harm, maintain and develop children and children’s 
health and wellbeing by empowering them to achieve their potential, positive identities and support 

them to fully contribute confidently within and outside their communities. 
 
 

 
 

 
                                
                                      
      

 

 

 

 

 

   Contents 

Page 19



   

 

 
Executive summary   Page 4 

Introduction, vision and strategy  Page 6 

Local context  Page 7 

Child first  Page 8 

Voice of the child  Page 9 

Governance, leadership and partnership arrangements Page 12 

Board development    Page 14 

Progress on previous plan  Page 14 

Resources and services  Page 15 

Performance  Page 20 

National key performance indicators  Page 18 

Children from groups which are over-represented  Page 22 

Prevention  Page 30 

Diversion  Page 31 

Education  Page 32 

Restorative approaches and victims  Page 35 

Serious violence and exploitation  Page 36 

Detention in police custody  Page 37 

Remands  Page 37 

Use of custody  Page 38 

Constructive resettlement  Page 39 

Standards for children in the justice system Page 40 

Workforce development  Page 41 

Evidence-based practice and innovation  Page 42 

Evaluation  Page 46 

Service development  Page 47 

Page 20



   

 

 

Conclusion  Page51 

Looking forward Page 55 

Sign off, submission and approval Page 57 

Appendix 1 - Full board membership   

Appendix 2 – Service structure chart   

Appendix 3 –Service Annual Improvement Plan 2022 - 2023 
 

Annual Improvement 
Plan 2021-2023.docx 

Appendix 4 – Building Skills 
 

Building Skills 
Photos.docx 

Appendix 5 – BAROD substance use statistics  
 

YJS Stats BAROD.xlsx 

Appendix 6 – Speech and Language Report  
 

Speech and Language 
Report 

Appendix 7 – My Voice 
 

My Voice.docx 

Appendix 8 - Trauma Screening Trauma Screening.docx 
 

Appendix 9 – Child and parent self-assessment 
 

Child-Parent Self 
assessment.docx 

Appendix 10 – Feedback from children 
 

Bridgend Youth Justice 
Service Feedback 

Appendix 11 – Performance Framework 31 December 2022 
 

PERFORMANCE 
FRAMEWORK 2022-

2023.docx 

Appendix 12 – Re-offending report September 2022 
 

Re-offending report for 
BMB September 

2022.docx 

Appendix 13 – Bridgend Youth Justice training plan  
 

YJS training plan 
2023.docx 

  

Page 21

https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/ETWxsMlJx0ZKvceSCmRnT1kBRSxfkR4_lGgEugyN6rM9LQ?e=BAWQQb
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/ETWxsMlJx0ZKvceSCmRnT1kBRSxfkR4_lGgEugyN6rM9LQ?e=BAWQQb
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EfMD3GMZLhNOs8dJZpQyfDUBZVzLBJzgj7SS5SBgq6iH3g?e=igJuaB
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EfMD3GMZLhNOs8dJZpQyfDUBZVzLBJzgj7SS5SBgq6iH3g?e=igJuaB
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:x:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EfoBLcgWT3BBvEjg6X4mJW4B7H2ML9s7FH_u6ix3y9LXhw?e=9Ng3Vh
file:///C:/Users/JONESDA4/OneDrive%20-%20Bridgend%20County%20Council/SMT/Reports%202023-2024/SALT%20Quaterly%20Review%20Jan%20Feb%20March.pdf
file:///C:/Users/JONESDA4/OneDrive%20-%20Bridgend%20County%20Council/SMT/Reports%202023-2024/SALT%20Quaterly%20Review%20Jan%20Feb%20March.pdf
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EXdxF1FrRiJErk9W_ij16icB1BFESVO73VsoDWq86BBpcA?e=KwKKqw
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/Efo_lxI3tWRDtWBm8t7VUIkBWKK23sA3qPYq0lLTMPzdZw?e=y8tBHT
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EYIMC4qMsftBlMR0M2mJTxcB-uocsgliEPGqGrYPC60gNA?e=sPOUsl
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EYIMC4qMsftBlMR0M2mJTxcB-uocsgliEPGqGrYPC60gNA?e=sPOUsl
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/ETitzTQzTDRJiLDHsDN1DOEBhVUAXd2urtzLsryl4JcPRA
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/ETitzTQzTDRJiLDHsDN1DOEBhVUAXd2urtzLsryl4JcPRA
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EdLMqOMPovVNuva5emmKxwMBDt_mhlO1htE9g0eb6UHYhw?e=AyCacQ
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EdLMqOMPovVNuva5emmKxwMBDt_mhlO1htE9g0eb6UHYhw?e=AyCacQ
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EdLMqOMPovVNuva5emmKxwMBDt_mhlO1htE9g0eb6UHYhw?e=AyCacQ
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/ESbHdtFXFGhAlLZpVK-oYFMB7VRvSWdpgnabf7neInIDEw?e=vZgY4T
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/ESbHdtFXFGhAlLZpVK-oYFMB7VRvSWdpgnabf7neInIDEw?e=vZgY4T
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/ESbHdtFXFGhAlLZpVK-oYFMB7VRvSWdpgnabf7neInIDEw?e=vZgY4T
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EeVTTmMvZIlMk7df2ryqbkwBKidr9rkZR1z9wPUDtJxqlQ?e=y1PuXH
https://bridgendcountycouncil-my.sharepoint.com/:w:/g/personal/deborah_jones3_bridgend_gov_uk/EeVTTmMvZIlMk7df2ryqbkwBKidr9rkZR1z9wPUDtJxqlQ?e=y1PuXH


   

 

Executive Summary 
 
 
As Chair of the Bridgend Youth Justice Service (BYJS) Management Board, I can confirm that the 
Annual Youth Justice Plan was officially agreed by all Management Board members on 9 June 2023 
after a consultation exercise with Board members and BYJS staff. It was acknowledged by all 
members, that this plan is a comprehensive account of the BYJS developments and actions for the 
forthcoming year, and we look forward to reviewing the progress set against the targets. 
 
Bridgend Youth Justice Service staff have adapted well during the past year and although 
welcoming the return to the usual way in which our business was conducted pre-pandemic, most 
can see the benefits of working in a more flexible way as we move forward.  
 
These improvements included:  
 

• improving accountability and functions of the staffing team. 

• a commitment to embed a trauma informed approach to all areas of our practice. 

• changing the overall structure of the service to provide a stronger focus on implementing 
agreed priorities. 

• creating policies and procedures that reflect good quality youth justice work; and  

• strengthening our partnership approach to working with children, victims and families. 
 
The service has carried out significant development work in respect of the new Youth Justice Board 
(YJB) performance measures introduced from April 2023, although it is acknowledged that further 
work is ongoing and required to ensure all performance indicator measures have effective 
monitoring systems to collate information required in each area. 
 
BYJS systematically demonstrates through its performance framework report, which is presented to 
the management board on a bi-monthly basis, those areas where there is required analysis, 
progress and development. This report also recognises the positive feedback received from 
children, victims and their families. 
 
The challenges and opportunities ahead are clearly identified and the priorities for the service set 
out within this year’s plan. As a service we need to ensure we meet the needs of children, young 
adults, families and victims and to achieve consistently better outcomes in the longer term. 
 
There are multiple opportunities for the year ahead, including: 
 

• further developing the trauma-recovery model (TRM) of practice across the service for 
children and their families who have experienced trauma using a tier-based approach which 
includes relationship-based practice and enhanced case management (This model will be 
aligned to the requirements of the Youth Endowment Fund and Kent University evaluation. 
This model of practice will include partnership alliance with Edge of Care Services, Youth 
Development Services and Early Help Services); 

•  continuing to enhance partnerships that enable effective preventative services for children 
at risk of offending or harm related behaviour. 

• continuing to reduce reoffending rates particularly in relation to violent offending by effective 
quality assurance and analysis to enable learning and development of services. 

• continuing to develop health provision across the service so children are receiving the right 
services at the right time in relation to both generic, emotional/mental health concerns, 
disabilities, neuro development and additional learning needs (ALN). 

Page 22



   

 

•  ensuring safety planning for children is effective, timely and reviewed to ensure change is 
accounted for (This needs to correlate with the Children’s Social Care Signs of Safety 
systems); 

• ensuring children who have ALN receive provision which meets their individual needs and 
enhances their strengths, and they have an individual development plan where required. 

• continuing to learn and development from systems where the voice of the stakeholder is 
considered in a format and language deemed most appropriate for them. The analysis of the 
feedback is crucial in BYJS system’s understanding of the child and family viewpoint, to help 
shape future service development. 

• where children are being diverted from criminality, BYJS will ensure out-of-court disposal 
systems are multi-agency led and reflect the findings and recommendations from the YJB 
consultation report. 

• further developing efficient and effective systems that reflect the revised key performance 
measures for youth justice. 

• ensuring the voice of the victim continues to be heard, they are offered optimum choice in 
terms of restorative services and vulnerable victims receive the offer of further specialist 
support if necessary and to create systems that make ease of access for victims much 
simpler. 

• ensuring the constructive strands of resettlement are evident for those children who are being 
resettled from placement to placement or from custody to community. 

• ensuring the recruitment and retention of community volunteers to support children and 
families subject to youth justice intervention; and 

• ensuring the safety of children being exploited is prioritised and there are formalised multi-
agency systems in place for protection of this vulnerable group. 

 
Lindsay Harvey – Chair, Bridgend Youth Justice Service Management Board 
  

Page 23



   

 

Introduction, vision and strategy 
 
 
BYJS is a statutory multi-agency partnership that has a legal duty to work in partnership to secure 
appropriate local Youth Justice services. The service is funded from a number of sources including 
UK Government, Welsh Government and the statutory partners (that is, Bridgend County Borough 
Council, South Wales Police, the Probation Service and Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Heath 
Board). 
 
Statutory duties to prevent offending are outlined in criminal justice and civil legislation. The principal 
aim of Youth Justice Services in England and Wales is to prevent offending and re-offending by 
children in line with the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. Local authorities in Wales also have statutory 
duties to provide preventative services contained in Section 15 of the Social Services and Wellbeing 
(Wales) Act 2014. Local authorities must provide services to: 
 

• encourage children not to commit offences. 
• avoid the need for children to be placed in secure accommodation; and 
• enable children to live their lives as independently as possible. 

 
Throughout 2022-2023, further structural changes have been undertaken by the service to ensure 
there is adequate management oversight and clear direction of support for staff who work with 
children known to the service. There has been an ongoing emphasis on improving the quality and 
analysis of assessments to ensure risk of harm and safety and wellbeing concerns are identified 
and addressed. The service continues to build strong relationships with partner agencies to promote 
collaboration and improve the safety and wellbeing of the child and others.  
 
BJYS has recently been removed from requiring additional monitoring from the YJB as it was felt 
that the service was making clear improvements. The service continues to work on a number of 
developments outlined from its most recent inspection, and the information within this plan will set 
out the clear direction of the service and how it continues to respond to the requirements set out by 
the YJB, Ministry of Justice and His Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation (HMIP). 
 
 Our vision states: 
 
“Together we will support children, children and victims to prevent offending behaviour by listening 
and responding to their voice. We will prevent harm, maintain and develop children and children’s 
health and wellbeing by empowering them to achieve their potential, positive identities and support 
them to fully contribute confidently within and outside their communities.” 
 
In order to ensure the needs of children in Bridgend are met, it is imperative that BYJS works as a 
fully functioning multi-agency service, ensuring that all elements of support available from within and 
outside of the service are accessed in a timely manner in order to meet the needs of children. 
Additionally, working with local third sector organisations to provide diversionary activities in the 
community is crucial to prevent offending and anti-social behaviour (ASB). Collaboration with 
Bridgend’s Community Safety Partnership and Youth Support Service to address ASB issues and 
to share information that identifies areas in local communities where there is evidence of emerging 
problems, is key in respect of our preventative approach. The Service Manager is a key member of 
the Community Safety Board (CSB) to ensure the strategic approach and plan is inclusive of and 
informed by a Youth Justice perspective. 
 
 
 

Local context  

Page 24



   

 

 
 

BJYS work with children aged 10- to 18-year-old who have been sentenced by a court, or who have 
come to the attention of the police because of their offending behaviour and those who are facing a 
criminal charge and require an out of court disposal through the Youth Bureau. BYJS also works to 
prevent children committing an offence and operates a prevention model of practice where services 
can refer children who are deemed at risk of entering the Youth Justice system. Intervention is 
discussed and agreed at a multi-agency prevention panel to ensure that all services present in a 
child’s life are represented. This will have the added effect of reduced duplication across services.  
 
Since the prevention panel was formed prevention referrals to the service have increased from an 
average of 5.6 referrals per month (January to October 2022) to an average of 10 referrals per 
month (November 2022 to March 2023). In addition, through the Turnaround grant funding the BYJS 
now contact all children that have received a ‘No further action’ outcome from custody, court, those 
release under investigation, on bail cases or who have received a Police Street Restorative 
Disposal. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Bridgend County Borough Council is a local authority in South Wales with a total population of 
147,539. The largest town is Bridgend, followed by Maesteg, Pencoed and the seaside resort of 
Porthcawl. In Bridgend, 49.6 % of the population are male, 50.4% are female, 1.5% are Black, Asian 
or minority ethnic, and 17% are Welsh speakers. 

 
Child First 
 
 

Page 25



   

 

BYJS strives to ensure it takes a ‘child first’ approach to every individual being offered or receiving 
a service. We have further developed the Trauma Recovery Model to ensure we consider the trauma 
a child has experienced. We have introduced a trauma screening tool for every child entering our 
service and have enhanced our assessment, plan and intervention to become more responsive to 
the child’s identified trauma needs. From February 2023, we have completed 37 trauma screenings 
to inform our assessments. We continue to plan to embed the trauma approach in partnership with 
other services to create a consistent method of delivery.  
 
Where deemed appropriate, children are referred to the Enhanced Case Management (ECM). There 
is also an in-house Relationship-Based Practice (RBP) model of practice when capacity is reached 
through the psychologist (ECM) using our own team members who are trained in timelining and 
formulation chairing and who are trauma champions for the service. 
 

Examples 
 
ECM intervention 
 
EW received a Youth Restorative Disposal for a common assault against her mother. EW had risk 
factors that included attempted suicide (five overdoses), is assessed as a victim of emotional abuse 
and there has been evidence of emotional neglect. EW was displaying aggression and was making 
threats against parents. EW had experienced school exclusions for persistent disruptive behaviour. 
 
As part of the Youth Justice Intervention, an Enhanced Case Management formulation was 
convened. This multi-agency meeting included Clinical Psychology, Health, Police, Children’s Social 
Care, FACTS and Education. EW has received intense support from Youth Justice Services (YJS) 
and Edge of Care Services, and her case remains open on a voluntary basis. 
 
Intervention has included responding to her cognitive, social, and emotional ability, safety planning 
via Children’s Social Care, CAMHS intervention and relationship building being the key to building 
trust with the YJS intervention coordinator. 
 
A risk and vulnerability meeting were convened, and this plan was shared with all relevant partners. 
EW has received weekend support from BYJS and Edge of Care Services when she has been at 
her most vulnerable and was experiencing family breakdown and a struggle to find suitable 
accommodation. 
 
EW is currently residing with her father, and this is currently going well. She has been entered to sit 
5 GCSEs. She has a work placement in a hairdressing salon which is going well. She is happier and 
her confidence and self-esteem has improved greatly. She has formed trusting relationships with 
her workers and has not re-offended or had any further aggressive incidents.  
 
We have completed a review of BYJS prevention service currently being offered to ensure that the 
child first and trauma informed approaches that already inform practice are strengthened. 
Additionally, the service has established a BYJS framework for prevention services which includes 
evaluating the success of the prevention work provided to children and their families. 
 
There is ongoing partnership work with the police and the service has introduced a system for those 
being given Restorative Street Disposals and Outcome 21/22. Ministry of Justice Turnaround 
funding for this area of service will enable BYJS to extend this work further. This funding will ensure 
that there are processes and interventions in place to divert children and children from the Youth 
Justice system.  
 
Restorative Street Disposal  

Page 26



   

 

 
A call was received by the police for theft and damage at a property.  
 
Details 
 
The caller stated that whilst she was out of the home, her daughter had a house party with over 50 
people. During this time, a PlayStation was stolen, and damage was caused to a pool table totalling 
approximately £500. CCTV was viewed and all youth concerned were identified by the police.  
 
Outcome  
  
Police spoke to the victims and asked how they would like to proceed and after offering a restorative 
opportunity, the victims agreed to receiving an apology. The Police visited the youths concerned 
and spoke to them about the possible consequences of their actions and explained to the children 
what would happen if they continued to offend using an offending ladder diagram. The youths then 
completed a letter of apology to the victims, which was accepted.  
 
This intervention has prevented the youths coming into the Youth Justice system. We have also 
listened to the views of the victim and enabled a response with which they were satisfied. 
 
The Turnaround service has provided a framework of data reporting which includes restorative street 
disposals, the use of Outcome 21/22, those released under investigation, children released with no 
further action and those on bail or being fined. This data will assist the service understand the current 
use of these disposals and how we can be responsive to the child’s needs.  
 
Voice of the child 
 
 
The service continues to utilise the ASSET Plus self-assessment process to gain the viewpoint of 
the child and their parent/carer in relation to their offending related behaviour.  
 
The service has introduced a “My Voice” system which is an individual interactive questionnaire that 
gains the views from children which can be access via ‘WhatsApp,’ email, or a phone message. 
There is a theme of safety within the questionnaire and further in-depth questions regarding 
education, training and employment, learning styles and whether the individual needs of the child 
are being met. The child also has the option to request to complete the form in the language of their 
choice. We use the Language Line facility to support the required language translation service 
 
To date, 52 My Voice questionnaires have been completed and a further 45 self-assessments. 
These questionnaires have been collated into a formal report for our management board which have 
identified themes and trends of children’s needs and wishes to inform the boards understanding and 
prioritise areas for development. 
 
45 My Voices questionnaires have been completed since February 2023 and an example of the 
findings are: 
 

• 25 (55%) attend school. Of those 25, 16 (64%) did not enjoy school. This information provided 
by individual children will be included in their plans so those individual issues can be 
addressed. 

• 5 (11%) stated they did not have any friends so for those children, BYJS aims to build the 
child’s connections with others via introduction to community activities.22 (48%) stated they 
only sometimes got on with their family. In these cases, ongoing family mediation and 
parental support is necessary to influence a change in family dynamics. 

Page 27



   

 

• 23 (49%) said they would like support with their anger. Individual programmes that meet the 
need of a child will be included on the child’s plan. 

 
Included in the My Voice was a question, ‘Where do you go to feel safe or where is your favourite 
place to go?’  Answers included information such as “my room,” “There’s a river by Newbridge fields, 
I like it there.,” “training at CCYD and Aberkenfig Football Club” These responses can assist the 
service to understand how to promote desistance, create stability and tackle underlying needs. 
 
To further enhance the My Voice initiative, BYJS recognises the importance of providing feedback 
and opportunities for children to express their likes and dislikes in a more interactive and 
personalised manner.  
 
Building on the initial feedback approach, the service has further developed My Voice by providing 
personalised responses to the information shared by the child. Instead of generic comments, staff 
members can craft responses that show genuine interest and understanding. For example, if a child 
expresses their love for football, the response could go beyond acknowledging their interest and 
delve into a conversation about their favourite team, players, or recent matches. This personalised 
feedback helps build rapport, trust, and a sense of connection with the child. 
 
In addition to written feedback, the service will be introducing an audio recording as a method for 
children to express their likes and dislikes. This method provides an alternative channel for 
communication, particularly for children who may find it easier to express themselves verbally. By 
offering the option to audio record, the service allows children to convey their thoughts and feelings 
in a more natural and expressive way. This could be achieved through a dedicated audio recording 
platform or using voice memos. 
 
When children have the opportunity to audio record what they like and dislike, the service can 
respond with reflective comments. Rather than simply acknowledging the child's preferences, staff 
members can listen to the recordings and provide thoughtful responses that show active listening 
and engagement. For example, if a child expresses their dislike for certain activities, the service can 
respond by suggesting alternative options that align with their interests or discussing potential 
solutions to address any concerns they may have. 
 
The feedback received through the My Voice initiative can also inform the development of 
individualised support plans for children. By actively listening to the child's likes, dislikes, and 
preferences, the service can involve them in co-creating their support plans. This collaborative 
approach ensures that the child's voice and choices are respected and incorporated into the 
strategies and interventions implemented to address their needs. 
 
To continuously enhance the effectiveness of My Voice, YJS can regularly review and evaluate the 
feedback system. Soliciting feedback from children on their experience with My Voice and seeking 
their suggestions for improvement can provide valuable insights. The service can also involve 
children in shaping the future development of the initiative, such as through focus groups, surveys, 
or participation in steering committees. 
 
By expanding the feedback system to include personalised responses, audio recording 
opportunities, reflective comments, empowerment, and validation, the service can create a more 
engaging and inclusive experience through the My Voice initiative. This approach not only 
strengthens the relationship between the service and the child but also ensures their active 
involvement in decision-making and planning for their support and well-being. 
The service has representation from a child known to BYJS at the Corporate Parenting Group. This 
child has been able to share their viewpoint in relation to looked after children and service suggest 
benefits or developments needed. 

Page 28



   

 

 
The Speech and Language Therapist (SALT) continues to advocate for children and young people 
and provide support when there are identified speech and language needs. The Royal College of 
Speech and Language Therapists (RCSLT) has identified that up to 60% of young people in justice 
settings have speech, language and communication needs (SLCN). The SALT worker will assess 
speech, language and communication development, this supports case managers better to 
understand the developmental level of each child and communicate information effectively, in a way 
the child understands which ensures full participation in assessments, planning and interventions. 
This enables more effective engagement between worker and child, supporting with positive 
relationship building. As part of a pilot project within the service, every child under the age of 13-
year-old receives a SALT assessment at their transition from primary to secondary education. This 
has been implemented to support early identification of needs and ensure their difficulties are 
addressed as the earliest possible age and do not contribute to offending behaviour.  
 
The Quarterly Outcome document (January to March 2023) from the Speech and Language 
Therapist reported that 14 children were accepted as a referral.  55% (8) of these cases were 
prevention cases, 35% (5) were out-of-court disposals and 10% (1) were children subject to bail 
conditions. The mean age of the children assessed was 14 years old. A further 5 children were seen 
as part of the pilot study. Further information is included as an addendum report. Individual case 
assessment will be used to inform the way case managers provide intervention to children.  
 
The voice of the child has been incorporated within our annual plan to provide examples of feedback 
from children regarding service delivery and relationships with individual workers.  
 
Case example of My Voice incorporated into an intervention plan 
 
We worked diligently with a child who had ALN and had already completed a 'My Voice' exercise to 
express his preferences and needs. Through this process, we learned that he had a keen interest 
in rugby, enjoyed studying science at school, and considered Spain as his safe haven. However, 
due to his limited understanding, engaging with him was proving to be quite challenging. 
 
To ensure that this child's voice was heard and to encourage his active participation, we 
incorporated his preferences into the intervention plan. Firstly, we arranged for his reparation hours 
to involve activities at a local rugby club. This not only allowed him to engage in his favourite sport 
but also provided an opportunity to build connections with peers who shared similar interests. The 
rugby club became a space where he could express himself and feel a sense of belonging. 
Moreover, we recognised the importance of not compromising his education while working with him. 
Therefore, whenever we visited him in school, we made sure he did not miss his science lessons. 
By prioritising his academic development, we aimed to empower him with knowledge and skills, 
which could enhance his overall confidence and engagement. 
 
Understanding that he found comfort in thoughts of Spain, particularly during moments of practical 
anxiety, we incorporated elements of Spain into our interactions. We would show him pictures of 
Spain and encourage him to talk about his experiences and memories from his holidays there. This 
not only provided a source of relaxation but also served as a conversation starter, helping him 
express himself and establish a connection with us. 
 
Utilising the valuable information gathered through the 'My Voice' exercise, we were able to provide 
tailored support to this child, ensuring his well-being and promoting his safeguarding. By informing 
other relevant agencies about his voice, we shared insights into his preferences, needs, and 
interests. This collaborative approach enabled all involved parties to work together effectively, 
considering the child's perspectives and optimising the support provided. 
 

Page 29



   

 

 
The Turnaround service has provided a framework of data reporting which includes restorative street 
disposals, the use of Outcome 21/22, those released under investigation, children released with no 
further action and those on bail or being fined. This data will assist the service understand the current 
use of these disposals and how we can be responsive to the child’s needs.  

 
 

Governance, leadership and partner arrangements 
 
 
The Management Board continues to review the performance of BYJS including levels of first-time 
entrants, rates of re-offending, the use of custody, access to education, training and employment, 
substance use, mental health care, emotional wellbeing issues and accommodation. The new 
performance indicators have now extended this monitoring and oversight to victim services, children 
with additional learning needs, management board attendance, wider partnership engagement and 
serious violence. There is also wider information presented to the board in relation to assessment 
completion, staffing, sickness, supervision of staff, voice of the stakeholder and financial 
considerations. 
 
As Bridgend has a secure establishment within its local authority, there is a partnership in place with 
His Majesty’s Prison (HMP) Youth Offending Institute (YOI) Parc. There is now a Youth Justice staff 
member within HMP YOI Parc and a service level agreement in place with Youth Custody Services. 
The role ensures that children can access support that meets their needs whilst within the secure 
estate but also ensuring relevant local authorities continue to support their children effectively and 
plan appropriately for their return into the community. These roles also ensure there are timely 
safeguarding referrals made when necessary. There are regular meetings in place between the 
Youth Justice lead, the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) for Bridgend County Borough 
Council, Youth Custody Services and HMP Parc. 
 
The Children Unit at HMP and YOI Parc accommodates up to 42 children aged 15 to –18-years- old 
and is set within a much larger adult prison accommodating up to 1,700 category B prisoners. The 
unit nominally serves South Wales and the Southwest of England but, due to operational pressures 
on the secure estate and the necessity to separate certain individuals, there are children on the unit 
from most of the major cities and urban areas in England including London, Manchester and 
Birmingham. 
 
The primary role of the role of the Senior Practitioner is to ensure that all the children in the Children 
Unit that are open to their respective home Children’s Social Care teams continue to receive the 
services that they are entitled, and that they also have an advisory safeguarding role within the 
establishment to ensure that there are timely safeguarding referrals made when necessary. There 
are regular meetings in place between the Youth Justice lead, the LADO for Bridgend County 
Borough Council, Youth Custody Services and HMP Parc.  
 
There are currently 33 children on the unit. Of these 25 are from England with just 8 from South 
Wales. 20 of the children are currently open to their respective home local authorities 10 of whom 
are currently care experienced with a further 5 open as care leavers and 3 open under care and 
support regulations. 
 
BYJS continues to be managed as part of the Education and Family Support Directorate. This allows 
the service to be closely aligned with early help teams, edge of care services, education services 
and Youth Services. The Strategic Manager continues to meet with these services on a monthly 
basis to ensure the children working with BYJS have optimum support in place to meet their 
individual needs.  

Page 30



   

 

 
BYJS has continued to integrate further with Children’s Social Care teams to ensure support for 
vulnerable children is collaborative to address the identified needs. This now involves the Strategic 
Manager’s attendance at regular children’s social care managers meetings and development days 
with staff across Early Help, Children’s Services and BYJS sharing knowledge and experience of 
working with families. This increases awareness, strengthens relationships and ultimately improves 
support for children. There have been combined development days between safeguarding leads 
within Children’s Social Care and Education to ensure appropriate safety planning is in place for all 
relevant children. BYJS Service Manager has recently worked with is currently planning with the 
Children Social Care Exploitation Lead to introduce an exploitation panel for those at risk. This panel 
commenced in May 2023.  
 
BYJS has also continued to make effective links with Children’s Social Care in terms of the multi-
Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH), Information, Advice and Assistance (IAA), long-term teams, and 
safeguarding leads to ensure more effective strategy meetings are held and there is improved joined 
up planning for children subject to intervention from both agencies. BYJS staff have also undertaken 
the Signs of Safety model training alongside social care staff to enable consistent planning around 
safety.  
 
BYJS continue to develop its work within schools and has provided school prevention services such 
as ASB talks, offence education sessions for groups of children covering prevalent issues within the 
individual school environment.  
 
BJYS and police partnership have further developed the multi -agency panel for its decision on the 
out-of-court disposal. There continues to be a regional Cwm Taf Morgannwg Scrutiny Panel led by 
the Police and Crime Commissioner department which quality assures individual diversion cases 
and provides advice and development planning for the out of court disposal system. This includes 
representation from YJS, Police, Crown Prosecution Service, Victim Focus, Police and Crime 
Commissioner department and Court Services. 
 
BJYS has revised the service level agreement (SLA) with Barod and the Strategic Manager now sits 
on the substance use operational board and prevention board.  
 
BYJS Specialist Health worker represents for all cases on trauma screening and trauma formulation.  
 
Children Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) are currently in the process of recruiting a 
link worker to work across Cwm Taf Morgannwg Youth Justice Services.  
 
Forensic Adolescent Community Treatment Service (FACTS) have recently recruited additional 
Assistant Psychologists, a Clinical Psychologist and a Youth Justice Trauma Specialist Lead. 
FACTS are an integral partner in the development of the Trauma Recovery Model funded through 
the Youth Endowment Fund and our trauma model of practice. 
 
BJYS has increased the in-house probation officer’s hours from 1 day per week to 2.5 days per 
week. This was due to the acknowledgement that the provision was not effective and needed to 
increase to meet the needs of the service. 
 
 

Board development  
 
 
BJYS had made the Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board aware of the lack of in-house 
health provision within the service.  Since this time, mental health links have improved significantly. 

Page 31



   

 

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) now have a consistent representation as part 
of the management board and there is a link Youth Justice CAMHS Service Manager in place who 
is assisting to create better links and referral mechanisms into services. Single Point of Access 
(SPOA) links have been created and meetings have been held with managers and staff to improve 
working links. SPOA have attended a YJS team meeting and provided resource links and advice for 
staff when working with individual cases.  
 
The Management Board has developed its membership over the past year in line with inspectorate 
advice and the new KPI. A new chair has been appointed. There has been a development day 
between staff and management board members to consult on the plan for the forthcoming year. 
There is now improved membership from Health and FACTS.  
 
It is crucial that board members and staff members continue to develop positive relationships and 
understand each other’s roles, and how they both influence service improvements. Staff members 
are being invited to Management Boards to discuss themed areas of practice and how the board 
can assist with high-risk cases where there is a necessity. 
 
 

Progress on previous plan  
 
 
To ensure the effective implementation of recommendations from BYJS inspection and the Youth 
Justice Plan, a comprehensive action plan was developed for the 2022-2023 period. This action 
plan aimed to address the identified areas for improvement and ensure continuous progress towards 
the enhancement of services provided by BYJS. The plan has continued to encompass key actions 
and strategies derived from both inspection reports and Youth Justice recommendations. 
 
To maintain accountability and monitor the progress of the action plan, regular reviews were 
conducted by the Management Board on a bi-monthly basis. These reviews served as a platform to 
assess the implementation of actions, identify any potential barriers or challenges, and ensure that 
the necessary steps were being taken to address the recommendations effectively. 
 
In order to ensure quality assurance and facilitate ongoing improvement, BYJS established a 
dedicated staff group specifically focused on quality assurance tasks. This group undertook themed 
audits and evaluations to assess the effectiveness and compliance of various aspects of the service. 
Over the past year, the group has prioritised specific theme areas such as serious violence, child 
plans, education and how we include the voice of the stakeholder. 
 
By conducting targeted audits within these themed areas, the quality assurance staff group has 
been able to delve deeper into specific aspects of the service's operations and identify areas that 
require further attention or improvement. This approach allows for a more comprehensive evaluation 
of the service's performance, ensuring that the identified themes are thoroughly examined, and 
appropriate measures are implemented to address any shortcomings or gaps. By actively monitoring 
progress, identifying areas for enhancement, and taking decisive action, the service remains 
focused on delivering high-quality support and interventions with children. 
 
This approach encourages accountability, transparency, and responsiveness within BYJS. It 
enables the service to adapt to emerging challenges, address evolving needs, and align its practices 
with the ever-changing landscape of Youth Justice. Through the execution of the action plan and 
the evaluation of key areas, BYJS remains committed to delivering effective and impactful services 
to better serve the children and meet the expectations of stakeholders. 
 

Resources and services 

Page 32



   

 

 
  
Below in tables 1, 2 and 3 are breakdowns of financial and staffing information relating to BYJS. 
 
Table 1 – BYJS budget 
 

Agency 
Staffing 
Costs 

Other 
delegated 
funds 

Total 

Youth Justice Board 257334 37680 295014 

Local authority 248379 53821 302200 

Police   9532 73136 

Police and Crime Commissioner 26646 5254 31900 

Probation      0 

Health     0 

Welsh Government 188651 1940 190591 

Other 67010 5400 72410 

Total 788020 113627 965251 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 2 - Staffing of BYJS by contract type as of 31 March 2023 
 

Page 33



   

 

 
 
 
 
 
Table 3 - Staffing of BYJS by gender and ethnicity as of 31 March 2023 
 

 
 
Staffing 
 
BYJS has undergone a substantial change in its staff composition, resulting in a significant turnover. 
One of the notable additions is the appointment of a new Strategic Manager, who brings fresh 
leadership and vision to the team. 
 
Currently, the service comprises a total of 16 permanent staff members, complemented by a 
combination of fixed-term and outsourced staff. This diverse mix of professionals enables the 
service to tap into a wide range of skills and expertise, enhancing its ability to effectively address 
the needs of the young individuals it serves. 
 

Page 34



   

 

Among the dedicated professionals in the team, there is a nurse who specialises in providing 
medical support and care to the children involved with the justice system. This nurse plays a vital 
role in addressing the physical and emotional health needs of the youth, ensuring they receive 
appropriate medical attention and support. Additionally, there is a substance use officer employed 
through Barod who work with children to address their substance use issues at a tier 2 level and 
works to a harm reduction model of practice. 
 
Additionally, the service has a part-time probation officer who works closely with the children to 
manage their rehabilitation and reintegration into the community. The probation officer's role 
involves creating individualised rehabilitation plans, monitoring progress, and connecting the young 
individuals with relevant support services. 
 
To further enhance the holistic approach of BYJS, there is a SALT. This specialist focuses on 
identifying and addressing any communication difficulties or disorders that the children may have. 
By addressing these challenges, the Therapist aims to improve the youths' communication skills, 
facilitating their participation in various aspects of life. 
 
Lastly, the service also benefits from the presence of a police officer, who serves as a liaison 
between the justice service and law enforcement agencies. This individual provides valuable insight 
into legal procedures, contribute to risk assessments, and offer guidance on matters related to police 
involvement in the youth justice system. 
 
With this diverse array of professionals, the service is well-equipped to adopt a holistic approach in 
its work with children. By drawing on the collective expertise of the team, the service aims to address 
the multifaceted needs of the children, considering not only their legal circumstances but also their 
health, communication abilities, and overall well-being. This comprehensive approach increases the 
likelihood of achieving positive outcomes for the children involved, supporting their rehabilitation, 
and reducing the risk of reoffending. 
 
Active offer 
 
BYJS recognises the significance of proactively offering our services in Welsh, without the children 
involved with the service having to specifically request it. A cultural shift has taken place within our 
organisation to remove the burden from the child and place the responsibility on us to provide 
services through the medium of Welsh. Ensuring that our services are child-centred is a fundamental 
aspect of this "Active Offer" approach. 
 
Making an "Active Offer" means refraining from assuming that all Welsh speakers also speak 
English. It entails treating Welsh-speaking children with dignity and respect by actively inquiring 
about their preferred language and taking appropriate action based on their response. 
 
To support this "Active Offer," Bridgend Youth Justice Service has developed various resources. 
One such resource is the child's "My Voice" document, which is available in Welsh text. Additionally, 
for children with ALN, there is an option for the programme to read the document in the language of 
Welsh. These provisions aim to cater to the specific language needs of Welsh-speaking service 
users and ensure inclusivity. 
 
To ensure adherence to the "Active Offer" approach, the Quality Assurance Forum has implemented 
auditing tools. These tools enable the monitoring and evaluation of how effectively the "Active Offer" 
is being implemented and ensure that children are consistently presented with the opportunity to 
access services through the medium of Welsh. 
 

Page 35



   

 

By embracing the "Active Offer" approach, BYJS is committed to providing equitable and accessible 
services to Welsh-speaking children. This proactive stance not only respects the language rights 
and preferences of individuals but also enhances the overall experience of children involved with 
our service. The development of resources and the implementation of quality assurance measures 
further strengthen our commitment to delivering services in a manner that reflects the principles of 
fairness, dignity, and respect. 
  

 
Performance  
 
 
Over the past year, BYJS has faced multiple changes, including the appointment of a new Strategic 
Manager and the integration of several new staff members. These changes have occurred in the 
context of recovering from the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, which has posed additional 
hurdles to delivering quality services. 
 
To navigate these challenges and ensure continuous improvement, the service has implemented a 
performance improvement strategy. This strategy has been shaped by various sources of learning 
and feedback, including the national standard audit, actions carried forward from the previous year's 
plan (2021-2022), internal auditing processes, reviews of practices, the child’s My Voice and 
responses to inspection findings. By drawing insights from these different sources, the service has 
been able to identify areas for growth and refine its approach to service delivery. 
 
Based on the findings and recommendations derived from these learning processes, Bridgend 
Youth Justice Service has developed a comprehensive action plan. This plan outlines specific steps 
to be taken in response to identified areas of improvement. It also aligns these actions with the 
service's priorities and key performance indicators, ensuring a focused and strategic approach to 
enhancing performance. 
 
The subsequent section of the report delves into the service's performance across these identified 
areas. It provides a detailed overview of the progress made, highlighting achievements, challenges 
encountered, and ongoing efforts to address any remaining gaps. By examining performance 
against the defined priorities and key performance indicators, the service aims to provide a 
transparent and comprehensive account of its effectiveness in meeting its objectives. 
 
This performance evaluation process demonstrates the service's commitment to continuous 
learning, growth, and accountability. By actively engaging in self-assessment, incorporating external 
feedback, and aligning actions with strategic priorities, the service strives to deliver high-quality 
services and effectively address the needs of the children it serves. 
 
Bridgend first-time entrants 
 

BYJS has made significant progress in reducing the rate of first-time entrants into the justice system. 
Comparing the current year's data to the previous year's figures, there has been a notable decrease 
of 10.7% in the rate of first-time entrants, with the rate dropping from 136 to 121 children. This 
decrease reflects a positive trend in preventing children from becoming involved in the justice system 
for the first time. 
 
In terms of the actual number of first-time entrants, there has been a decline from 18 to 16 children, 
indicating a reduction of 2 cases. This decrease further emphasises the effective efforts of the 
service in intervening in early intervention and diversion from the justice system. It is also important 
to consider the wider context by comparing the performance of Bridgend against other regions. 
Across South Wales, there has been a 3.3% increase in the rate of first-time entrants, highlighting 

Page 36



   

 

the challenges faced by neighbouring areas. However, in comparison, Bridgend has achieved a 
2.9% reduction in the rate of first-time entrants across Wales as a whole. This indicates that 
Bridgend is performing better in terms of this key performance indicator when compared to other 
regions in Wales. 
 
Furthermore, within the YJS family, there has been a modest reduction of 0.6% in the rate of first-
time entrants. This suggests that Bridgend's efforts have been effective in mitigating the entry of 
children into the justice system compared to the overall performance of the YJS. The decrease in 
the rate of first-time entrants and the reduction in the actual number of cases reflect the service's 
commitment to early intervention, prevention, and diversionary measures. It is a testament to the 
collaborative efforts of the service, community partners, and stakeholders in creating a supportive 
and proactive environment for young individuals. 
 
While there is still work to be done, the performance data indicates that the service is on the right 
track in achieving positive outcomes and reducing the involvement of children in the justice system. 
These results provide a solid foundation for the service to continue its efforts in preventing first-time 
entrants and promoting the overall well-being and success of children in Bridgend community. 
 
Bridgend reoffending  
 
BYJS has achieved a significant reduction in the annual reoffending rate, reflecting the effectiveness 
of its prevention interventions and support programs. Comparing the current year's data to the 
previous year, there has been a substantial decrease of 18.3% in the percentage of individuals who 
reoffended, with the rate dropping from 30.8% to 12.5%. This decrease indicates a noteworthy 
improvement in preventing children from engaging in further criminal activities after their initial 
contact with the service. 
 
Furthermore, when considering the cumulative reoffending rate up to 31 December 2022, Bridgend 
has demonstrated even more progress. The percentage of individuals who reoffended stands at 
38.2%, representing a significant reduction of 14.7% compared to the previous year's rate of 52.9%. 
This achievement highlights the effectiveness of the service's efforts in breaking the cycle of 
reoffending and supporting children to make positive choices. 
 
In comparison to reoffending rates across Wales, South Wales, and the wider YJS family, Bridgend 
has outperformed these regions in terms of reducing reoffending. The greater reduction in 
reoffending rates in Bridgend indicates the service's commitment to implementing effective 
strategies, tailored interventions, and comprehensive support systems for children involved in the 
justice system. 
 
The reduction in the reoffending rate is a testament to the dedication and collaborative efforts of 
BYJS, its staff, and its partner agencies. Through a holistic approach that addresses the underlying 
causes of offending behaviour, promotes rehabilitation, and provides ongoing support, the service 
has successfully steered children towards positive outcomes and reduced the likelihood of 
recidivism. 
 
These encouraging results not only signify the impact of the service's work on individual lives but 
also contribute to the overall safety and well-being of the community. By effectively addressing 
reoffending, the service plays a crucial role in breaking the cycle of crime, promoting rehabilitation, 
and helping children reintegrate into society without future offending. 
  
The following numbers of children from across Bridgend County have received custodial sentences 
in the last three financial years. 

 

Page 37



   

 

 
For two consecutive years, BYJS achieved an outcome with zero custody numbers, indicating 
successful efforts in diverting young individuals away from custodial sentences. However, 
regrettably, there was an exceptional case in the reporting period that resulted in one child being 
placed in custody due to a murder conviction. 
 
As per standard protocol, the details of this case have been shared with the YJB through the serious 
incident notification process. This ensures that the relevant authorities are informed and can provide 
appropriate oversight and guidance. Given the gravity of the situation, a child practice review has 
been conducted for this child. While the custody number for this reporting period deviates from the 
positive trend of previous years, it is essential to acknowledge that the service treats such incidents 
with the utmost seriousness and undertakes a comprehensive review to prevent any reoccurrence. 
By actively engaging in reflective practice and learning from these exceptional cases, the service 
aims to continually improve its practices, interventions, and safeguarding measures to better serve 
the needs children and reduce the likelihood of further serious incidents. 
 
It is important to note that the exceptional nature of this case does not diminish the overall success 
and positive outcomes achieved by the service in diverting young individuals away from custodial 
sentences. The service remains dedicated to its mission of rehabilitation, prevention, and 
reintegration, working diligently to support young individuals in their journey toward positive change 
and a brighter future. 
 
Bridgend suitable accommodation measures over 4 years 2019-2020 to 2022-2023 
 

 
 
 

National KPIs 
 
 
The national key performance indicators have been developed from April 2023 to include a wider 
scope of measures to monitor delivery of services against. The measures have evolved to include 
preventative services and out of court disposals. The measures only previously included statutory 
interventions which through time, have decreased substantially, with them being only a very small 
proportion of the service workload. The revised system allows YJS to be equally as accountable for 
all areas of practice and ensure interventions in these areas, are of optimum quality. Below is an 
explanation of the existing and revised measures and our services commitment to ensuring high 
quality provision that enables strong performance against each indicator.  

Year 

(April to 

March)

Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

2019/20 2 0 2 0 26 1 25 2 28 1 27 2 93%

2020/21 1 0 1 0 14 0 13 1 15 0 14 1 93%

2021/22 2 0 2 0 11 1 12 0 13 1 14 0 100%

2022/23 6 0 6 0 9 1 9 1 15 1 15 1 93%

 Percentage in 

Suitable 

Accommodation at 

End

Age 10-15 Age 16-17+ Overall

Suitable 

Accommodation at 

Start

Suitable 

Accommodation at 

End

Suitable 

Accommodation at 

Start

Suitable 

Accommodation at 

End

Suitable 

Accommodation at 

Start

Suitable 

Accommodation at 

End

Reporting year  
(April to March) 

Number of children receiving a custodial 
sentence 

2019-2020 2 

2020-2021 0 

2021-2022 0 

2022-2023 1 

Page 38



   

 

  
Existing KPIs 
 
Binary reoffending rate 
 
The binary reoffending rate measures the percentage of children who commit another offense within 
a specified timeframe. The service has implemented various interventions and programs aimed at 
reducing reoffending rates among young individuals. Through targeted support, rehabilitation, and 
personalised interventions, the service has been successful in reducing the binary reoffending rate. 
Current data indicates a decrease in the rate compared to previous years, demonstrating the positive 
impact of the service's efforts. 
 
Frequency of reoffending 
 
This indicator measures the average number of offences committed by each child within a given 
period. The service recognises the importance of addressing the underlying causes of reoffending 
and has implemented tailored strategies to reduce the frequency of reoffending among young 
individuals. By providing comprehensive support, mentoring, and skill-building programs, the service 
aims to break the cycle of repeated offences. Current data shows a decline in the frequency of 
reoffending, indicating positive progress in achieving this KPI. 
 
First-time entrants 
 
This indicator focuses on the number of young individuals entering the YJS for the first time. The 
service aims to divert young individuals away from formal criminal justice processes wherever 
possible, utilising restorative approaches, diversion programmes, and early intervention strategies. 
By prioritising prevention and early intervention, the service has successfully reduced the number 
of first-time entrants into the system. The data reveals a decrease in first-time entrants, highlighting 
the effectiveness of the service's preventive measures and community-based interventions. 
 
Use of custody 
 
This indicator measures the extent to which custody is utilised for children. The service recognises 
that custody should be a last resort and aims to promote alternatives to custody, such as community-
based interventions and restorative justice approaches. By providing intensive support, targeted 
interventions, and wraparound services, the service seeks to reduce the reliance on custodial 
sentences. Current data demonstrates a decline in the use of custody, signifying the successful 
implementation of alternative measures to address the needs of children. 
 
Additional KPIs (from April 2023) 
 
The service is aware of the requirement to report on the following new key performance indicators 
from April 2023. While comprehensive data may not be available at this stage, the service has 
developed strategies and plans to address these indicators. These plans are aimed at improving 
outcomes and providing better support for young individuals. The service is actively working on the 
following indicators: 
 
Suitable accommodation 
 
The service recognises the importance of stable and suitable accommodation for successful 
reintegration and rehabilitation of children. Efforts are being made to ensure adequate 
accommodation options are available, considering individual needs and circumstances. The service 

Page 39



   

 

is collaborating with housing providers and support agencies to expand the availability of suitable 
accommodation options and reduce the risk of homelessness among young individuals. 
 
Education, training, and employment 
 
The service acknowledges the crucial role of education, training, and employment in breaking the 
cycle of offending behaviour. Plans are in place to enhance educational opportunities, vocational 
training, and employment support for children. By partnering with educational institutions, training 
providers, and employers, the service aims to improve access to quality education and employment 
opportunities for young individuals. 
 
Additional learning needs 
 
Recognising the diverse needs of children, the service is prioritising the identification and support of 
those with special educational needs, disabilities, and additional learning needs. Collaborative 
efforts with educational professionals and specialised support services are being implemented to 
ensure tailored interventions and appropriate settings are provided to address these specific needs 
effectively. 
 
Mental health care and emotional wellbeing 
 
The service acknowledges the significance of mental health care and emotional wellbeing in the 
rehabilitation process. Plans are underway to strengthen mental health support services, including 
assessments, interventions, and access to appropriate treatment. Collaborative partnerships with 
mental health professionals and organisations are being developed to ensure comprehensive and 
timely support for young individuals in need. 
 
Substance use 
 
The service recognises the link between substance use and offending behaviour. Efforts are being 
made to improve substance use interventions, including prevention programmes, early identification, 
and effective treatment options. Collaborations with substance use services and healthcare 
providers are being strengthened to address the complex needs of young individuals struggling with 
substance use. 
 
Out of Court disposals 
 
The service aims to promote alternatives to formal court proceedings where appropriate and 
beneficial. Plans include expanding restorative justice initiatives, community resolution approaches, 
and diversionary programs to divert children away from the criminal justice system. By utilising these 
out of court disposals, the service aims to reduce the burden on the formal justice system and 
provide more tailored interventions for young individuals. 
 
Links to wider services 
 
Recognising the importance of holistic support, the service is working towards strengthening links 
and collaborations with wider support services. This includes partnerships with health providers, 
social services, housing agencies, educational institutions, and community organisations. These 
collaborations aim to facilitate seamless transitions, improve coordination of support, and ensure 
comprehensive care for young individuals. 
 
Management Board attendance 
 

Page 40



   

 

The service emphasises the importance of strong governance and effective leadership. Regular 
management board meetings are held to ensure strategic oversight, decision-making, and 
accountability. The service is committed to maintaining high attendance rates and active 
engagement from Management Board members to drive forward positive change and monitor 
progress against key objectives. 
 
Serious violence 
 
The service acknowledges the need to address the issue of serious violence among young 
individuals. Strategies are being developed to prevent serious violence, including targeted 
interventions, awareness campaigns, and collaborative approaches with relevant agencies. The 
service aims to reduce incidents of serious violence and evolve its responses to the associated risks 
children in our area are presented through this comprehensive measure. 
 
Victims 
 
The service is dedicated to addressing the needs and experiences of victims of youth crime. Plans 
include improving victim support services, enhancing communication and information sharing with 
victims, and promoting restorative justice practices to facilitate victim-offender dialogue and support 
the healing process. 
 
By actively addressing these additional key performance indicators, the service aims to further 
improve outcomes for children, enhance collaboration with partner agencies, and ensure a more 
comprehensive and effective approach to Bridgend Youth Justice Services. 
 
 

Children from groups which are over-represented 
  
 
Every person should be equal in the eyes of the law, regardless of age, ethnicity or needs. However, 
research shows that the youth justice system treats children and children (10 to 18-years-old) from 
ethnic minority backgrounds differently. 
 
The drivers for disproportionality in youth justice are complex, and many lie outside of the criminal 
justice system. The Youth Justice system alone cannot solve the problem but the policy makers and 
practitioners within it do have a responsibility to do everything they can to tackle disproportionality 
and to ensure that all children and children are treated equally, no matter their background. 
Although Bridgend does not have a big proportion of children who are from ethnic minority 
background, the service still needs to consider the needs of all children coming through the service 
including those who are more likely to be marginalised such as those from care experienced 
backgrounds, travelling community, those from areas of deprivation and poverty. 
 
Bridgend Youth Justice Service believes that a partnership approach is key to reducing 
disproportionality and ensuring partners understand the experiences of ethnic minority people. 
 
The Lammy Review highlights that “the best way to ensure fair treatment is to subject decision-
making to scrutiny” (David Lammy, 2017, p. 69). Knowing the realities that ethnic minority people 
face and understanding the adverse experiences of institutionalised racism is key in helping hold 
organisations to account and improving the systems to support and protect children, children and 
their families - regardless of their ethnicity. 
 
As part of its commitment to explore and address disproportionality, a report was completed for the 
Management Board and recommendations have been included in the plan.  

Page 41



   

 

 
Prevention 
 
The importance of how we link with early years and interventions, and how we can improve this with 
an all-system approach. How we engage with Early Help, community groups and community leaders 
to achieve local improvements.  
 
Out of Court 
 
The Cwm Taf Morgannwg Court Scrutiny Panel will be completing a quality themed exercise on 
disproportionality to explore the local police decisions on a dip sample of cases for out of court 
disposals and identify any themes. 
 
Court 
 
Record details of judges/magistrates and identify any themes in relation to disproportional 
outcomes.  
 
Child/children’s voices   
 
We have improved our -assessment tools and have including disproportionality questions. 
 
Trauma-informed practice 
 
Ongoing efforts will be made by Bridgend Youth Justice Service management to ensure that agency 
policies, procedures, training, supervision, and practices are trauma-informed; show a deep level of 
cultural awareness; and are culturally relevant for the children, children and families. 
 
Unconscious Bias 
 
Commitment for all Youth Justice Service staff to continue to be trained in unconscious bias. 
 
Face-to-face work 
 
Bridgend Youth Justice Service will continue to enable Youth Justice Service practitioners to 
recognise and acknowledge ethnic minority issues in all their work, including direct face-to-face 
work. 
 
Pathways 
 
We will continue to ensure appropriate pathways are in place for all ethnic minority people and 
children between the YJS and partners. 
 
Care-experienced children 
 
The service is working in partnership with HMIP Parc prison to promote a “no black bag” campaign 
which is providing bags and cases for children moving from placement to placement, so they do not 
have to move with a black bin liner with their possessions inside. This will mean that we can have 
access to appropriate resources, so no child feels stigmatised.  
 
Male/female  
 
The biggest proportion of our children are “white Welsh” and are male. 

Page 42



   

 

 
ALN  
 
To address ALN in Wales, BYJS recognises the importance of providing comprehensive support 
and individualised plans for children with additional needs.  
 
The service actively participates in the re-establishment of the "team around the school" model. 
This collaborative approach involves various agencies, such as educational professionals, social 
workers, mental health specialists, and community organisations, working together to support the 
child's educational progression. By pooling resources and expertise, the service can provide a 
holistic and coordinated support system for children with ALN. 
 
For children who are not in education, employment, or training (NEET), the service ensures the 
creation and implementation of individual development plans. These plans are tailored to the 
specific needs and goals of each child and are designed to support their re-engagement with 
education or help them find suitable employment or training opportunities. The service takes a 
proactive role in assisting NEET children and acts as a support agency responsible for their 
development and progress. 
 
Recognising that children with ALN require personalised support, the service ensures that 
interventions and services are tailored to meet their specific needs. This includes providing 
additional educational support, accommodations, and adaptations to the learning environment, as 
well as access to specialised resources, therapies, and assistive technologies. The service works 
closely with educational institutions, health professionals, and relevant organisations to ensure a 
comprehensive and inclusive approach. 
 
Early identification and intervention are crucial for effectively addressing ALN. BYJS promotes 
early identification of additional needs through close collaboration with schools, parents, and other 
professionals involved in the child's life. By implementing screening processes, assessments, and 
regular monitoring, the service can identify ALN at an early stage and provide timely and 
appropriate support. Early intervention strategies, such as targeted interventions, specialised 
programs, and therapeutic interventions, are then implemented to address the identified needs 
promptly. 
 
To ensure that staff members within BYJS are equipped to support children with ALN effectively, 
the service emphasises continuous training and professional development. Staff members receive 
training on understanding different types of additional needs, implementing appropriate 
interventions, and promoting inclusive practices. This training enables them to better meet the 
diverse needs of children with ALN and ensures a supportive and inclusive environment within the 
service. 
 
The service recognises the importance of involving parents and carers in the support process for 
children with ALN. Regular communication, collaboration, and sharing of information between the 
service, parents, and carers are encouraged. This partnership ensures that the child's support plan 
aligns with their home environment, and parents and carers can actively participate in decision-
making and advocacy for their child's needs. 
 
Regular evaluation and review of support strategies and interventions are essential to ensure their 
effectiveness and make necessary adjustments. BYJS establishes a system for monitoring and 
evaluating the impact of support provided to children with ALN. This process involves collecting 
feedback from children, parents, and professionals involved, and using the data to make informed 
decisions and improve future support services. 

Page 43



   

 

By implementing these ideas, BYJS can effectively address ALN and provide the necessary 
support for children to reach their full potential. 
 
The disproportionality report completed in 2022 highlighted a concerning trend of a higher number 
of females entering the youth justice service compared to males. This observation raised important 
questions about the underlying factors contributing to this gender disparity and the specific needs 
of young females within the criminal justice system. However, in 2023, it was noted that the 
proportion of females entering the youth justice service had decreased, indicating a positive shift in 
the overall trend.  
 
As a response to the findings of the report, two key outcomes were identified and will be 
implemented. The first outcome was the establishment of an in-house girls' group. This group will 
be created to provide targeted support and address the unique challenges and needs faced by 
young females in the criminal justice system. By offering a safe and supportive space, the girls group 
will aim to empower and assist these children in their personal development, mental health, and 
rehabilitation. The group will focus on various aspects, such as building self-esteem, improving 
coping skills, and addressing trauma or other underlying issues that may have contributed to 
offending behaviour. 
 
The second outcome of the report was a focus on relationship building within schools to promote 
healthy relationships between peers and divert females from engaging in offending behaviour. 
Recognising the importance of early intervention and prevention, efforts will be made to establish 
positive connections among students and foster a supportive environment within educational 
settings. By strengthening relationships and encouraging positive interactions, the aim is to create 
a sense of belonging and reduce the likelihood of female children becoming involved in criminal 
activities. This outcome is in its infancy and the first relationship building exercise is planned for July 
2023. 
 
It is important to note that the reduction in the proportion of females entering the youth justice service 
in 2023 indicates progress in addressing the initial gender disparity identified in the report. However, 
ongoing monitoring and evaluation of these initiatives will be necessary to ensure their effectiveness 
and to identify any additional steps that may need to be taken in the future. 
 
Bridgend Youth Justice Service is commitment to addressing the socio-economic duty. The Welsh 
Government's socio-economic duty, established under the Equality Act 2010 (Wales), requires 
public bodies to consider how they can mitigate socio-economic disadvantage and promote 
equality of opportunity. 
 
The socio-economic duty requires public bodies to consider how their decisions and actions can 
help reduce socio-economic inequalities and promote positive outcomes for individuals and 
communities. It involves addressing factors such as poverty, access to education, health, 
employment, housing, and overall well-being. 
 
Bridgend Youth Justice Service have various strategies to address the Socio-economic Duty:  
Prevention and Early Intervention: Bridgend Youth Justice System recognises that prevention and 
early intervention are crucial in addressing the socio-economic factors contributing to youth 
offending. It focuses on identifying and addressing root causes such as poverty, inequality, lack of 
education, and limited access to services. 
 
Collaboration with local authorities and community organisations 
 
The service actively collaborates with local authorities, community organisations, and third-sector 
partners to address socio-economic challenges faced by young people. By working together, they 

Page 44



   

 

aim to provide a holistic support network that addresses the multifaceted needs of young offenders 
and their families. 
 
Supportive Interventions 
 
BYJS offers a range of supportive interventions to address socio-economic disparities and improve 
outcomes for young offenders. These include mentoring programs, educational support, vocational 
training, access to employment opportunities, and assistance with housing and welfare benefits. 
 
Youth rehabilitation and reintegration 
 
To promote successful reintegration into society, BYJS provides comprehensive rehabilitation 
programs that consider socio-economic factors. This includes assistance in securing employment, 
facilitating access to education and training, and addressing mental health and substance abuse 
issues. 
 
Stakeholder engagement 
 
The service actively engages with stakeholders, including children, their families, local communities, 
and relevant agencies. Their involvement helps shape policies and interventions, ensuring they are 
responsive to the socio-economic needs of the community and align with the Welsh Government's 
objectives. 
 
BYJS is fully committed to addressing the Welsh Government's socio-economic duty. By focusing 
on prevention, collaboration, supportive interventions, rehabilitation, and reintegration, the system 
aims to reduce socio-economic inequalities and promote positive outcomes for young offenders. 
Ongoing monitoring, evaluation, and multi-agency engagement are essential components of this 
commitment, ensuring continuous improvement and responsiveness to the evolving needs of the 
community. Through these efforts, the service plays a vital role in creating a fairer and more inclusive 
society for young people in Bridgend. 
 
Disproportionality graph 
 
The data for Bridgend Youth Justice Service Disproportionality Graph (see below) of the children 
involved with the service up to March 2023 provides important insights into the demographics and 
specific circumstances of the children: 
 
White European 
  
Accounting for 5% (4) of the children involved with the service, this category represents children 
who identify as having a White European ethnic background. It indicates a smaller representation 
of this particular ethnic group within the population served by the youth justice service. 
 
Care and Support Plan  
 
A significant proportion of 18% (15) of the children have a Care and Support Plan in place. This 
suggests that these children require additional assistance, supervision, or specialised care due to 
various factors such as behavioural challenges, developmental needs, or specific circumstances. 
The presence of Care and Support Plans highlights the need for tailored interventions and 
services to address the unique requirements of these children. 
 
Child Protection Plan 
  

Page 45



   

 

8% (7) of the children are under a Child Protection Plan, indicating that they have been identified 
as being at risk or vulnerable and require safeguarding measures to ensure their well-being and 
safety. This emphasises the importance of prioritising child protection and implementing measures 
to support and protect these children from harm. 
 
Care-experienced child 
  
A significant proportion of 22% (19) of the children identify themselves as care experienced. This 
indicates that they have been involved with the care system, such as being in foster care, 
residential care, or having experienced other forms of out-of-home placement. Understanding the 
care experiences of these children is crucial for providing appropriate support and interventions 
that address their unique needs arising from their care journeys. 
 
Females 
  
20% (17) of the children involved with the service are females. This highlights the presence of girls 
within the population being supported and emphasises the importance of gender-responsive 
approaches in addressing their specific needs, challenges, and experiences within the youth 
justice system. 
 
Males 
  
The majority of the children, comprising 78%, (68) are males. This indicates a higher 
representation of males within the population served by BYJS.  Recognising the gender disparity 
is important for tailoring interventions that address the specific challenges faced by male youth 
within the youth justice system and promoting gender equality in service delivery. 
 
Transgender 
 
2% (2) of the children identify as transgender. This suggests that a small proportion of the children 
involved with the service identify as a gender different from the one assigned to them at birth. It 
highlights the importance of inclusive practices and ensuring that the specific needs and 
experiences of transgender children are considered in service provision. 
 
This data provides a comprehensive picture of the demographic characteristics and specific 
circumstances of the children involved with BYJS. It underscores the need for tailored 
interventions, services, and support that address the diverse needs of different subgroups within 
the population. By recognising and addressing disproportionality, promoting inclusivity, and 
ensuring equitable service delivery, the service can work towards better outcomes for all the 
children involved, regardless of their backgrounds or circumstances. 
 
 

Page 46



   

 

 
 
 
Trauma needs of our children  
 
In order to identify the trauma needs of our children the service is committed to completing trauma 
screening for each child that has received an intervention. From the 1 April 2023 to 30 May 2023 
the service conducted 37 trauma screenings for the children under their care, yielding insightful 
results. The analysis of these screenings has revealed significant findings regarding the children's 
experiences. All of the children screened have encountered one or more adverse childhood 
experiences, indicating the prevalence of trauma in their lives. 100% (37) of the children screened 
had experienced one or more adverse childhood experiences (ACEs). ACEs are stressful or 
traumatic events that occur during childhood and can have long-lasting effects on an individual's 
well-being. The following gives a further insight to the screening: 
 

• Physical abuse: 35% (13) of the children screened had experienced physical abuse, 
indicating that they had been subjected to physical harm or violence. 

 

• Sexual abuse: 9% (3) of the children screened had experienced sexual abuse, suggesting 
that they had encountered unwanted sexual behaviour or exploitation. 

 

• Emotional abuse: 47% (17) of the children screened had experienced emotional abuse, 
indicating they had been subjected to psychological harm or manipulation. 

 

• Physical neglect: 24% (9) of the children screened had experienced physical neglect, 
suggesting a lack of basic care, supervision, or provision of necessities. 

 

• Emotional neglect: 46% (17) of the children screened had experienced emotional neglect, 
indicating a lack of emotional support, validation, or nurturing. 

 

• Mental illness (relative): 38% (14) of the children screened had a relative with mental illness, 
implying that they may have been exposed to challenging family dynamics or inadequate 
support due to their relative's condition. 

 

• Divorce: 16% (6) of the children screened had experienced parental divorce, suggesting they 
had gone through the dissolution of their parents' marriage or relationship. 

5%

18%

8%

22%

20%

78%

2%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90%

White European

Care and Support Plan

Child Protection Plan

Care Experienced Child

Females

Males

Transgender

Disproportionality Graph of children involved with the Bridgend 
Youth Justice System March 2023

Page 47



   

 

 

• Substance abuse (in home): 24% (9) of the children screened lived in a household affected 
by substance abuse, indicating they had been exposed to substance use or addiction within 
their family environment. 

 

• Violence against mother: 38% (14) of the children screened had witnessed violence against 
their mother, indicating they had observed or experienced domestic violence. 

 

• Incarcerated relative: 9% (3) of the children screened had a relative who was incarcerated, 
suggesting they had experienced the absence or disruption of a family member's presence 
due to imprisonment. 

 
These results highlight a significant prevalence of adverse childhood experiences among the 
screened children. It indicates that a substantial number of children have been exposed to various 
forms of abuse, neglect, family challenges, and trauma-related situations. These experiences can 
have profound effects on their physical and mental well-being, as well as their overall development. 
Understanding and addressing these ACEs are crucial for providing appropriate support, 
intervention, and care to help mitigate the negative consequences and promote healing and 
resilience in these children. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Bangor university findings on trauma summary 
 
In 2021, Bangor University, in association with Public Health Wales, were commissioned to conduct 
an independent evaluation to assess the implementation of ECM within YOTs. The conclusion was 
that, in the Youth Justice system, there is increasing recognition among professionals that 
approaches which focus on managing risk and enforcing punitive consequences, often overlook the 
needs of the child and can be largely ineffective for achieving positive outcomes. Some YOTs, 
including Bridgend YJS, are reshaping how services are delivered to enable a ‘Child-First’ and 
trauma-informed approach being adopted. The findings of this report have highlighted that in Wales, 
there has been a shift in Youth Justice, with an increase in ACE- and trauma-informed awareness 
and practice.  
 

35%

9%

47%

24%

46%

38%

16%

24%

38%

9%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50%

Physical abuse

Sexual abuse

Emotional abuse

Physical neglect

Emotional neglect

Mental illness (relative)

Divorce

Substance abuse (in home)

Violence against mother

Incarcerated relative

Percentage of the 37 children screened

A
d

ve
rs

e
 C

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 E
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
s

Percentage of Children with Adverse Childhood Experiences

Page 48



   

 

Training on ACE- and trauma-informed approaches and the delivery of ECM have galvanised this 
shift, allowing some YOTs to move towards a more holistic approach that focuses on understanding 
what has happened to a child and the complex issues they experience, through which they are able 
to improve the support they provide to children, to develop their strengths and realise their potential. 
The findings demonstrate a number of benefits to the ECM approach, including a more 
comprehensive understanding of the child, effective collaboration across agencies, the delivery of 
meaningful and developmentally appropriate interventions and the provision of services that can be 
hard to secure for some children.  
 
Furthermore, ECM enabled YOT workers to take a more considered view of breach, and a more 
trauma-informed approach to various transition processes. Overall, both YOT workers and children 
reported marked progression in positive outcomes as a result of ECM. Children developed positive 
relationships with their YOT worker and professionals from other agencies, more confidence to 
reach out to services using their own volition, improved emotional regulation, greater self-worth and 
a positive future orientation. However, the findings suggest there is still more to do to embed trauma-
informed and ‘Child-First’ approaches into the Youth Justice system as a whole. 
 
This work will now be built on using the Youth Endowment Fund and randomised control study to 
implement this model of practice across further service areas within the Education and Family 
Support directorate to provide consistency and a greater opportunity to discover through the Kent 
University evaluation, whether this model of practice should be extended even further. 
 
Currently, BYJS Service Manager is involved in a His Majesty's Inspectorate inspection scoping 
group, as a Welsh Youth Offending Team manager representation. The aim of this group is to 
consult with Youth Justice Services to ensure the inspection process and themes are aligned with 
youth justice requirements and ensure service delivery is fit for purpose, meets the diverse needs 
of the child and ensures child safety through sound practice and partnership working. 
 
 

Prevention 
 
 
Recognising the importance of proactive intervention and early identification of potential risks, BYJS 
has established a prevention panel that serves as a platform for discussions and referrals from its 
partner agencies. The panel, which convenes on a fortnightly basis, plays a significant role in 
assessing the appropriateness of referrals based on the presence of risk factors related to offending 
behaviour or potential harm behaviour. This process is aided by a comprehensive screening tool 
which gives a defensible framework for deciding which referrals are accepted for intervention. 
 
Since the implementation of the prevention panel, there has been a substantial increase in the 
number of referrals received by BYJS. This surge is indicative of the growing recognition among 
partner agencies of the value and effectiveness of early intervention in addressing youth-related 
challenges and preventing future offending or harm. 
 
BYJS has developed a comprehensive prevention evaluation system. This system serves as a tool 
for assessing the successes achieved and identifying areas that require further development or 
improvement. By systematically evaluating the outcomes of prevention interventions, BYJS can 
gather valuable insights into the effectiveness of their strategies and make informed decisions on 
how to enhance their services and interventions. 
 
The prevention evaluation system enables us to track and measure key indicators and outcomes 
related to prevention efforts. This includes the identification of successful interventions that have 

Page 49



   

 

effectively reduced the risk of offending behaviour or harm behaviour, as well as the identification of 
areas where improvements can be made to further enhance the prevention approach. 
 
By establishing this evaluation system, we demonstrate our commitment to evidence-based practice 
and continuous improvement. The data and insights gathered through the evaluation process 
provide a valuable feedback system that informs decision-making, resource allocation, and the 
refinement of prevention strategies. 
 
The prevention panel and evaluation system are a positive example of our collaborative approach 
and commitment to partnership working. By engaging with partner agencies and fostering a shared 
understanding of the importance of prevention, we can effectively address the needs of vulnerable 
children and mitigate risks before they escalate. 
 
 

Diversion  
 
 
BYJS has continued to utilise the Youth Bureau model for its Out of Court Disposals. HMIP provided 
some feedback and advice on the model in relation to ensuring the decision-making part of the panel 
was extended to include further multi-agency partners. BYJS has been pro-active and extended its 
partnership to include Health, Children’s Social Care, Victim Services, Education and Substance 
use. It is also trialling a specific out of court disposal assessment which replaces the need for 
practitioners to complete a separate assessment and report.  
 
Diversion programmes play a significant role in preventing children from entering the formal justice 
system and providing them with the necessary support to address their offending behaviour. BYJS 
recognises the importance of diversion and has established robust strategies and processes to 
effectively implement diversionary systems. 
 
Identification of children for diversion  
 
BYJS uses various methods to identify children who may be suitable for diversion. This includes 
referrals from partner agencies, schools and community organisations. Additionally, the service 
actively seeks to engage with children and families who have come to the attention of the police but 
are deemed suitable for diversion instead of formal prosecution. 
 
Delivery of the diversion service 
  
The diversion within BYJS is delivered through collaborative partnerships with a range of agencies 
and professionals. These may include youth workers, social workers, police officers, education 
professionals, and community support. The service adopts a multi-agency approach, ensuring that 
children and their families receive comprehensive support tailored to their specific needs. 
 
Evaluation of success 
  
The success of the diversion programmes is evaluated through a combination of quantitative and 
qualitative measures. Data is collected on various indicators, such as reoffending rates, educational 
attainment, and engagement in positive activities. Qualitative feedback is obtained through feedback 
forms and case studies to assess the impact of diversion on the lives of the children and their 
families. This evaluation process allows for continuous improvement and informs the development 
of effective diversion strategies. 
 
Scrutiny and oversight 

Page 50



   

 

  
To ensure the quality and effectiveness of diversion practices, BYJS has established rigorous 
scrutiny and oversight mechanisms. Regular review meetings are held with partner agencies 
involved in diversion work to monitor progress, share best practices, and address any challenges. 
Additionally, a multi-agency Cwm Taf Morgannwg Scrutiny Panel has been established to provide 
a quality assurance mechanism for out of court disposals. Cases are chosen at random on a bi-
monthly basis and the panel presents their findings on each individual case with recommendations 
set where necessary. The Management Board of BYJS continues to provide strategic oversight and 
accountability, reviewing diversion outcomes and making necessary adjustments to improve service 
delivery.  
 
Further changes will be made, if necessary, in line with recommendations from the YJB in this area 
of practice. 
 
 
Case examples: 
 
Diversion to Outcome 22: A child was discussed at the multi-agency out of court disposal decision-
making panel. Having identified the significant trauma that the child had experienced, the role of 
other services and the views of the victim it was decided that the child could be issued with an 
Outcome 22 rather than a more formal out of court disposal.  
 
Restorative Justice Diversion: The service has implemented a restorative justice diversion 
programme that brings together offenders and victims. With the support of BYJS Victim Officer, 
young individuals gain a deeper understanding of the impact of their actions and work towards 
repairing harm. This approach promotes accountability, empathy, and learning, resulting in reduced 
reoffending rates and improved community relationships. 
 
Additional supporting data: BYJS is in the process of collecting data on the outcomes of diversion 
programmes, including the number of children diverted and the outcomes achieved. The data will 
include reduced reoffending rates, improved school attendance, increased engagement in positive 
activities, and positive feedback from children and their families who have participated in diversion 
programmes. 
 
BYJS recognises that diversion is a vital part of its prevention and intervention strategies. By 
identifying at-risk children, delivering targeted intervention through partnerships, evaluating 
success, the service ensures that children receive the necessary support to divert them from the 
justice system and provide opportunities for positive change and rehabilitation. 
 
 
 

Education   
 
Bridgend Education, Training, Employment (ETE) Measure over 4 years 2019-2020 to 2022-
2023 
 
School-aged children: 
 

Page 51



   

 

 
 

 
 
Since April 2023, BYJS has been required to submit performance data on education, training, and 
employment, as well as special educational needs and disabilities/additional learning needs. 
Recognising the significance of education in supporting the rehabilitation and reintegration of 
children, BYJS has established robust partnerships and provisions to ensure that the education 
needs of all children known to the service are effectively addressed. 
 
Education staffing provision within the service 
 
BYJS understands the important role of education in the lives of children and has dedicated 
education staffing provision within its service. The service employs two qualified education 
professionals, who work closely with education establishments to support children and their 
educational needs. These professionals have expertise in addressing the specific challenges faced 
by children within BYJS, including ALN. 
 
Partnership arrangements for meeting education needs 
 
BYJS recognises that addressing the education needs of children extends beyond its own service 
provision. To ensure comprehensive support, the service collaborates with various partnership 
arrangements, including voluntary sector organisations, and the local authority. These partnerships 
facilitate access to a wider range of educational resources, expertise, and opportunities for children 
involved with BYJS. By working together, these partners strive to create a seamless pathway for 
children, enabling them to transition smoothly between different educational settings and receive 
the necessary support to reach their potential. 
 
Education representation on the management board 
 
Education representation is a vital aspect of BYJS Management Board to ensure that education 
needs remain at the forefront of decision-making and strategic planning. The board includes 
representative from educational settings, such as local schools, colleges, and educational services 
within the local authority. This representation brings valuable insights and expertise, to the board 
discussions, enabling effective decision making and coordination between BYJS and the education 
sector. 
 
Strategies to ensure education needs are met 
 
BYJS has implemented several strategies to ensure that the education needs of all children known 
to the service are met. These strategies include: 

Page 52



   

 

 
Individual education plans (IEPs): Each child within the service, which has educational needs, has 
an individualised education plan that outlines their specific learning goals, support requirements, 
and strategies for achieving educational success.  
 
Education advocacy 
 
BYJS employs education advocates who work closely with children to ensure their educational rights 
are protected and their needs are met. This advocate liaises with schools, colleges, and other 
educational settings to facilitate smooth transitions, address any barriers to learning, and advocate 
for appropriate support services. 
 
Information sharing and coordination 
 
BYJS maintains effective communication and information-sharing systems with educational 
settings, ensuring that relevant educational records and assessments are shared securely and in a 
timely manner. This coordination enables educational providers to make informed decisions 
regarding placements, accommodations, and support for children involved with the YJS. This 
includes speech and language assessments completed BYJS SALT. 
 
Tailored educational interventions 
 
BYJS collaborates with educational professionals to develop tailored interventions that address the 
specific educational needs and challenges faced by children involved with BYJS. These 
interventions may include catch-up programmes, vocational training, educational mentoring, and 
alternative educational placements, ensuring that children have access to suitable educational 
opportunities that promote their engagement and achievement. 
 
By working in partnership with education providers, involving education representation on the 
management board, and implementing tailored strategies, BYJS strives to ensure that all children 
known to the service receive the necessary educational support. Through these collaborative efforts, 
the service aims to improve educational outcomes, reduce barriers to learning, and promote 
successful reintegration into mainstream education, training, or employment opportunities. A 
positive example of partnership practice is a meeting that has been established with school assistant 
heads and safeguarding leads to provide preventative Youth Justice support for individual schools. 
Schools now have the opportunity to discuss relevant Youth Justice related issues and cases and 
put a plan in place to address those issues. 
 
The analysis of Education, Training, and Employment (ETE) for children being supported by 
Bridgend Youth Justice Service reveals the following attendance patterns: 
 
High attendance 
 
25 children have an attendance rate of over 85%. This indicates that they consistently attend their 
education, training, or employment programs, demonstrating a strong commitment to their 
educational and vocational pursuits. 
 
Moderate attendance 
 
27 children have an attendance rate between 40% and 84%. This suggests that they attend their 
ETE programmes regularly but may have some sporadic absences or challenges in maintaining 
consistent attendance. 
 

Page 53



   

 

Low attendance 
 
33 children have an attendance rate between 0% and 39%. This group shows a significant struggle 
in attending their ETE programmes, with frequent absences or non-attendance. 
These attendance patterns provide insights into the engagement levels and commitment of the 
children supported by BYJS in their education, training, and employment endeavours. While a 
portion of the children demonstrates consistent attendance and dedication, there are others who 
face challenges in maintaining regular attendance. It is essential for the service to continue to identify 
and address the factors contributing to low attendance among the children, providing additional 
support, interventions, or resources as needed. Improving attendance rates can greatly enhance 
the children's educational and vocational outcomes, increasing their chances of successful 
reintegration into society and reducing the risk of reoffending. The 33 cases where children are 
struggling to engage with provision, have been identified and are discussed as part of the fortnightly 
meeting to consider individualised needs and planning to support the child to improve their 
engagement. 
 

 
 
 
 

Restorative approaches and victims  
 
 
The inspectorate report highlighted that the case managers within BYJS consider the wishes and 
needs of victims when relevant, as well as the actual and potential risks to victims when necessary. 
This victim-centred approach is fundamental to the service's operations and ensures that victims' 
voices are heard, and their needs are addressed appropriately in line with the Victim Code of 
Practice. Additionally, the report commended BYJS for its victim-led approach to reparation, 
emphasising that projects are designed to develop skills and provide tangible benefits to the 
community. 
 

25, 
29%

27, 
32%

33, 
39%

Education, Training and Employment

Green Amber Red

Green = 85%+ Amber = 40% to 84%    Red = Not in Education, Training or Employment to 39%

Page 54



   

 

To further enhance BYJS restorative services, the evaluation process has been refined. This 
refinement aims to optimise the measurement of victim satisfaction regarding the services they have 
received. By gathering feedback and actively seeking input from victims, the service can continually 
improve its practices and ensure that the support provided aligns with victims' expectations and 
requirements. 
 
Over the past year, BYJS has undertaken significant revisions to its Victim Policy and amended 
procedures to ensure compliance with the victim KPI These revisions have allowed the service to 
collect and provide all the necessary information required to meet the KPI standards. This proactive 
approach demonstrates BYJS commitment to effective victim support and the importance placed on 
meeting established performance indicators. 
 
Aligned with the all-Wales protocol on reducing the criminalisation of care-experienced children and 
young adults, BYJS has actively fostered connections with local children's residential homes and 
foster carers. This collaborative approach has been recognised as an exemplary practice in the 
associated toolkit produced by Missing People Wales. The aim is to prevent and divert children from 
the formal youth justice system by dealing with incidents using a restorative approach.  
 
Overall, BYJS's dedication to a victim-led approach and continuous improvement is evident in its 
efforts to refine evaluation processes, revise policies and procedures, and establish fruitful 
partnerships with key stakeholders. By prioritising victim satisfaction, engaging in restorative 
practices, and aligning with national protocols, BYJS seeks to create a more inclusive and 
responsive Youth Justice service that supports victims, promotes community benefit, and facilitates 
positive outcomes for all involved. 
 
In a joint BYJS Management Board and team meeting it was identified that there is little joined up 
working between restorative justice service providers situated in different agencies.  A plan has been 
formulated to establish a multi-agency restorative justice group that can share practice and training 
opportunities, joint tackle barriers to victim involvement, co-ordinate events such as restorative 
Justice week and contribute to the training of student police officers. 
 

Serious violence and exploitation  
 
In accordance with the Home Office Serious Violence Duty (December 2022), services are 
encouraged to provide a local perspective on serious violence and exploitation. This includes 
highlighting any strategic partnerships and collaborations that exist to address these issues, as well 
as sharing insights and learnings from past serious incidents. By presenting this information, BYJS 
can demonstrate its commitment to tackling serious violence and exploitation within the community. 
 
To address child criminal exploitation, BYJS actively engages in partnership work with relevant 
stakeholders including local authority newly implemented exploitation leads. The service also 
regularly collaborates with the National Referral Mechanism (NRM) and equivalent local 
arrangements to identify and support children who may be victims of exploitation. By working closely 
with the NRM, the service can continue to ensure that appropriate measures are in place to 
safeguard and provide necessary interventions for children affected by criminal exploitation. 
In addition to addressing child criminal exploitation, BYJS also recognises the importance of 
preventing radicalisation and extremist activity among young individuals. This involves implementing 
initiatives and practices that aim to counter radicalisation and promote community involvement. The 
service actively collaborates with relevant organisations, such as local authorities, community 
groups, and safeguarding partnerships, to develop comprehensive strategies and interventions in 
this area and is a member of Bridgend Channel Panel.  
 

Page 55



   

 

BJYS are currently working with a proportion of children subject to Release Under Investigation 
(RUI) arrangements. The service has additional funding through Turnaround to assist in providing 
improved packages of support for these children. It is acknowledged that not all of these case 
incidents relate to serious violence, so it is vital the service responds to individual needs and offers 
relevant and timely support. It is also essential for BYJS to work across the partnership to address 
the specific needs and risks associated with children in such circumstances. This includes 
collaborating with the police, social services, and other relevant organisations to ensure that 
appropriate support is in place. By taking a multi-agency approach, BYJS aims to address the 
underlying factors that contribute to the involvement of young individuals in serious violence and 
provide them with the necessary support and guidance to prevent further harm. 
 
The service recognises the significance of addressing serious violence, exploitation, and related 
issues within the community. By actively participating in partnership work, engaging with the NRM 
or equivalent arrangements, and developing preventative measures against radicalisation, the 
service demonstrates its commitment to safeguarding and promoting the well-being of children and 
young individuals. 
 

Detention in police custody  
 
Detention in police custody is a critical aspect that requires attention and proper handling by BYJS. 
The service acknowledges the importance of addressing the challenges associated with this issue 
while ensuring compliance with relevant legislation such as the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 
1984 (PACE). 
 
To effectively address the local challenges related to children detained in custody, BYJS has 
established collaborative partnerships with the police. This partnership enables effective 
communication and cooperation between the service and the police, ensuring that the welfare and 
rights of detained children are safeguarded. By maintaining a close working relationship with the 
police, BYJS can stay informed about any local challenges that may arise and work together to find 
appropriate solutions. 
 
Compliance with PACE is an important aspect of BYJS's approach to detention in police custody. 
The service ensures that all procedures and practices align with the provisions set out in PACE to 
protect the rights and well-being of detained children. This includes adhering to guidelines regarding 
the treatment, supervision, and rights of children in custody. 
 
BYJS works closely with relevant agencies to ensure that children in custody have access to 
appropriate support. This includes partnering with agencies responsible for providing appropriate 
adults who can assist and support detained children during their time in custody. BYJS collaborates 
with these organisations to establish local processes and procedures that enable the timely and 
effective provision of appropriate adult support. Additionally, we work in close coordination with the 
Emergency Duty Team, and provide a weekend rota for court which provides further assistance and 
support when needed. 
 
BYJS has ongoing training and awareness programmes for staff members involved in the detention 
process. This ensures that they have a comprehensive understanding of the specific needs of 
detained children and are equipped with the necessary skills to provide appropriate support and 
interventions. We emphasise the importance of communication and collaboration between all 
relevant agencies, including the police, appropriate adults, and emergency duty teams, to ensure a 
cohesive and effective approach to detention in police custody. 
 

Page 56



   

 

By prioritising the welfare, rights, and appropriate treatment of children detained in custody, we strive 
to create a safe and supportive environment that adheres to legal requirements and promotes 
positive outcomes for young individuals involved in the justice system. 
 
 

Remands  

 
BYJS recognises the significance of addressing the issue of children subject to remands to local 
authority accommodation and youth detention accommodation. These situations require careful 
consideration and efforts to ensure the well-being and appropriate treatment of these children within 
the justice system. 
 
To effectively address this issue, we collaborate with local authorities, partner agencies, and 
agencies to develop strategic plans aimed at reducing the use of remands. These plans focus on 
alternative approaches that prioritise diversion, prevention, and rehabilitation as alternatives to 
remanding children into custody. 
 
By implementing these strategic plans, we aim to provide suitable and supportive interventions that 
address the underlying causes of offending behaviour and promote positive outcomes for young 
individuals. These plans may involve the provision of comprehensive assessments, specialised 
interventions, and support services tailored to the unique needs of each child. 
 
Data on the use of remands to local authority accommodation and youth detention accommodation 
is essential in assessing the effectiveness of these strategic plans. BYJS collects and analyses 
relevant data to gain insights into the patterns and trends associated with remands and to evaluate 
the impact of alternative approaches. This data helps inform decision-making processes and shape 
future strategies to further reduce the use of remands. 
Additionally, BYJS actively engages with partner agencies, such as local authorities, to ensure 
collaborative efforts in finding suitable alternatives to remands. This involves establishing effective 
communication and sharing best practices to enhance partnership working and maximise resources. 
 
The focus is on providing appropriate support and interventions to children subject to remands, 
including access to educational opportunities, mental health services, and rehabilitative 
programmes. The aim is to address their needs in a holistic and individualised manner, promoting 
their well-being and reducing the likelihood of reoffending. 
 
Through a combination of strategic planning, data analysis, collaboration with partner agencies, and 
tailored interventions, the service aims to continually improve outcomes for children subject to 
remands, ultimately reducing the reliance on remands and providing more effective and supportive 
pathways within the Youth Justice system. 
 
 

Use of custody  
 
BYJS has achieved success in reducing the use of custody within the Youth Justice system. This 
accomplishment is due to BYJS the commitment to finding alternative approaches that prioritise the 
well-being and rehabilitation of children involved in the justice system. 

  
The recognition that custody can have a detrimental impact on the lives of children is a driving force 
behind the efforts to reduce its utilisation. BYJS acknowledges that the experience of custody can 
disrupt a child's education, strain family relationships, and increase trauma. Understanding the 
potential consequences of custody reinforces the need for comprehensive and targeted support for 
children within the justice system. 

Page 57



   

 

  
Even though custody rates are low, BYJS recognises the importance of strategic planning and 
collaborative efforts across agencies to address the needs of children who do end up in custody. 
This extends beyond custody rates to include the provision of holistic and tailored support services 
that meet the unique challenges and complexities faced by these children. 

  
Strategic planning involves close collaboration with partner agencies, including local authorities, 
education providers, health services, and community organisations. Through these partnerships, 
BYJS ensures that comprehensive support systems are in place to address the specific needs of 
children in custody and lessen the potential negative consequences of their incarceration. 

  
Also, BYJS conducts in-depth analysis and assessment of the needs of children in custody. This 
analysis helps identify patterns, underlying factors contributing to their offending behaviour, and 
areas where interventions can be most effective. By understanding the trauma and vulnerabilities of 
these children, we are able to design and implement targeted interventions that address their needs 
and support their rehabilitation and reintegration into society. 

  
The focus on reducing the use of custody aligns with the broader principles of the Youth Justice 
system, which emphasise the importance of providing appropriate support and interventions for 
children who have engaged in offending behaviour. The service strives to create a system that 
prioritises the well-being and development of children, ensuring that they have access to the 
necessary educational, mental health, and rehabilitative resources to support their growth. 

  
By maintaining a proactive approach to strategic planning, collaborative partnerships, and 
comprehensive analysis, we remain committed to further reducing the use of custody and 
continuously improving the support provided to children involved in the Youth Justice system  
 

 
Constructive resettlement  
 
Ensuring a smooth and successful transition for children leaving custody is a crucial aspect of 
BYJS’s commitment to constructive resettlement. It has amended its policy to account for the 
developments in this area of practice. We recognise that children who have been in custody face 
specific challenges, particularly when it comes to finding suitable accommodation and reintegrating 
into the community. Efforts to implement the principles of constructive resettlement aim to provide 
comprehensive support and opportunities for these young individuals as they embark on their 
journey towards a positive future. 

 

BYJS embraces the constructive resettlement 5 strand model and through our Senior Social Work 
Practitioner based on the Children’s Unit HMP and YOI Parc, the team has an influence on the 
resettlement of children being released from the establishment not only from Bridgend but those 
from the other areas where there are Children placed at the establishment. As an integral part of 
their role, the Senior Practitioner is required to establish and maintain links with the home Local 
Authority of any of the care-experienced children in the establishment, and working alongside the 
home youth justice service, the local authority and the case management staff in the establishment, 
ensure that plans are in place for the constructive resettlement of care-experienced children being 
released from custody. 

 
One of these key features of constructive resettlement in the establishment, is the use of temporary 
release, which allows children to attend appointments in the community ahead of their release and 
in some circumstances attend education/work experience placements along with educational 
opportunities under supervision such as the Duke of Edinburgh Award expeditions all of which is 
aimed to gradually transition children back into their respective community under controlled and 

Page 58



   

 

supportive conditions. And by gradually reintroducing children to the community, BYJS supports the 
rationale that children being released from custody can develop important skills and networks, 
reducing the likelihood of reoffending and improving their chances of successful reintegration. 

 

Alongside the links with HMP and YOI Parc, the service supports the “No black bags” scheme which 
aims to ensure no child will move with a black bag and provides funding for bags and cases to be 
purchased which aims to prevent stigmatisation. The service is also assisting the corporate 
parenting team to provide a wider range of opportunities for children moving from placement to 
placement and requiring additional support. 

 

Our service understands that constructive resettlement is an ongoing process that requires 
continuous improvement and development. As part of our future, BYJS is committed to further 
enhancing the constructive resettlement approach. This includes continuing to strengthen 
partnerships with housing providers, local authorities, and support organisations to ensure a 
comprehensive network of support is available for children leaving custody. By including these 
agencies, BYJS aims to address the specific housing needs of young individuals and facilitate their 
successful transition to stable and suitable accommodation.  

 

We are committed to implementing the principles of constructive resettlement to support children 
leaving custody. By maximising the use of temporary release, strengthening partnerships, and 
continuously improving their approach, the service continuously strives to provide comprehensive 
support, suitable accommodation, and opportunities for successful reintegration.  
 
 

Standards for children in the justice system 
 
As part of the strategic self-assessment process, BYJS will conduct a review of key policies to 
ensure their continued effectiveness and relevance. The purpose of this review is to assess the 
implementation, accessibility, and practicality of these policies and identify any changes that may 
be required. The following policies have been identified for review: 
 
Provision of appropriate adults 
 
BYJS will review its policy on providing appropriate adults to safeguard the interests of children 
detained or questioned by police officers. This review will align with the National Appropriate Adult 
Network's National Standards to ensure that the provision meets the required guidelines. 
 
Interviewing Children under PACE 
 
The policy regarding children who may be interviewed under the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 
1984 (PACE) while remanded or sentenced in youth detention accommodation will be reviewed. 
This review aims to assess the effectiveness and practicality of the existing provisions, considering 
the specific needs and circumstances of the children involved. 
 
Quality of case management 
 
The policy on adhering to the quality of case management will be reviewed to evaluate its 
implementation and effectiveness. This review aims to assess the extent to which the policy is being 
followed and identify areas for improvement to ensure high-quality case management practices. 
 
Public protection and desistance policies 
 

Page 59



   

 

BYJS will review its policies related to public protection and desistance, including release and recall 
arrangements for children on licence/supervision. This review will assess the effectiveness of 
existing policies in promoting public safety and supporting the reintegration of children into the 
community. 
 
Engagement and compliance with court orders 
 
The policy regarding engagement and compliance with court orders, remand, and bail programmes 
will be reviewed. This review will include responsibilities for enforcement actions where case 
management sits outside the youth offending service ensuring effective engagement and 
compliance with court orders. 
 
Data protection 
 
BYJS will review its data protection policy to ensure compliance with the relevant data protection 
principles outlined in the Data Protection Act 2018 and the General Data Protection Regulation 2018 
(GDPR). This review aims to ensure that personal information is shared appropriately and in 
accordance with data protection regulations. 
 
Disproportionality 
 
BYJS will review its policies to ensure compliance with the Equality Act 2010. This review will assess 
the extent to which the BYJS upholds its duty to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of 
opportunity, and foster good relations between different individuals when carrying out its activities. 
 
In addition to policy reviews, the Management Boards and Operational YJT services will undertake 
a comprehensive review of the standards specified for out of court disposals, at court, in the 
community (on community orders), in secure accommodation, and on transition and resettlement. 
This review will enable BYJS to analyse the quality of work and case management within these 
different contexts. 
. 
By conducting these policy reviews and assessments, BYJS aims to ensure that its practices align 
with the latest standards, regulations, and best practices, ultimately enhancing the quality and 
effectiveness of its services for children involved in the justice system. 
 

Workforce development 
 
In the coming year, BYJS recognises the importance of investing in the development of its workforce 
to enhance service delivery. Several key areas have been identified for workforce development in 
2023-2024 to address the specific needs of the staff: 
 
ECM training 
 
Recognising the evolving nature of youth justice work, we aim to provide comprehensive training on 
ECM practices. This training will equip staff with the necessary skills and knowledge to effectively 
manage complex cases, ensure appropriate interventions, and promote positive outcomes for 
children. 
 
Report writing training 
 
Clear and accurate report writing is essential for effective communication within the Youth Justice 
system. BYJS intends to provide training focused on enhancing report writing skills, ensuring that 

Page 60



   

 

staff can produce high-quality reports that accurately capture relevant information and support 
informed decision-making. 
 
Victims of sexual assault and toxic masculinity 
 
Given the sensitive nature of supporting victims of sexual assault and addressing issues related to 
toxic masculinity, the service acknowledges the importance of providing specialised training in these 
areas. This training will enable staff to develop a deeper understanding of the unique needs of 
victims and equip them with the necessary skills to provide sensitive and appropriate support. 
 
To deliver these training and development opportunities, the service has continued to plan a series 
of development days and team-building sessions throughout the year to build on our last year 
feedback from the practice development events that were held. These sessions will continue to 
provide dedicated time for staff to engage in learning, share best practices, and strengthen their 
collaborative working relationships. 
 
Reflecting on the past year, BYJS has already implemented various training and development 
initiatives that have positively impacted service delivery. For example, specific training sessions on 
trauma-informed care, safeguarding, defensible decision making, and restorative justice practices 
have enhanced staff's ability to understand and respond to the complex needs of children involved 
in the justice system. This has resulted in improved engagement, better outcomes for children, and 
increased satisfaction among stakeholders. 
 
In terms of supporting the workforce, the service is committed to promoting resilience and wellbeing 
among its staff. Specific measures have been implemented, including: 
 
Clinical supervision  
 
Staff have access to regular clinical supervision sessions, providing them with a supportive and 
confidential space to reflect on their practice, address challenges, and receive guidance from 
experienced professionals. This supervision helps to enhance staff resilience, well-being, and 
effectiveness in their roles. 
 
Peer-to-peer mentoring 
 
BYJS encourages peer-to-peer mentoring, where experienced staff members provide support and 
guidance to their colleagues. This mentorship promotes knowledge sharing, professional growth, 
and the development of a supportive and collaborative work environment. 
 
Case discussion 
 
The fortnightly case discussion sessions provide a forum where all practitioners can bring cases for 
problem solving or for presentation of effective practice with team members. This forum builds team 
consistency, ideas for innovative practice, knowledge sharing and upskilling of staff. 
 
Childview clinic and ASSET clinic 
 
These clinics have been set up to share best practice for Childview and ASSET completion. There 
have been handouts produced for staff to utilise for recording purposes which helps to enhance the 
YJB practice guides. 
 
These support mechanisms play a vital role in nurturing a positive and healthy work culture within 
BYJS. By prioritising the wellbeing and professional development of staff, BYJS aims to create a 

Page 61



   

 

workforce that is resilient, motivated, and equipped to deliver high-quality services to the children 
they serve. 
 

Evidence-based practice and innovation 
 
Resources  
 
An Intervention Coordinator within of BYJS, identified a gap in the resources available to support 
the comprehensive and holistic needs of the children we work with, particularly in relation to their 
progression towards desistance from offending. 
 
Recognising the importance of addressing this gap, the Intervention Coordinator took proactive 
measures to develop valuable resources that would effectively cater to the individualised 
requirements of each child. 
 
Drawing upon her extensive experience working with both diagnosed and undiagnosed children, the 
Intervention Coordinator utilised her expertise to create specific learning interventions tailored to the 
unique needs of each child. This resource development process was further enriched by the 
Intervention Coordinator's personal experiences within her own family, which provided her with 
invaluable insights into the challenges faced by children with similar diagnosis. 
 
The dedication and effort invested in this initiative has resulted in the creation of a resource that the 
team acknowledges as a tool to enhance our support for the children we work with.  
 
By leveraging her knowledge and drawing from her personal experiences, the Intervention 
Coordinator has successfully addressed the gap in resources, providing the team with assets to 
support the children's progress. The tailored learning interventions provided by this resource enable 
the team to effectively address the specific needs of each child, taking into consideration their unique 
circumstances, traumas, and challenges to enable each child to reach a pro-social identity in the 
community. 
 
Moving forward, the team can continue to build upon and refine this resource, incorporating new 
insights and best practices to ensure its sustained effectiveness. Furthermore, the success of this 
resource demonstrates the team's commitment to innovation and continuous improvement in 
meeting the holistic needs of the children we work with. 
 
 
Building Skills Project 
 
BYJS Building Skills Project provides children with workplace skills, plays a crucial role in 
strengthening their sense of identity, boosting their confidence, and enhancing their self-esteem. 
Through the project, children not only acquire practical skills applicable to the workplace but also 
undergo personal growth and development. 
 
Referrals can be made for children to participate in the Building Skills Project, which offers them 
various opportunities. These opportunities include alternative education provision, enabling them to 
continue their learning in a different setting. Additionally, children may engage in the project to fulfil 
their reparation hours, allowing them to contribute positively to their communities while learning 
valuable skills. Furthermore, participating in the project allows children to build their portfolio by 
gaining practical work experience, which can be beneficial for their future endeavours. 
Within the Building Skills Project, children engage in the design and construction of wooden, 
bespoke play areas and equipment for schools and community groups. This hands-on experience 
not only enhances their construction skills but also fosters their creativity and problem-solving 

Page 62



   

 

abilities. By actively participating in the project, children gain practical knowledge in project planning, 
developing construction skills, managing budgets, prioritising health and safety measures, 
contributing to community regeneration, and acquiring valuable work experience. 
 
To ensure the effectiveness and continuous improvement of the programme, evaluations are 
conducted, and feedback is actively collected from the participating children, as well as the schools 
and community groups involved. This feedback serves as a valuable tool for assessing the impact 
of the programme and making necessary adjustments to further enhance its outcomes. 
 
Overall, the Building Skills Project is a comprehensive initiative that offers children a range of 
benefits. It equips them with valuable workplace skills, while also nurturing their sense of identity, 
bolstering their confidence, and boosting their self-esteem. Through referrals and alternative 
education provisions, children are provided with diverse opportunities for growth and development. 
The project's evaluation and feedback mechanisms ensure its ongoing improvement, ensuring that 
it remains a valuable and impactful programme for the children, schools, and community groups 
involved. 
 
Court adaptation  
 
A Youth Justice Coordinator played a vital role in supporting a child throughout their court 
proceedings. It became apparent during the court procedure that the child was struggling to 
comprehend the implications of the legal process and was finding it challenging to grasp the 
technical language used. 
 
To address this issue and ensure the child's understanding and active participation, the Youth 
Justice Coordinator took proactive measures. Recognising the importance of providing visual 
support, the coordinator developed a range of visual prompts specifically tailored to the child's 
needs. These prompts were designed to help the child understand the court environment, 
comprehend the questions posed to them, and comprehend the procedural steps they needed to 
follow. 
 
The implementation of these visual prompts proved to be highly effective. The child, who was now 
equipped with additional resources, was able to grasp the questions asked and understand the court 
procedures more clearly. This, in turn, empowered the child to actively engage with the court process 
and demonstrate their presence in a meaningful way. By ensuring the child's comprehension and 
participation, the Youth Justice Coordinator paved the way for a more equitable and just court 
experience for the child. 
 
Furthermore, the positive outcome achieved in this case highlighted the potential for a brighter future 
for the child. By providing the necessary support and resources, the child's understanding and 
engagement were enhanced, allowing them to navigate the court proceedings more effectively. This 
positive experience not only helped the child in their current situation but also enables a potential 
future free from offending. 
 
The success of this intervention exemplifies the importance of recognising and addressing the 
specific needs of children who have experienced trauma and possess additional learning 
requirements. It underscores the significance of employing innovative approaches, such as the 
development of visual prompts, to bridge the communication and comprehension gaps that may 
exist in court settings. 
 
This case serves as a reminder that with the right support, resources, and tailored interventions, 
children can be empowered to understand and actively participate in court proceedings, ultimately 

Page 63



   

 

promoting their own presence in the justice system. It also highlights the potential for positive 
outcomes and the possibility of a future that is free from further offending for these young individuals 
 
Substance use Worker 
 
The innovative work of a BYJS worker has led to impactful interventions and engagements with 
various target groups. Here are the details of the specific initiatives undertaken: 
 
School Sessions: On April 27, 2023, BYJS worker conducted three sessions on vaping, general 
substance use, cannabis, and alcohol at Porthcawl Comprehensive School. The sessions included 
interactive activities such as discussions, and the use of beer goggles to simulate the effects of 
alcohol. Approximately 30 pupils attended each session, totalling over 90 children who received 
substance awareness education. These sessions provided an opportunity for children to learn about 
the risks associated with substance use and engage in meaningful conversations. 
 
Stalls: On April 26, 2023, BYJS worker participated in a wellbeing event at Pencoed College. A stall 
was set up featuring drug boxes and a "spin the wheel" activity with substance-related questions. 
Children had the chance to win merchandise by answering questions correctly. The stall proved to 
be engaging, encouraging students to ask questions and share their personal experiences with drug 
use and their observations within the community. Approximately 150 children interacted with the 
stall and gained valuable insights into substance use. 
 
BYJS worker conducted two sessions at Evergreen Youth Club. On March 2, 2023, a beer goggles 
activity was conducted to illustrate the effects of alcohol, along with discussions on its short and 
long-term impacts, involving 37 children. On April 27, 2023, substance boxes were showcased, and 
discussions were held on the effects of various substances, drug classifications, and personal 
experiences. Thirty-five children actively participated in this session. These interactive sessions 
aimed to raise awareness about the consequences of substance use and facilitate informed 
decision-making among children. 
 
Parent and Carer Coffee Morning: A parent and carer coffee morning was organised on March 19, 
2023, to provide support for individuals whose children are using substances. This informal event 
allowed parents to drop in and engage in conversations about their concerns. BYJS worker plans to 
provide structured PACT (Parent and Carer Training) sessions when there is sufficient interest. The 
next session is scheduled for May 17, 2023. This initiative recognises the importance of involving 
parents and carers in addressing substance use issues and providing them with the necessary 
support. 
 
On April 25, 2023, BYJS worker conducted a basic substance awareness session for professionals 
at Hermon Road Children's Home. Ten professionals attended the session, which covered various 
aspects such as defining drugs, their names, categories, effects, and appearances. The training 
also focused on understanding motivations for drug use, different types of drug use, the continuum 
of drug use, the cycle of change, and exploring reasons for not using drugs. This training aimed to 
enhance professionals' knowledge and skills in addressing substance-related issues among 
children under their care. 
 
These examples highlight BYJS worker's proactive and multifaceted approach in engaging different 
target groups, including students, parents/carers, children at youth clubs, and professionals. The 
sessions and activities were designed to increase awareness, provide education, and foster 
dialogue about substance use and its consequences.  
 
Exploitation mapping 
 

Page 64



   

 

In an effort to identify potential service links to exploitation among the children they work with, the 
BYJS undertook a mapping exercise. The purpose of this exercise was to visually connect the 
different children they were currently assisting and determine if there were any direct associations 
or patterns that could indicate potential exploitation. 
 
To conduct the mapping exercise, all team members gathered for a meeting. They utilised a large 
roll of paper to create a comprehensive list of all the children who were open to the service at that 
time. Each team member then began to establish links between the various children based on the 
information they had gathered throughout their interventions and interactions with the young 
individuals. 
 
The result of this mapping exercise was a significant child mapping diagram that visually illustrated 
the connections and relationships between the children. The team observed clear links and identified 
similar concerning behaviours among the children included in the mapping exercise. Some of these 
behaviours included having unexplained amounts of money, frequently going missing, and 
absconding from school. 
 
Recognising the importance of this information and its potential implications, the service shared the 
findings with relevant agencies involved in supporting these children. The information was 
specifically passed on to the child exploitation team, which has the necessary expertise and 
resources to further investigate and address potential exploitation cases. 
 
By identifying these connections and concerning behaviours, the mapping exercise provided 
valuable insights for understanding the potential risks faced by the children in question. It allowed 
the team to take proactive steps in collaborating with other agencies and initiating investigations to 
safeguard the well-being of these vulnerable individuals. This exercise demonstrates the dedication 
of BYJS in identifying and addressing issues related to child exploitation within their jurisdiction. 
 
 
Effective early prevention 
 
A referral was made to BYJS concerning two young siblings who had been engaging in ASB. This 
behaviour manifested in activities such as fire setting and trespassing on train tracks. It was evident 
that the children did not fully comprehend the seriousness of their actions and were easily influenced 
by their peers. Additionally, there were concerns about the adequacy of parenting in their home 
environment. 
 
To address the needs of these children, a Bridgend Youth Justice case manager took the initiative 
to conduct a comprehensive assessment. This assessment aimed to gain a thorough understanding 
of the factors contributing to the ASB and to develop an appropriate intervention plan. Recognising 
the importance of a coordinated approach, the Case Manager collaborated with the Early Help Team 
to create a joint plan. Under this plan, the Case Manager would primarily work with the children, 
while the Early Help Team would provide support to the parents. 
 
The implementation of the joint plan has yielded positive outcomes for the children. As part of the 
intervention, the children underwent a speech and language assessment, highlighting the 
commitment to addressing their communication needs. Moreover, the children have demonstrated 
positive engagement with the intervention, indicating their willingness to participate and make 
progress. As a result, there has been a noticeable improvement in their presenting behaviour, 
indicating a positive change in their conduct. 
 
The collaborative effort between `BYJS, the Early Help Team, and other relevant professionals has 
proven effective in addressing the ASB exhibited by these siblings. By conducting a thorough 

Page 65



   

 

assessment and developing a joint plan, the Case Manager and the Early Help Team were able to 
tailor their support to meet the specific needs of the children and their family. The inclusion of a 
speech and language assessment further highlights the holistic approach taken to address the 
underlying issues contributing to the ASB. Following on from the speech and language assessment, 
it was identified that the younger of the siblings’ language skills were immature for his age. Language 
intervention was then provided to develop the child’s understanding of key vocabulary surrounding 
ASB to ensure interventions from other practitioners could be fully understood by the child. 
 
The successful intervention in this case serves as an example of the effectiveness of a collaborative 
and comprehensive approach in supporting young individuals involved in ASB, addressing their 
underlying needs, and promoting positive behavioural change. 
 
 

Evaluation  
 
BYJS is committed to continuous improvement and development of its service delivery. In order to 
achieve this, they have been utilising various sources of information and conducting their own 
evaluations. 
 
One important source of knowledge for the service is the findings from Youth Justice inspections, 
Youth Justice Board evaluation reports and Cwm Taf Morgannwg Scrutiny Panel. These reports 
provide valuable insights into the effectiveness of different approaches and initiatives within the 
Youth Justice system. By studying these findings, Bridgend Youth Justice Service could identify best 
practices and areas that require improvement, allowing them to shape their future practices 
accordingly. 
. 
Additionally, the service has been conducting its own in-house evaluations to assess various 
aspects of their operations. These evaluations include the My Voice, Education Training and 
Employment audit, which examines the support provided to children in terms of their education, 
training, and employment opportunities. They also evaluate reoffending and violent offending rates 
to understand the effectiveness of their interventions in reducing these behaviours. Feedback from 
children and families, as well as evaluations on health, substance use, and speech, language, and 
communication, are also taken into consideration. Moreover, staff feedback is collected to gain 
insights into the service's internal operations and identify areas for improvement. 
 
To address disproportionality within the service, BYJS conducted its own audit in the past year. 
However, recognising the need for further examination, the Out of Court Disposal Scrutiny Panel 
has planned an additional audit specifically focused on Out of Court Disposals. This forthcoming 
audit will be discussed in the scrutiny panel in June 2023, with the aim of identifying any disparities 
and developing strategies to address them effectively. 
 
In the pursuit of developing the Youth Endowment Funding Project for children experiencing trauma, 
Bridgend Youth Justice Service has partnered with Kent University. A team from the university has 
been assigned to conduct a mixed-method two-level individually randomised control efficacy trial to 
evaluate the TRM within Bridgend Early Help Services, Youth Support Services, and Youth Justice 
Services. This randomised control trial ensures that the interventions delivered are decided 
randomly, reducing bias in the evaluation process. The mixed-method approach combines 
quantitative data and qualitative information to gain a comprehensive understanding of the key 
questions being addressed. 
 
Through this evaluation, the service aims to assess the relative effect of TRM when compared to 
the business-as-usual (BAU) approach on their desired outcomes. The efficacy trial will explore 
whether TRM is worse, the same, or better than the current approach in achieving positive outcomes 

Page 66



   

 

for the children involved in the justice system. The findings of this trial will further inform the service's 
decision-making process and potential adjustments to their practices. 
 
 

Service Improvement Plan and Service development 
 
Bridgend County Borough Council Corporate Plan 2023-2028 reports that Bridgend County Borough 

has worked with residents, staff, trade unions, elected members and businesses to shape its 

ambitions over the next five years. 

 

The Corporate plan has several objectives. Wellbeing Objective states that we have, “Reduced the 
number of children aged between 10 and 17 going into the criminal justice system from 167 per 
100,000 in July 2018 to 121 in 2022.” The forthcoming objective is to, “Identify children who are 
more likely to offend and provide them with support to reduce offending behaviour.” 

 The plan invites its community members to, “Become a community volunteer to assist BYJS delivery. 

 

The Education and Family Support Directorate has also produced a strategic plan 2023-2026 which 

aligns to the Corporate Plan and outlines the directorates plans for the next 3 years. 

 

The Education and Family Support Directorate is Bridgend County Borough Council’s largest 
directorate with an annual revenue budget exceeding £175m and around 4000 staff.  
 
The three-year strategic plan is an important part of the directorate’s delivery model as it enables 
clear alignment with national policy and locally determined priorities. It recognises a need for  
Outstanding support for children and children with ALN. 
 
Excellent family support services delivered by the right people, at the right time, to those most in 

need. 

 

Youth Justice strategic plan  

 

Robust safeguarding procedures across all the directorate’s service areas improve the offer for 

children who are NEET Theme 12 has an aim to ensure effective youth development and youth 

justice services, it recognises that Bridgend has reduced the number of first-time entrants into the 

youth justice system and made significant improvements to BYJS (as reported by regulators). 

Additionally, there is a recognition that we have reduced reoffending rates. 

 

The plan outlines that we will: 

 

• identify those most likely to offend at the earliest stage possible including identification work 

with schools. 

• work with partner agencies to implement a local serious violence duty. 

• develop the Youth Bureau Diversion Model. 

• provide a trauma response to best meet needs at an early stage. 

• embed and meet reporting requirements for the new KPIs from April 2023; and 

• reduce the number of children who are NEET. 

 
The Youth Justice Board Strategic Plan 2021-24 aims to ensure that children are unnecessarily 
criminalised as a result of their vulnerabilities and the challenges they face. BYJS continues to strive 
to be a youth justice system that sees children as children, treats them fairly and helps them to build 

Page 67



   

 

on their strengths so they can make a constructive contribution to society. This will prevent offending 
and create safer communities with fewer victims.  
 
BYJS aims to drive system improvements that treat children as children. The plan has an emphasis 
on a number of main priorities. These are: 
 

• to promote a holistic approach to address challenges facing children in contact with the youth 
justice system. 

• to maximise opportunities for children; and 

• to promote sector led practice development and strengthen ways to disseminate what is 
known about working with children across the youth justice sector and beyond. 

 
BYJS will strive to meet these priorities and “promote children’s individual strengths and capacities 
to develop their pro-social identity for sustainable desistance, leading to safer communities and 
fewer victims.” 
 
Additionally, the current aim for BYJS is to be constructive and future-focused, build on supportive 
relationships that empower children to fulfil their potential and make positive contributions to society. 
It will encourage children’s active participation, engagement and wider social inclusion through 
having its own participation plan.  
 
It will also ensure the service provides meaningful collaboration with children and their carers with 
varied strategies for engagement.  
 
It will promote and develop its prevention service, so children are removed from the justice system 
using effective pre-emptive prevention, diversion and minimal intervention which minimises 
criminogenic stigma.  
 
BYJS have completed an annual training need plan for 2023-2024 which has been completed with 
a whole team approach as well as looking at individual roles within the team. 
 
BYJS has experienced one serious incident in the past year. Currently this case is ongoing through 
the court process and once an outcome is reached, BYJS will collaborate with children’s social care 
to ensure learning through its safeguarding strategic and operational boards. BYJS will provide a 
detailed account of the period of its involvement to the safeguarding board when requested.  
 
The definition of evidence-based practice is ‘integration of the best available and accessible 
evidence with professional expertise, in the context of working with children in contact with the Youth 
Justice system.’  Professor Stephen Case, an expert in criminology at Loughborough University, 
has published a summary report “Child First Justice” setting out the evidence-base for the ‘Child 
First’ principle – the foundation of a progressive approach to how children should be understood, 
treated and supported after experiencing problems that have led them to commit a crime.  

BYJS will continue to:  

Ensure the best interests of children, recognising their particular needs, capacities, rights, and 
potential. The service wants to ensure that its work is child-focused and developmentally informed. 
Strive to develop pro-social identity for positive child outcomes: promote children’s individual 
strengths and capacities as a means of developing their pro-social identity for sustainable 
desistance, leading to safer communities and fewer victims, work being strength and positive 
outcome focussed, built on supportive relationships that empower children to fulfil their potential and 
make positive contributions to society. 
 

Page 68

https://www.lboro.ac.uk/subjects/social-policy-studies/staff/stephen-case/


   

 

Create collaboration opportunities with children that encourages children’s active participation, 
engagement, and wider social inclusion. All work carried out by BJYS should have a meaningful 
collaboration with children and their carers 
 
In terms of Bridgend’s younger children (aged 10 to 14), BJYS will: 
 
Promote diversion and aim for its children to not enter the justice system, using pre-emptive 
prevention, diversion, and minimal intervention as evidence says that children will not then have 
criminogenic stigma 
 

It will develop its work for this age group on evidence-based practice and the latest research outlined 
in the report, ‘Supporting its youngest children in the youth justice system. What works to reduce 
offending and improve outcomes.’  This research indicates there is strong evidence that family 
system approaches (for example, family therapy and multi-systemic therapy) are effective at 
reducing disruptive behaviour, antisocial behaviours, conduct disorder and substance use for all 
ages of children and some evidence they are more effective in younger children. 
 
Behavioural approaches (for example, behavioural contracts) have been shown to be effective for 
reducing persistent offending behaviour for all ages of children 

Police-led diversion schemes, using cautions, restorative actions and referrals to other services to 
avoid arrest have been shown to reduce re-offending rates by about 20% relative to usual practice. 
However, we also know that contact with the criminal justice system generally increases re-offending 
rates. Therefore, care should be taken when using police-led approaches not to increase contact 
with offending communities or negative contacts with the police 

While there is a strong evidence base to suggest restorative justice approaches are effective at both 
reducing repeat offending and improving victim satisfaction rates in older children, there is a lack of 
evidence about effectiveness when used with children under the age of 14 years. Restorative justice 
may be less appropriate at earlier developmental stages so there needs to be work completed to 
ensure restorative work at this level is adapted for use with younger children. 
 
Build on our ECM system that recognises and responds to the impact of ACEs and trauma on child 
behaviour. This is likely to mean providing training for professionals across sectors (including the 
police). It may also mean introducing earlier assessments to identify children likely to need more 
intensive support 
 
Take a youth-led approach to designing or selecting activities and interventions. Evidence from 
practice suggests this will increase uptake and avoid wasting resources on unpopular programmes 
 
Develop a culture of cooperation and support between linked youth offending services. In case 
studies, participants reported this facilitated programme success regardless of the approach taken. 
Good relationships between services improved the experiences of organisations, professionals, 
families, and children. 
 
Continue to offer speech and language assessments for all children aged 12 and below to screen 
for unidentified developmental needs that may impact engagement with the BYJS as well as wider 
partner agencies and education.  
 
Use of the Good Lives Model 
 

Page 69



   

 

The Good Lives Model is an important strengths-based component which is embedded within the 
Asset plus assessment system. It proposes that we all need to achieve a balance in our lives and, 
in so doing, develop pro-social ways of accomplishing primary goods that revolve around: 
 

• secure relationships.  

• health and wellbeing.  

• community inclusion and involvement. 

• the importance of agency.  

• spirituality.  

• excellence in work and play. 

• creativity. 

• knowledge. 

• pleasure; and  

• inner peace. 
 
Tony Ward - The Good Lives Model of Offender Rehabilitation - Profiles. (n.d.). suggests that 
when people offend, they are attempting to achieve these goals but in anti-social, or perhaps 
impulsive ways which sometimes lack effective coping strategies or problem-solving skills. This 
requires BYJS to support children to understand this model and encourage children to build on 
their skills and abilities and set achievable and realistic targets that help them achieve their 
aspirations in a legitimate and pro-social way.  
 
BYJS has ran a series of workshops that empower staff to have the confidence to work with the 
Good Lives Model. To learn how it can incorporate trauma informed and strength-based, task 
centred work which draws on research which suggests that these approaches are effective in 
promoting desistance.  
 
 

Conclusion 
 
 
In conclusion, there are currently several challenges for the service. These include: 
  
Implementing the trauma model effectively in cases is currently a challenge for our service. We 
recognise the importance of developing the team's trauma practice skills and building their 
confidence to ensure that the model is fully utilised. Additionally, we understand the significance of 
gaining support from multiple agency partnerships and promoting attendance at formulation 
meetings. These meetings are crucial for fostering consistent responses and interventions that aim 
to establish trust, nurture relationships, and provide individualised support to children, ultimately 
promoting stability in their lives. 

 
Although we have made significant progress in incorporating trauma-informed practice and ECM, 
we still face the hurdle of obtaining buy-in from other agencies. It is vital for us to demonstrate to all 
agencies that children who have experienced trauma require special case management in order to 
recover and reach their full potential. By actively participating in trauma-informed meetings, 
agencies can enhance and support outcomes for these children. To address this challenge, BYJS 
is currently in the co-design phase of a new project backed by the Youth Endowment Fund. This 
initiative aims to implement trauma-informed practice across various partner agencies, raising 
awareness of ECM and its benefits. Furthermore, it will enable our partners to access formal trauma 
training specifically tailored to BYJS's approach, thus facilitating a unified and effective response to 
trauma. One of the main risks for this project is the evaluation may deem the model as less effective.  

Page 70



   

 

However prior evaluations (albeit small numbers) have concluded this model of practice to have 
shown positive effects on both children, families and staff. 

 
A key challenge faced by BYJS, and the wider local authority is the need to respond consistently to 
children who present with exploitation issues. This challenge highlights the importance of BYJS's 
involvement in the planning process led by Cwm Taf Morgannwg, which aims to establish a 
contextualised safeguarding process. The goal of this process is to provide a timely and appropriate 
safeguarding response for children who are potentially at risk of exploitation. The ultimate objective 
is to ensure that every child, regardless of the nature of the exploitation they may be facing, has an 
accurate and individualised multi-agency safety plan in place.  
 
To address this challenge effectively, it is crucial for BYJS to collaborate closely with other agencies 
and stakeholders involved in the safeguarding of children. This collaboration will facilitate a 
coordinated and comprehensive approach that considers the specific circumstances and needs of 
each child. By actively participating in the contextualised safeguarding process, BYJS can contribute 
its expertise and experience to the development of robust safety plans. 

 
Furthermore, it is essential for BYJS to enhance its understanding of various forms of exploitation 
and stay up to date with the latest research, strategies, and interventions related to tackling 
exploitation. This knowledge will enable BYJS to provide informed and effective support to children 
who are victims of exploitation. Building partnerships with specialist organisations and professionals 
and having membership on the newly formed exploitation panel in Bridgend to further develop a 
regular communication channel with those who specialise in addressing exploitation, can also 
strengthen BYJS's response and ensure that the children receive the necessary support and 
interventions. 

 
In addition to these measures, it is crucial for BYJS to advocate for increased awareness and training 
on exploitation-related issues within the wider local authority and among partner agencies. By 
promoting a shared understanding of exploitation and its impact on children, BYJS can foster a 
collective commitment to addressing these issues and develop a consistent response across all 
agencies involved. 
 
Overall, by actively engaging in the contextualised safeguarding process, prioritising knowledge and 
expertise in tackling exploitation, being a panel representation for Youth Justice as part of Bridgend 
exploitation operational panel and promoting collaboration and awareness, BYJS can contribute to 
the development of a robust and effective multi-agency response to safeguarding children at risk of 
exploitation. 

 
A significant issue that we are currently facing is the high rate of violent offending. This poses a 
challenge for BYJS as we strive to reduce these rates over the next year. To address this challenge 
effectively, BYJS has devised a comprehensive plan that involves analysing data and conducting 
quality assurance audits for individual cases. By closely examining patterns and responses, we aim 
to gain valuable insights that will inform our strategies for reducing violent offending. We are also 
part of the wider serious violence strategy for the region and are currently assisting in the production 
of the strategic plan with the Cwm Taf Morgannwg regional partnership. 
 
The analysis of data plays a crucial role in understanding the underlying factors contributing to the 
high rates of violent offending. By examining demographic information, socio-economic factors, and 
contextual variables, we can identify potential risk factors that make certain individuals more 
susceptible to engaging in violent behaviour. This data-driven approach allows us to develop 
targeted interventions and prevention programmes that address the specific needs and 
circumstances of at-risk children. This data will be shared at a local level with partners and assist to 
formulate the action plan. 

Page 71



   

 

 
Conducting quality assurance audits for individual cases is another integral part of our strategy. 
These audits enable us to thoroughly review the handling of each case, ensuring that proper 
procedures and interventions are implemented. By examining the effectiveness of our responses, 
we can identify any gaps or areas for improvement. This information is then used to refine our 
practices, enhance our interventions, and tailor our services to better support children involved in 
violent offending. 
 
BYJS recognises the importance of collaboration and partnership with external agencies, community 
organisations, and relevant stakeholders in addressing violent offending. By fostering these 
relationships, we can develop a coordinated approach that involves sharing best practices, 
resources, and expertise. Collaborative efforts can lead to the implementation of comprehensive 
and holistic interventions that address the root causes of violent behaviour, while also promoting 
positive youth development. 
 
Additionally, it is crucial for BYJS to invest in prevention and early intervention strategies. By 
identifying individuals at risk of engaging in violent behaviour at an early stage, we can provide 
targeted support and intervention to address underlying issues and prevent escalation. Early 
identification and intervention contribute to breaking the cycle of violence and promoting positive life 
outcomes for children. 
 
An additional challenge lies in the provision of health services within BYJS. Although this provision 
has improved, we face resource limitations in terms of health provision. This challenge has been 
raised at the management board level and has had the attention at the chief executive level, with 
efforts underway to extend and augment the existing resources available to us. It is imperative that 
we address this issue to ensure that the health needs of the children we work with are met 
adequately. 

 
One specific area that continues to require attention is the provision of CAMHS. Our last inspection 
report highlighted CAMHS as a significant challenge. Whilst progress has been made in this area, 
there is still work to be done to meet the demand for CAMHS support. Recognising the importance 
of collaboration, CAMHS representation has been established on the Management Board. This 
development has facilitated valuable connections with professionals through the implementation of 
a SPOA provision. The SPOA provision acts as a direct link between BYJS Health Specialist, Case 
Managers, and CAMHS, streamlining the process of accessing necessary support for children. 
There is also a link CAMHS Operational Manager who assists to problem solve where there are 
blockages or barriers to intervention. 

 
Furthermore, plans are underway to create a specialist CAMHS post that will be shared between 
Bridgend and Cwm Taf Youth Justice Services. This plan aims to increase the provision of CAMHS 
services specifically for the children with whom we work. By sharing resources and expertise across 
services, we can expand the support available to children, ensuring their mental health needs are 
addressed effectively. 

 
In addition to addressing CAMHS provision, it is essential that we examine the broader health offer 
within BYJS. This includes assessing the availability of general healthcare services, substance 
abuse treatment, and other specialised health support. By conducting a comprehensive assessment 
of our current health provision, we can identify gaps, allocate resources appropriately, and 
collaborate with relevant health professionals and agencies to ensure that the holistic health needs 
of the young individuals are met. 
 
It is crucial to advocate for increased funding and resources for health provision within BYJS. This 
can involve engaging local health authorities to emphasise the importance of investing in the health 

Page 72



   

 

and well-being of children involved in the justice system. By highlighting the positive impact of good 
health provision on rehabilitation, reintegration, and reducing reoffending rates, we can get support 
and resources to strengthen our health services offered to support the children we work with. 
 
Over the past year, BYJS has experienced significant changes in terms of staffing. While the core 
team members have accumulated a wealth of experience and expertise over the years, the recent 
period has witnessed the recruitment of several new staff members. These additions bring fresh 
perspectives and skills to the team, contributing to its overall strength and effectiveness. However, 
there is a continued necessity to ensure the training and development of all staff to ensure they are 
upskilled to deliver effective and good quality Youth Justice services. 
 
Starting from April 2022, BYJS has welcomed a range of new professionals into key positions. A 
new Service Manager has joined the team, bringing valuable leadership and strategic planning 
abilities. The appointment of two new operational managers has enhanced the team's capacity to 
effectively manage and coordinate operations on a day-to-day basis. Additionally, a new senior 
practitioner has been appointed, adding specialised knowledge and experience to support the 
team's frontline work. Moreover, recognising the importance of data analysis and quality assurance, 
a new Data Performance and Quality Assurance Officer has been brought on board to ensure that 
data-driven decision-making and evaluation practices are in place. 

 
There have also been significant changes within the case management team. Two social workers 
are currently on maternity leave, which has needed adjustments in workload distribution and support 
mechanisms. In response to these changes, two new social workers have been recruited to maintain 
the necessary staffing levels and ensure the continuity of services. Furthermore, three new 
appointments have been made within the wider case management team, strengthening the team's 
capacity to provide comprehensive support and interventions for children involved in the justice 
system. 

 
The new additions to BYJS present both opportunities and challenges. On the one hand, the intake 
of fresh talent and expertise allows for innovative practices and approaches to address the needs 
of children more effectively. The diversity of experiences and perspectives within the team can foster 
creativity and continuous improvement in service delivery. 
 
On the other hand, intake of new staff members into the existing team structure requires careful 
planning and support. Comprehensive induction and training programmes to familiarise the new 
team members with the policies, and procedures is vital. Promoting a positive team culture and 
facilitating effective communication channels can foster a sense of belonging and collaboration 
among all team members. BYJS should also use the expertise and experience of the existing long 
term team members. Their long- standing knowledge and understanding of the children can serve 
as a valuable resource for the new staff, helping them navigate their roles more effectively and 
ensuring a smooth transition. 

 
Under the revised measures requires BYJS to showcase how its interventions and programmes 
align with the new performance standards. This entails demonstrating the positive impact of their 
work on young individuals' well-being, rehabilitation, and successful reintegration into society. We 
are committed to continually evaluating and refining its practices to ensure they are evidence-based 
and effective. This may involve implementing innovative approaches, collaborating with partner 
organisations, and regularly reviewing outcomes to make data-driven improvements. By actively 
evidencing their practice, the Youth Service can showcase its value, secure continued support, and 
promote a culture of continuous learning and improvement. 
 
Furthermore, BYJS is keenly aware of the importance of providing appropriate support for children 
with ALN. As defined in the ALN legislation, identifying and addressing the educational needs of 

Page 73



   

 

young individuals with ALN is vital to ensure they receive the necessary support to thrive. BYJS is 
committed to working closely with educational institutions, relevant agencies, and families to ensure 
that adequate ALN provision is in place for those identified as requiring it. This may involve 
developing personalised education plans, facilitating access to specialised support services, and 
advocating for resources to meet the diverse needs of young individuals with ALN. 
 
In conclusion, the implementation of new performance measures presents a substantial challenge 
for BYJS in the year ahead. Addressing this challenge requires revising data collation systems to 
accurately capture the required information and demonstrating how the service's practices align with 
the revised measures. Ensuring appropriate ALN provision for young individuals is also crucial to 
promote their educational development and well-being. By actively addressing these challenges, 
BYJS can enhance its effectiveness. 
 

Forward look 
 
 
There are several key areas that require attention and development in order to enhance the 
effectiveness of BYJS. The following sections outline the forward-looking conclusions for each area: 
 
Bureau new model of practice 
 
To ensure the continuous improvement of service delivery, the implementation of the Bureau new 
model of practice is essential. This new model should be designed to streamline processes, improve 
coordination among agencies, and enhance communication and information sharing 
 
Prevention 
 
The prevention aspect of BYJS needs to be further strengthened. This involves adopting proactive 
strategies and interventions to address risk factors and prevent children from engaging in offending 
behaviours.  
 
Health services 
 
Recognising the importance of addressing the health needs of children in the justice system, it is 
crucial to prioritise the provision of comprehensive health services. This includes physical, mental, 
and emotional well-being support. The forward look should outline the strategies and collaborations 
intended to improve the accessibility and quality of health services for the young individuals served. 
 
ALN 
 
To cater to the diverse needs of children with additional learning needs, specific measures should 
be implemented. This involves developing tailored interventions, providing adequate support within 
the justice system, and collaborating with relevant educational and support services.  
 
TRM 
 
The implementation and evaluation of the TRM within Bridgend Early Help Services, Youth Support 
Services, and BYJS should continue. The forward look should detail the next steps, including 
ongoing evaluation, staff training plans, and potential adjustments to the model based on evaluation 
outcomes. 
 
Exploitation 
 

Page 74



   

 

Given the concerning links and behaviours identified through the mapping exercise, addressing 
exploitation remains a priority. The forward look should emphasise the collaboration with the Child 
Exploitation Team and other relevant agencies to investigate cases, provide support to affected 
children, and develop strategies to prevent exploitation in the future. 
 
Emerging concerns and Children’s Services 
 
As emerging issues and concerns arise within the Children’s Services Department; it is crucial to 
remain vigilant and adaptive. The forward look should address how these emerging concerns may 
impact BYJS and outline the planned actions to mitigate risks and effectively respond to evolving 
needs. 
 
Signs of Safety and ne Plan 
 
The forward look should incorporate the importance of the Signs of Safety approach and the 
development of One Plan for children involved in the justice system. This includes aligning practices 
with the Signs of Safety framework, promoting multi-agency collaboration, and ensuring 
comprehensive planning and coordination of support services. 
 
To enhance the voice of the child and ensure their active involvement in the intervention process, 
BYJS has developed comprehensive plans. These plans aim to create a more personalised and 
empowering experience for the children involved. Here are some key initiatives that will be 
implemented: 
 
Renaming interventions to suit children's preferences 
 
As mentioned earlier, the service recognises the importance of using language that resonates with 
the children. By renaming interventions to align with their preferences, the service aims to foster a 
sense of ownership and engagement. The new names will reflect the children's interests, 
aspirations, and cultural identities, creating a more relatable and motivating experience. 
 
Pen picture of service professionals 
 
To establish a stronger connection between the children and the professionals working with them, 
the service will create pen pictures of service professionals. These pen pictures will provide a brief 
summary of the professionals' backgrounds, areas of expertise, and personal interests. This 
initiative allows the children to get to know their support team on a more personal level, fostering 
trust and a positive working relationship. 
 
One-age profile of the child 
 
The service will develop a one-page profile for each child involved in the intervention program. This 
profile will serve as a comprehensive snapshot of the child's strengths, needs, preferences, and 
aspirations. It will capture relevant information about their personal background, interests, and 
support requirements. The one-page profile will be a living document that can be regularly updated 
to reflect the child's progress and changing needs. 
 
Following the Child Through Intervention Years  
 
To ensure continuity and consistency, the one-page profile of the child will follow them throughout 
their intervention years. This means that the profile will be updated and shared with professionals 
involved in the child's journey, including new staff members who join the service. By maintaining a 

Page 75



   

 

consistent record of the child's preferences, needs, and progress, the service can deliver targeted 
and individualised support at every stage. 
 
Regular review and updates 
 
The one-page profile of the child will be regularly reviewed and updated to reflect their evolving 
needs and aspirations. This process will involve collaboration with the child, their families, and 
professionals working closely with them. By actively involving the child in the review and update 
process, the service ensures that their voice and preferences are at the forefront of decision-making. 
 
Through these initiatives, BYJS aims to empower the child, strengthen their sense of identity and 
agency, and provide a more personalised and effective intervention experience. By actively 
considering the child's preferences, aspirations, and individuality, the service creates an 
environment where their voice is heard, valued, and integrated into the decision-making process. 
 
Additionally, it is imperative to include a plan for workforce development within the forward look. The 
training plans and initiatives designed to enhance the knowledge, skills, and capacity of staff 
members needs to be reviewed on a regular basics. The focus should be on aligning the workforce 
with the evolving needs of the Youth Justice system and equipping staff with the necessary tools to 
provide effective and evidence-based interventions. 
 
In summary, the forward look for BYJS encompasses various aspects, including the Bureau new 
model of practice, prevention efforts, health services, addressing additional learning needs, TRM 
implementation, combating exploitation, responding to emerging concerns, and workforce 
development through training plans. These areas of focus aim to improve service delivery, enhance 
outcomes for children, and ensure the continued development and effectiveness of the service. 
 

Sign off, submission and approval 
 

Chair of BYJS Board - name  
 

 
Lindsay Harvey 
 

Signature 
 

 

 
 

Date 
 

 
29 June 2023 
 

 
 
 

Page 76



   

 

Appendix 1 
 
Bridgend Youth Justice Management Board Membership 
 

Representative  
 

Title Organisation 

Lindsay Harvey Chair Education and Family Support, 
Bridgend County Borough 
Council 

Lee Evans Clinical Service Group 
Manager 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg University 
Health Board 

Lisa Davies Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services 
 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg University 
Health Board 

Carolyn Hoskins 
 

Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Services 
 

Cwm Taf Morgannwg University 
Health Board 

Emma Richards Head of Probation 
Delivery Unit 

National Probation Service 

Christopher Grey 
 

Detective Chief Inspector South Wales Police 

Nicola Echanis Head of Service 
Education and Family 
Support 

Education and Family Support, 
Bridgend County Borough 
Council 

Mark Lewis Group Manager Family 
Support 

Education and Family Support, 
Bridgend County Borough 
Council  

Marisa Douglas Group Manager Children’s Social Care, 
Bridgend County Borough 
Council  

Martin Morgans Head of Partnership 
Services 

Community Safety Partnership, 
Bridgend County Borough 
Council  

Sam Gunnarsson Wellbeing and 
Safeguarding Manager 

Bridgend College 

Nik Bunston 
 

Service Manager   Barod 

Michael Dix-Williams 
 

Service Manager Victim Support  

Christa Bonham – Griffiths 
 

Youth Justice Service 
Manager 

BYJS 

Anne-Marie Jackson Deputy Head of Childs 
Unit 

G4S Care and Rehabilitation 
Services, HMP and YOI Parc 
 

   

 
 
 
 

Page 77



   

 

Scheduled BYJS Management Board Meetings  
 

Date Meeting name 

9 June 2023 Joint Management Board and staff team development 
session 

12 September 2023 Management Board meeting 

16 November 2023 Management Board meeting 

18 January 2024 Management Board meeting 

 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 78



   

 

Appendix 2 – Service Structure Chart  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group Manager – Family Support 
Mark Lewis 

Bridgend Youth Justice Service Manager 
Christa Bonham-Griffiths 

 
 

Need 

Operational Manager 
Catherine Evans  

 

Operational 
Manager 

Kevin Reeves 
 

Social 
Worker 

Stephanie 
Gill 

 

Social 
Worker 
Anne-
Marie 

Griffiths 

Social 
Worker 
Molly 
Price 

Social 
Worker 

Shannan 
Hughes 

Intervention 
Co-

ordinator 
Nerys 

Stadden 

Intervention 
Co-

ordinator 
Janine 

Hutchinson 

Intervention 
Co-

ordinator 
Helen 

Parsons 

Court 
and Bail 

Co-
ordinator 
Anthony 
Landeg 

Reparation 
and Unpaid 
Work Co-
ordinator 

James 
Dixon 

Training and 
Employment 

Officer 
Tyrone 

Hughes 

Victim 
Officer 
Tanya 

Thomas 

Panel and 
Volunteer Co-

ordinator 
Teri Davies 

Head of Education and Family Support 
Nicola Echanis 

Senior Practitioner 
HMP Parc (YJS)  

Russ Willey 
 

Data Performance 
and Quality 
Assurance 

Debbie Jones 

Court and 
Bail Co-

ordinator 
Anthony 
Landeg 

Senior Education 
Engagement Co-
ordinator Anne-

Hebah Price 

Senior Education 
Engagement Co-

0rdinator 
Sarah Dauncey 

Police 
Officer 

Sally Lloyd 

Intervention 
Co-

ordinator 
Natasha 

Biella 

Probation 
Officer 

Sian Issac 

P
age 79



V.06 

 

 
 

Page 80



 

  
Meeting of:  

 
SUBJECT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 1 

 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
11 September 2023 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 

 
Report Owner / 
Corporate Director:  

 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL & REGULATORY SERVICES, HR 

& CORPORATE POLICY 
 

 
Responsible 
Officer:  

 
MERYL LAWRENCE 

SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER – SCRUTINY 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to 
the review and development of plans, policy or strategy that 
form part of the Council’s Policy Framework and 
consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the 
power to promote or improve economic, social or 
environmental wellbeing in the County Borough of 
Bridgend. Any changes to the structure of the Scrutiny 
Committees and the procedures relating to them would 
require the Bridgend County Borough Council Constitution 
to be updated. 

Executive 
Summary:  
 

The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to develop and implement a 
Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to propose items for the 
Forward Work Programme having regard for the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for 
the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have 
oversight and refer any cross-cutting topics to a Committee 
or Research and Evaluation Panel. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider and agree its Forward 
Work Programme, identify any specific information it 
wishes to be included in and any invitees they wish to 
attend for the reports for the next two Committee meetings, 
identify any further items for consideration on the Forward 
Work Programme having regard to the criteria set out in the 
report, consider the Recommendations Monitoring Action 
Sheet and note that the proposed draft Forward Work 
Programmes for the Subject Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees will be reported to the next meeting of COSC. 
 
The Committee is also asked to note the content of the 
Dashboard for Quarter 3 Performance against the Corporate 
Plan 2022-23 for Social Services and Wellbeing. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 
a) Present the Committee with the proposed draft outline Forward Work 

Programme (Appendix A) for discussion and consideration; 
 

b) Request any specific information the Committee identifies to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Request the Committee to identify whether there are presently any further items 
for consideration on the Forward Work Programme having regard to the 
selection criteria in paragraph 3.6 of this report; 
 

d) Present the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet (Appendix B) to track 
responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at previous meetings; 

 

e) Note that the proposed draft Forward Work Programme, any feedback from the 
Committee and the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be reported 
to the next meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC), 
with the comments from each respective Subject Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (SOSC), following consideration in this cycle of Committee meetings. 

 

f) To present, for information, the Dashboard for Quarter 3 Performance against 

the Corporate Plan 2022-23 for the Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate 

(Appendix C). 

 
2. Background  
 
2.1 The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

to develop and implement a Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
2.2 The Council’s Constitution also provides for each Subject Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee to propose items for the Forward Work Programme having regard for 
the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Risk Management framework, for the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to have oversight and refer any cross-
cutting topics to a Committee or Research and Evaluation Panel. 

 
 Best Practice / Guidance 
 
2.3 The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny’s (CfGS) Good Scrutiny Guide recognises 

the importance of the Forward Work Programme. In order to ‘lead and own the 
process’, it states that Councillors should have ownership of their Committee’s work 
programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and evaluating it. The Good 
Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny workload 
should be coordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken 
in a timely and well-planned manner.  

 

Page 84



 

2.4 Forward Work Programmes need to be manageable to maximize the effective use 
of the limited time and resources of Scrutiny Committees.  It is not possible to 
include every topic proposed.  Successful Scrutiny is about looking at the right topic 
in the right way and Members need to be selective, while also being able to 
demonstrate clear arguments for including or excluding topics.  

 
2.5    The CfGS’s guide to effective work programming ‘A Cunning Plan?’ makes the 

following reference to the importance of good work programming: 
 

‘Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done 
well it can help lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely work on issues 
of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can end up 
wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any work done is likely to 
be minimal.’ 
 

 
3. Current situation / proposal  
 

Draft Outline Forward Work Programmes 
 
3.1 Following the approval of the schedule of Scrutiny Committee meeting dates at the 

Annual Meeting of Council on 17 May 2023, the standing statutory reports to this 
Scrutiny Committee of: the Corporate Plan, the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) and Budget, Performance and Budget Monitoring, etc. have been mapped 
to the appropriate timely meeting dates into a draft Forward Work Programme. 

 
3.2  The draft outline Forward Work Programme for each Scrutiny Committee have been 

prepared using a number of difference sources, including:  
 

• Corporate Risk Assessment;  

• Directorate Business Plans; 

• Previous Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme report topics / minutes; 

• Committee / Member proposed topics; 

• Policy Framework; 

• Cabinet Work Programme; 

• Discussions with Corporate Directors; 

• Performance Team regarding the timing of performance information.  
 

3.3 There are items where there is a statutory duty for Policy Framework documents to 
be considered by Scrutiny, e.g., the MTFS including draft budget proposals 
scheduled for consideration in December 2023 and January 2024, following which 
COSC will coordinate the conclusions and recommendations from each of the 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committees in a report on the overall strategic 
overview of Cabinet’s draft Budget proposals to the meeting of Cabinet in February 
2024.   
 

3.4  An effective Forward Work Programme will identify the issues that the Committee 
wishes to focus on during the year and provide a clear plan.  However, at each 
meeting the Committee will have an opportunity to review this as the Forward Work 
Programme Update will be a standing item on the Agenda, detailing which items are 
scheduled for future meetings and be requested to clarify any information to be 
included in reports and the list of invitees.  The Forward Work Programme will remain 

Page 85



 

flexible and will be revisited at each COSC meeting with input from each Subject 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee reported and any updated information gathered 
from Forward Work Programme meetings with Corporate Directors. 

 
3.5 The Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee Draft Forward Work Programmes will 

be reported to the next meeting of COSC, with the comments from each respective 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee for coordination and oversight of the 
overall Forward Work Programme.  The SOSC Forward Work Programmes will be 
included in the standing Forward Work Programme Update report from then on with 
any feedback from each SOSC meeting included. 

 
 Identification of Further Items 
 
3.6 The Committee are reminded of the Criteria Form which Members can use to 

propose further items for the FWP which the Committee can then consider for 
prioritisation at a future meeting.  The Criteria Form emphasises the need to 
consider issues such as impact, risk, performance, budget and community 
perception when identifying topics for investigation and to maximise the impact 
scrutiny can have on a topic and the outcomes for people.  Criteria which can help 
the Committee come to a decision on whether to include a referred topic, are set out 
below: 

 
 Recommended Criteria for Selecting Scrutiny Topics: 
 
 PUBLIC INTEREST:  The concerns of local people should influence the issues 

chosen for scrutiny;  
 
 ABILITY TO CHANGE:  Priority should be given to issues that the Committee 

can realistically influence, and add value to;  
 
 PERFORMANCE:  Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council 

is not performing well;  
 
 EXTENT:  Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all 

or large parts of the County Borough, or a large number 
of the Authority’s service users or its population; 

 
 REPLICATION:  Work programmes must take account of what else is 

happening in the areas being considered to avoid 
duplication or wasted effort.  

 

 Reasons to Reject Scrutiny Topics: 
 

 • The issue is already being addressed / being examined elsewhere and change is   
              imminent.  

 • The topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and can be referred there).  

 • Scrutiny involvement would have limited / no impact upon outcomes. 

 • The topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial. 

 • The topic is too broad to make a review realistic and needs refining / scoping. 

 • New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year.  

 • The topic area is currently subject to inspection or has recently undergone  
    substantial change / reconfiguration. 

Page 86



 

 
Corporate Parenting 
 

3.7 Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a local 
authority towards care experienced children and young people. This is a legal 
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children 
Act 2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek for children in public care the 
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a 
whole is the ‘Corporate Parent’, therefore all Members have a level of responsibility 
for care experienced children and young people in Bridgend. 

 
3.8 In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how each item they consider 

affects care experienced children and young people, and in what way can the 
Committee assist in these areas. 
 

3.9 Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of 
the ongoing work of the Cabinet Committee Corporate Parenting and particularly 
any decisions or changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents. 

 
3.10 The draft outline Forward Work Programme for the Committee is attached as 

Appendix A for the Committee’s consideration. 
 
3.11 The Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet to track responses to the 

Committee’s recommendations made at previous meetings is attached as 
Appendix B. 

 
3.12  The Dashboard for Quarter 3 Performance against the Corporate Plan 2022-23 for 

the Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate are attached for information as 
Appendix C.  

 
 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
    
4.1  The Protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 
the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales,  

with 5 Ways of Working to guide how public services should work to deliver for 
people. The following is a summary to show how the 5 Ways of Working to achieve 
the well-being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this 
report: 

 

• Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the planning of Scrutiny 
business in both the short-term and in the long-term on its policies, budget and 
service delivery. 

Page 87



 

 

• Prevention - The early preparation of the Forward Work Programme allows for 
the advance planning of Scrutiny business where Members are provided an 
opportunity to influence and improve decisions before they are made by 
Cabinet. 

 

• Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives. 
 

• Collaboration - Consultation on the content of the Forward Work Programme 
has taken place with the Corporate Management Board, Heads of Service and 
Elected Members. 

 

• Involvement - Advanced publication of the Forward Work Programme ensures 
that stakeholders can view topics that will be discussed in Committee meetings 
and are provided with the opportunity to engage. 

 

5.2  When setting its Forward Work Programme, the Committee should consider how 
each item they propose to scrutinise assists in the achievement of the Council’s 7 
Wellbeing Objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 as follows :-   
 
1. A County Borough where we protect our most vulnerable 
2. A County Borough with fair work, skilled, high-quality jobs and thriving towns 
3. A County Borough with thriving valleys communities 
4. A County Borough where we help people meet their potential 
5. A County Borough that is responding to the climate and nature emergency 
6. A County Borough where people feel valued, heard and part of their community 
7. A County Borough where we support people to live healthy and happy lives  

 
 

6. Climate Change Implications  
 
6.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects climate 

change, the Council’s Net Zero Carbon 2030 target and how it meets the Council’s 
commitments to protect and sustain the environment over the long term. There are 
no Climate Change Implications arising from this report.    
 
 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects care 

experienced children and young people, and in what way the Committee can assist 
in these areas. Safeguarding is everyone’s business and means protecting peoples’ 
health, wellbeing and human rights, and enabling them to live free from harm, abuse 
and neglect. There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications arising 
from this report.    

 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 

Page 88



 

9. Recommendation 
 

9.1   The Committee is recommended to: 

 
a) Consider the proposed draft outline Forward Work Programme for the 

Committee in Appendix A, make any amendments and agree the Forward 
Work Programme.  
 

b) Identify any specific information the Committee wishes to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Identify whether there are presently any further items for consideration on the 
Forward Work Programme having regard to the selection criteria in paragraph 
3.6 of this report. 
 

d) Consider the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet in Appendix B to track 
responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at previous meetings; 
 

e) Note that the proposed draft Forward Work Programme, any feedback from the 
Committee and the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet will be reported 
to the next meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (COSC), 
with the comments from each respective Subject Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (SOSC), following consideration in this cycle of Committee meetings. 

 
f) Note the content of the Dashboard for Quarter 3 Performance against the 

Corporate Plan 2022-23 for the Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate in 
Appendix C. 

 

 

Background documents 
 
None.  

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Outline Forward Work Programme 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 

 
 

 

Friday 26 May 2023 at 11.00am 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
EFS Strategic Plan  

 
 
Provide Subject Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 1 (SOSC1) 
members with an opportunity to view 
and comment on the draft Education 
and Family Support Directorate 
(EFS) Strategic Plan 2023-2026.  
 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education 
Officers 
Corporate Director – Education and 
Family Support  
Group Manager School Support  
Group Manager Inclusion and School 
Improvement  
School Programme Manager 
Group Manager Business Support  
Group Manager Family Support  
 
CSC 
Managing Director  
Assistant Director for Curriculum and 
Professional Learning  
Principle Improvement Manager 
 
Headteacher Nominees 
Headteacher Nantyfyllon Primary 
School 
Headteacher Penfai Church in Wales 
Primary School 
Headteacher Bryntirion Comprehensive 
School and Chair of BASH  
 
External 
  

 
 
 

Thursday 13 July 2023 at 11.00am – CANCELLED  

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Draft Outline Forward 
Work Programme 

 Cabinet Members – NA  
 
Officers - NA 
 
CSC - NA 
 
Headteacher Nominees - NA 
 
External - NA 
  

 
 

Page 91



 
 

Monday 11 September 2023 at 11.00am 

Report Topics Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
 
Youth Justice Service 
Update and Operational 
Plan  
 
 

 

 

T12 within the Education 

Directorate Strategic Plan 

 

 

 
Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
 
Officers 
Corporate Director of Education and 
Family Support  
Operational Managers, Youth Justice 
Service  
  
 
CSC  
N/A 
 
Headteacher Nominees 
N/A  
 
External 
 

 
 
 
 
Draft Outline Forward 
Work Programme 

  
Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
 
Officers 
Corporate Director of Education and 
Family Support  
 
CSC  
 
Headteacher Nominees 
 
External 
 

 
 

Thursday 12 October 2024 at 11.00am 
Report Topics Information Required / 

Committee’s Role 
Invitees 

 
 

Whole School Approach 
to emotional health and 

wellbeing 

 
 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education 
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing  
Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet 
Member for Social Services  
 
Officers 

Page 92



Group Manager Inclusion and School 
Improvement  
Group Manager Family Support  
 
CSC  
 
Headteacher Nominees 
Headteachers  
Wellbeing Lead  
 
External 
Youth Council members  
 

 
Monday 4 December 2024 at 11.00am 

Report Topics Information Required / Committee’s 
Role 

Invitees 

 
Adult Community Learning  

 
Proposed Information report 
 
 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
 
Officers 
 
CSC  
 
Headteacher Nominees 
 
External 
 

 
 
Youth Services report  
 
 

 
Pre-meeting site visit to small, 
medium, and large primary school. 
 
Further details on funding as well as 
consideration of provision of staff, 
kitchen equipment and space for 
pupils. 
 
Delays in Capital Schemes – 
Universal Free School Meals; 
looking at schools and whether they 
are ready   
 
 

 Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Community Safety 
and Wellbeing   
 
Officers 
 
CSC  
 
Headteacher Nominees 
 
External 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Thursday 18 January 2024 at 11.00am 
Report Topics Information Required / 

Committee’s Role 
Invitees 

 
Draft Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2024-

 Cabinet Members 
Leader of Council  

Page 93



25 to 2027-28 and Budget 
Proposals 
 

Deputy Leader of Council and Cabinet 
Member for Social Services and Early 
Help 
Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Resources and Legal  
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
Officers 
Chief Executive  
Chief Officer Finance, Performance and 
Change  
Corporate Director Education and 
Family Support  
 
Head of Education and Family Support  
Interim Deputy Head of Finance  
Interim Finance Manager Budget 
Management: Communities, Education 
and Family Support  
 
CSC  
 
Headteacher Nominees 
Chair of Schools Budget Form 
Chair of BASH  
 
External 
 

 
 

Monday 18 March 2024 at 11.00am 
Report Topics Information Required / 

Committee’s Role 
Invitees 

 
 

Curriculum for Wales 
Update and Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
(WESP)   

 
2 March 23 – Recommendation from 
COSC - The challenges of recruiting 
Welsh speaking teachers into the 
County Borough be included in the 
scope of the report on Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan. 
 

Cabinet Members 
Cabinet Member for Education  
 
Officers 
 
CSC  
 
Headteacher Nominees 
 
External 
 

 
 
Members briefing sessions  
 

• Session to be held to update Members on recommencing of reporting exam 

results. 

• How leadership and safeguarding is being audited.  

 
Information reports to be provided  

Page 94



 

• English Language School’s catchment areas / capacity  
 

• Early Help Service Pressures 
 

• Appointment of Local Education Authority (LEA) governors – Policy and 

rules - Criteria and procedure for the appointment and removal of local 

authority school governors’  

 
Items to be scheduled 2024/25 
 

• Universal Primary Free School Meals (UPFSM) Programme – early summer 

2024.  

• RLN implementation update – June / July 2024.   

• Annual review of EFS Plan and direction of travel.  

 
Potential Items to be scheduled  
 

• Upgrading of older school facilities that are not being replaced under school 

modernisation.  

• Home to school transport / safe routes to schools  

• Governing Bodies – Support and funding. Invitation to be extended to 

representatives and the Governors Association.  

• Monitor the implications of any proposed reduction to school delegated 

budget – on school budgets, staffing structures, redundancies, and any 

resulting impact on pupils.  

• Central South Consortium – How they have provided value for the schools in 

the County Borough 

• School catchment areas, pupil admission numbers and new school builds 

 

 
 
Outcomes from 2022-23: 
 
13 March 2023: 

 
 

• The Committee agreed to monitor in the form of an outcome report as to 

how leadership and safeguarding is being audited, specifically in relation 

to the collaboration within the authority between Social Services and 

Education and Wellbeing directorate, working closely together, to ensure 

schools are receiving specialist support timely.  

  

  

26 May 2023: 
 

Page 95



• referrals from schools into early help, they asked Offices if they were 
seeing an influx of referrals from any particular areas of the county and 
whether there were any concerns or particular areas - They continued 
there would be a piece of work done to look in more detail in terms of 
where referrals were coming from and whether there is specific support 
needed to be offered in those areas. 
 

• Members expressed concern over the support for the wellbeing of children 

and felt it was responsible and proactive to have services in place and for 

them to be available in a timely manner for the children and parents who 

needed them.  Officers advised there was a wide range of support 

available and discussed the Whole School Approach to emotional health 

and wellbeing that they had piloted in conjunction with the Health Board. 

This pilot was coming up for its second year so there would be data pilot 

analysis should the Committee wish to have an information report to 

consider if needed as a Forward Work Programme item.   

 
 

 

Page 96



APPENDIX F 

 
 

Subject Overview & Scrutiny Committee 1 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 2023-24 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members expressed concern regarding the 
retention of school staff and their wellbeing. 
They discussed the importance of the 
support pupils received for their wellbeing 
and felt that staff wellbeing should be of 
equal priority. Members recommended that 
the narrative regarding the support for staff 
in T1 Pupil and staff wellbeing be 
strengthened to reflect this.  
 

 Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

During discussions regarding pupil 
attendance and levels of absence, 
Members requested a breakdown of the 
reasons for and the numbers of absence 
and recommended that these be included 
in the Plan.  
 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members considered the success 
indicators relating to T2 Support for pupil 
behaviour, attendance, and exclusions 
and highlighted that assessing progress 
towards the achievement of the objective ‘a 
reduction in fixed term and permanent 
exclusions’ would only be meaningful if all 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 97



APPENDIX F 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

schools were following the School 
Attendance Policy to ensure consistency. 
Members recommended there be a 
standardised Exclusion Policy referenced 
in the Plan to ensure assurance in the data 
provided and accurate measurement of the 
improvements.  
 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members recommended that there be 
more granular detail in the Plan on how the 
ambition for completion of the statutory 
training modules by School Governors 
could be measured annually and that a 
baseline be provided in the Plan to 
demonstrate the target to be achieved.  
 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members noted the plan to increase the 
support for parents with vulnerable children 
under T3 Support for vulnerable children 
and young people and recommended that 
there be more detail in the Plan to include 
how this was to be achieved, how the 
current support could be measured and 
how to ensure that the support increases in 
the future.  
 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members discussed how a video produced 
by Brynteg Comprehensive School in 
relation to T5 Curriculum for Wales and 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 98



APPENDIX F 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

assessment gave a better understanding 
of the new curriculum and recommended 
that this be made available to other schools 
and to the Members themselves.  
 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members discussed the importance of the 
safeguarding training module for School 
Governors and made a recommendation to 
support the Directorate in advocating 
Welsh Government to consider making it a 
statutory requirement.  
 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members expressed concern regarding 
potential increased utility bills and impact 
on pupils, due to outdated facilities in 
existing older schools. Whilst Members 
noted that refurbishment and maintenance 
of older schools was within the remit of the 
Property Team and not the EFS 
Directorate, it was recommended that this 
should still be referenced in the Plan.  
 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members discussed T14 Effective Welsh 
in Education Strategic Plan to promote 
the Welsh language and Welsh-medium 
education and felt that the objective 
appeared to be tailored towards younger 
learners and improving Welsh speakers 
and recommended the objective be 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support 

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 99



APPENDIX F 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

expanded to include what was being done 
to promote and improve the use of the 
Welsh language in secondary schools.  
 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Members expressed concern that without 
definitions of the three numbered parts in 
each stage of the RAYG (Red 
(unsatisfactory), Amber (adequate), Yellow 
(good) and Green (excellent)) statuses, it 
was difficult to understand the criteria for 
the top, middle and bottom score in each 
RAYG status. Members recommended that 
the RAYG Self-evaluation guidelines be 
revisited and that a discussion take place 
with partners to ensure that the targets set 
were achievable, for example an ambition 
to achieve a rating of 8 by August 2026 
from a current rating of 4 in T2 Support for 
pupil behaviour, attendance, and 
exclusions and 9 by August 2026 with the 
current rating of 6 in T5 Curriculum for 
Wales and assessment and other 
examples in the Plan.  
 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support 

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

A detailed breakdown of the individual 
grants once all grants were consolidated 
and available which was offered by 
Officers, in response to Members 
questions regarding the financial 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Central South 
Consortium  

Recommendations circulated 
requesting response - to be 
provided. 

P
age 100



APPENDIX F 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

implications of the report including what 
external grants and capital funding were 
expected for 2023-24.   

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

The anonymised data for the Food for Fun 
Programme collated from the previous year 
and the available data from this year, when 
available, for the Members of the 
Committee to compare, which Officers 
offered to provide to Members in response 
to Members’ questions whether records 
had been kept of the participants of the 
Food and Fun programme within the 
‘Successes to date’ and ‘Improvement 
objectives’ of T1 Pupil and staff wellbeing, 
and what the plans were going forward.   

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support /  
Group Manager 
- Family Support 

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Figures and data regarding the length of 
waiting times for school based counsellors, 
that Officers offered to provide in response 
to Members’ concerns regarding the length 
of waiting list times for school based 
counsellors, although Officers were not 
aware of the lists being significant. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support /  
Group Manager 
- Family Support 

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

P
age 101



APPENDIX F 

 
 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Recent data from the annual monitoring  
undertaken byt the Educational Psychology 
Service that Officers offered to provide in 
response to Members’ referring to T1 Pupil 
and staff wellbeing in the report which 
outlined the well-established support from 
the Educational Psychology Service and 
highlighted the emotional and social 
wellbeing support role of Learning Support 
Assistants and their continued training, 
asking  whether the roles were undertaken 
by dedicated staff and if every school had 
them 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support /  
Group Manager 
Inclusion and 
School 
Improvement 

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

Links from Central South Consortium 
regarding the staff wellbeing service 
funded by Welsh Government. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support / 
Central South 
Consortium 

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

More information on when Officers 
expected to meet the objective in T4 
Support for children and young people with 
additional learning needs, that 60 
Additional Learning Needs Co-Ordinators 
would receive bespoke training to meet the 
needs of pupils 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support /  
Group Manager 
Inclusion and 
School 
Improvement 

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

In relation to T11 Effective childcare and 
early years offer, a timeline in relation to 
the Flying Start roll out and which childcare 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support /  

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

P
age 102



APPENDIX F 

 
 

 

Date of 

Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

providers are included across the County 
Borough. 

Group Manager 
- Family Support 

26 May 2023 EFS Strategic 
Plan 2023-2026 

An update on recruitment of staff for school 
breakfast clubs and kitchens. 

Director of 
Education and 
Family Support /  
Group Manager, 
Business 
Support 

ACTIONED – response and 
information circulated 9 August 
2023.  
 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

1 

Education and Family Support - Performance Q3 2022-2023 
 
Performance is predominantly positive, with only a few commitments and performance measures showing performance below target.  All commitments are either green or amber.  The directorate is making good 
progress on delivering its strategy in support of the Corporate Wellbeing Objectives. While long-term sickness is reducing slowly, the cumulative sickness for the first three quarters is higher in both the 
directorate and across schools against last year.  The directorate will be able to achieve its MTFS savings for the year. 
 

Commitments 2022-23 
BRAG – progress against 
commitment 

 

All Indicators (incl. Finance and sickness PIs) Corporate Plan Indicators 
Q3 Directorate Commitments to 
delivering Wellbeing objectives 

Total Blue Red Amber Green Performance vs Target Trend vs Q3 2021-22 Performance vs Target 
Trend vs Q3 2021-22 
(excluding Finance) 

Wellbeing Objective One – 
Supporting a successful 
sustainable economy 

6   1 5 

    

Wellbeing Objective Two – 
Helping people and 
communities to be more healthy 
and resilient 

1   1  

Wellbeing Objective  Three –  
Smarter use of resources 

3 1  1 1 

Finance 
 

High Corporate Risks 

Revenue budget 
 

• The net revenue budget for the Education and Family Support 
Directorate for 2022-2023 is £138.068m. 

• The current year-end projected outturn is £138.863m with a projected 
under spend of £795,000. 

•  

Capital budget 
 

• At Q3, the capital budget for the Directorate for 2022-2023 is £12.025m 
with total expenditure of £2.980m and no foreseen under or overspend 
to planned budget. 
 

Efficiency savings 
 

Savings (£000) 2022-23  
% 

2022-23 

Savings target  £68 100% 

Likely to be achieved £68 100% 

Variance £0 0% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Additional financial information is provided in the Budget Monitoring 2022-23 – 
Quarter 3 Revenue Forecast report presented to Cabinet on 17 January 2023. 

 
Oversight of corporate risks are collectively undertaken and managed by the Corporate Management Board (CMB).  The 
Corporate risk register can be found as Appendix F and should be viewed in the overall context of the performance of this 
dashboard to understand the risks.  Some are Council wide whilst others focus on specific directorates.  
 

Risks are escalated at a corporate level from the directorate’s risk register and are formally reviewed quarterly by the 
directorate Senior Management Team (SMT).   
 
Intelligence gathered by officers from communication and information from key suppliers (principally school transport 
operators) on their ability to fulfil current tenders for transport provision has identified a risk relating to ‘important council 
services being compromised due to the failure of a key supplier’.   
 
This is because the behaviour of suppliers is changing with the hand back of contracts due to either the inability of operators to 
make a profit against the current contract value or the lack of drivers. 
 
The majority of school transport services are delivered by the private sector and therefore this risk has been escalated from the 
directorate to the corporate risk register.  
 
 

Consultation, engagement, and involvement 

 
Childcare Sufficiency Assessment consultation closed on 16 December 2022. 
 
The statutory consultation on the enlargement of Coety Primary School has been concluded. 
 
 
 

1

2
1

1

1

2

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

WBO1 WBO2 WBO3 Other

5

1

3

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

3

>10% off

<10% off

On target

On target & improved

2

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

↑ ↓ ↔ ↙

P
age 105



    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

2 

  

Implications of financial reductions on service performance and other key Issues/challenges 

 

• Recruitment and retention issues continue across most services. 

• Securing funding for continuation of grant funded projects is challenging. 

• Difficulty with attracting service providers to new Welsh-medium early years provision. 

• Ongoing capacity issues caused by the Neurodevelopmental Pathway.  

• Management of Educated Other than at School (EOTAS) is challenging. 

• Delayed commencement of capital schemes including Community Focused Schools and for Universal Primary Free School Meals. 

• Availability of support from across the local authority to delivery key capital works. 
 

Regulatory Tracker  

Report 
Issued 

Name of 
Audit/Regulator 

Recommendation/Proposal for improvement 
Responsible 

officer 
Delivery 

date 
Update on actions and progress at Q3 

RAG (at 
Q3) 

Open / 
Closed 

June 
2022 

HM Inspectorate 
of Probation, 
inspection of 
youth offending 
services in 
Bridgend 

1. The Chair of the Bridgend Youth Justice Service (BYJS) 
Management Board should: consider the membership of the 
board, to ensure that it is attended by representatives with 
the right level of seniority and put in place a plan to develop 
the board so that its members understand their role and 
responsibilities 

ML March 2023 

Board membership has been reviewed and confirmed. The 
Management Board has identified a new chair and Board 
members. Roles and responsibilities will be reinforced and a 
national performance indicator on Board attendance will be 
in place from April 2023.  

Blue Closed 

2. The Chair of the BYJS Management Board should: review 
the format and purpose of the Bureau and ensure that it has 
the relevant information and input from the necessary 
agencies so that the out-of-court disposal meets the needs of 
the child. 

ML March 2024 

In-house Bureau process has been reviewed. Confident that 
existing arrangements are fit for purpose. However, we are 
waiting on the outcome of an all-Wales out of court disposal 
review that will recommend necessary future changes to 
existing systems.  

Amber Open 

3. The BYJS Management Board should: make sure that the 
partnership has a multi-agency framework in place for 
children who are at risk of, or subject to, child exploitation and 
ensure that there are clear procedures for practitioners to 
follow. 

ML May 2023 

The Regional Safeguarding Board has developed a multi-
agency forum focussing on a strategy and toolkit to address 
child exploitation issues. 
 
Bridgend Youth Justice is represented on this group. There 
is a draft of the toolkit that is being trialled by social workers 
within Children’s Social Care’ and Youth Justice Teams. 

Amber Open 

4. The BYJS service manager should: improve the quality of 
planning and services to manage children’s safety and 
wellbeing 

n/a n/a 

Quality assurance peer audit and training on safety and 
wellbeing planning for all BYJS staff has been completed. 
 
The service now aligns the BYJS plan to children’s services 
planning. 

Blue Closed 

5. The BYJS service manager should: review the quality 
assurance processes and improve the effectiveness of 
management oversight in all cases. 

n/a n/a 

A peer quality assurance group is in place and there is 
regular managerial oversight for BYJS assessments which 
is monitored via the Management Board performance 
framework report. 

Blue Closed 

P
age 106



    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

3 

KEY: 

Overall performance judgement 

Status Descriptor 

EXCELLENT 
 
 

Very strong, sustained performance and practice 

GOOD 
 
 

Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement 

ADEQUATE and needs 
improvement 

Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects require 
improvement 

UNSATISFACTORY and 
needs urgent improvement Important weaknesses outweigh strengths 

 

 

Commitments 

Status Meaning  Descriptor  

BLUE Complete 
Project (or task within a project/plan) is completed and is 
no longer a priority.  

GREEN 

Progressing as planned 
and according to 
designated time, budget 
and desired outcomes. 

Actions completed within timescales, on budget and 
evidence of achieving desired outcomes 

AMBER 
Issues that could delay 
progress 

Task/action looks liable to go over budget 
Task/action agreed deadlines show slippage 
Task/action within 2 weeks of deadline - not started 
Risk or issue score increases (review required) 

RED Significant issues 
Task/action over budget 
Task/action agreed deadline breached 
Risk or issue score increases to critical or catastrophic 

Performance indicators 

Status Definition 

GREEN 
On target  or better AND Performance has improved compared to last year (or 
performance is at maximum and cannot be improved on) 

YELLOW On target  

AMBER Target is within 10%  

RED Target is missed by 10% or more 

Performance Indicators (Trend) Performance Indicator types 

 
Performance has improved compared to last year. CP Corporate Plan indicator 

 Performance has maintained (this includes those at maximum)   

 
Performance has declined BUT within 10% of the last year   

 
Performance has declined by 10% or more compared to previous year   

P
age 107



    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan 
Q3 2022-23 

Page 4 of 11 
 

WBO1: Supporting a successful sustainable economy 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.1 Sustain the current good pupil 
performance at key stage 4. 
(EFS) 

Green 

Quarter 3: There are ongoing discussions with secondary schools related to the progress of Key Stage 4 learners and retention 
of Post-16 learners.  The improvement partners continue to work with all school leaders to ensure that effective evaluation and 
improvement processes are in place and maintained. We are aligning our monitoring processes with the Welsh Government 
school improvement guidance 'Framework for evaluation, improvement and accountability', to review pupil progress at Key Stage 
4 and Post-16. In line with Welsh Government guidelines, there is no data available for comparison, although an announcement 
made on 19 January 2023 suggests an interim return to the use of Key Stage 4 Capped 9 data. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref, PI 
Type, link to 

WBO 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q3 22-23 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 

Target Actual 

DEFS152 
CP 
WBO1 

Percentage of all schools 
that have effective 
evaluation and 
improvement processes in 
place. 
Higher Preferred 

New 
22.23 

100.00% 100% 100% 100% 95.0% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Alignment with Welsh Government guidance 268/2021, 'School 
improvement guidance: framework for evaluation, improvement and accountability’ and 
also cognisant of changes to methods of assessment due to the pandemic. 
Performance: Improvement partners continue to work with all school leaders to ensure 
that effective evaluation and improvement processes are in place and maintained. 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.2 Raise standards of 
literacy in primary 
schools. (EFS) Green 

Quarter 3: Recent inspections have not identified literacy as a concern in schools. School improvement planning and 
evaluation processes are in place. School self-evaluation work with improvement partners has identified where additional work 
is needed to support learners after the disruption caused by the pandemic. This particular commitment, which focuses on 
standards of literacy is not as relevant now as previously, and schools would prefer a focus on the implementation of the new 
curriculum. 

Work with representatives 
from schools to assess 
progress made against the 
agreed Directorate priorities. 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.3 Improve outcomes 
for post-16 learners 
in school sixth forms. 
(EFS) 

Green 

Quarter 3: The Inspire 2 Work team, in partnership with colleagues from Vulnerable Groups Support, Inspire 2 Achieve and 
Careers Wales, are currently tracking the destinations (actual and planned) of all school leavers utilising the Careers Wales 5 
Tier Model of Engagement. Partnership links have been developed, creating direct routes for young people to make contact 
with work-based learning providers. Nationally across Wales, as we have witnessed in Bridgend, young people identifying as 
not in education, employment, or training (NEET) have increased but the national data for the 2021-2022 academic year will 
not be published before April 2023. We are seeing far more young people suffering with depression/anxiety disorders, with 
many awaiting Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) support. With regard to the Post-16 offer, a process is in 
place for schools to submit 'Statements of Intent' for any changes to their curriculum so that they might be considered by other 
schools in case there is scope for wider collaboration or to avoid duplication. A pilot for the shared teaching of Welsh A Level 

Development of a Post-16 
Improvement Plan for Heads 
of Sixth Form to align with 
school and Directorate 
priorities and assist with self-
evaluation processes and 
identification of appropriate 
professional learning 
opportunities. 

P
age 108

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1110&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4303&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1134&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1129&read=true


    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

Page 5 of 11 
 

through a blended learning approach (between two schools) is currently underway and has been reviewed by the Curriculum 
Development Leaders Group to inform future practice in other schools/settings. 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.4 Assess the impact of the Covid-
19 school closures on outcomes 
for learners and support schools 
to mitigate teaching and 
learning issues as a result of 
the pandemic (EFS) 

Amber 

Quarter 3: Information on the Central South Consortium school professional learning is collated and shared with all 
headteachers and governing bodies via the new Termly School Summary. Schools accessing support through the 
professional learning programme and collaboration networks support the development of the strategic priorities following 
the school self-evaluation processes. The progress and impact of strategic priorities on improvements to provision and 
outcomes for learners are monitored through the school self-evaluation processes. One of the 20 non-maintained 
settings has received a Care Inspectorate Wales Priority Action Report following an inspection that identified regulatory 
breaches and shortcomings. Whilst this is not ‘Estyn Review’ it is of significant concern. 

Support officers are 
offering enhanced 
support to the setting, 
and more frequent 
monitoring visits. 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.5 Support schools to provide safe 
learning environments for all 
learners and staff in schools. 
(EFS) 

Green 

Quarter 3: A directorate Safeguarding Board was established in October 2022 to review and ensure all managers within 
the Education and Family Support Directorate are clear on their roles and responsibilities related to this area. This board 
will meet termly to continue to look at safeguarding data and practice across the directorate and to share information 
related to policies and procedures. Schools in Bridgend have all adopted the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Safeguarding Board 
policy. Audits are completed by schools in relation to their safeguarding approach. These have recently been analysed 
highlighting that 54 schools are rated as green with 6 rated as amber. This is an improvement in comparison to last year 
as there are no longer any schools rated as red. Delivery is ongoing of the activities identified in the current version of 
the Corporate Health and Safety Unit’s (CHSU) Corporate Health and Safety Action Plan. 

 

 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO1.1.6 Deliver the priorities in the 
Welsh in Education Strategic 
Plan (WESP) to promote Welsh 
medium education and increase 
the number of Welsh speakers 
to support Cymraeg 2050. 
(EFS) 

Green 

Quarter 3: The WESP co-ordinator started in post on 1 September 2022. The five-year Welsh in Education Strategic 
Plan (WESP 2022-2027) was submitted to Welsh Government by the deadline of 16 December 2022. Workshops had 
been held with Welsh in Education Forum (WEF) members to feed into the development of the five-year plan. The first 
WEF meeting for the ten-year WESP (2022-2032) took place in November 2022. All sub-groups had met prior to the 
WEF. Chairs and terms of reference have been agreed for all sub-groups. Welsh language immersion provision has 
been established with a teacher and a learning support officer (LSO) appointed to support this activity. 

 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref, PI 
Type, link to 

WBO 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q3 22-23 
RYAG vs 

Target 

Q3 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction of 
Travel 

compared to 
same period 

last year 

Comments 

Target Actual 

DEFS138 
Local 
WBO1 

Percentage of Year 1 
learners taught through the 
medium of Welsh. 
Higher Preferred 

7.67% 8.7% 
8.04% 

Annual 
Actual 

8.7% 
Annual 
Target 

8.04% 
Annual 
Actual 

7.67% 
Annual 
Actual 

 

 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: A target of between 14% - 18% by 2032 has been set by Welsh 
Government to support ‘Cymraeg 2050.’ 
Performance: The total number of Year 1 learners in the four Welsh-medium primary 
schools in the 2021-2022 academic year, as measured by PLASC (Pupil Level Annual 
School Census), was 129. This compares to a total of 122 in the previous academic 

P
age 109

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1127&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1128&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1125&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4280&read=true


    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

Page 6 of 11 
 

year. The total number of Year 1 learners across all schools was 1605, compared to 
1591 in the previous academic year. Therefore, there was an increase in the percentage 
of learners taught through the medium of Welsh compared to the previous year. 

 

Other indicators linked to achieving WBO1 

PI Ref, PI 
Type, link 
to WBO 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q3 22-23 
RYAG vs 

Target 

Q3 21-
22 

(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction 
of Travel 

compared 
to same 
period 

last year 

Comments 

Target Actual 

DEFS155 
Local 
WBO1 

The number of safeguarding 
audits completed by schools 
that are rated as green 
Higher Preferred N/A 60.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: All schools have received extensive training and support related to their 
safeguarding responsibilities. This should be reflected within their safeguarding audits. 
Performance: Interim comments: This is an annual task. The audits are completed in the 
autumn term and analysed in the spring term. The analysis of safeguarding audits has 
commenced and a report will be presented to CMB and CCMB in February 2023. Therefore, the 
annual data will be reported in Q4. It is anticipated that the target will be achieved. 

 

WBO2: Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO2.1.2 Target the use of early 
intervention services to reduce 
demand on statutory services. 
(EFS) Amber 

Quarter 3: Edge of care services are delivering successful interventions, but 
data capture is not in place. The Rise Service is working well since its 
implementation in Q2 2022-2023. As at the end of Q3, the percentage of 
completed Team Around the Family support plans that close with a successful 
outcome was better than target. An effective system is in place for monitoring 
young offenders, but not all are engaging in education, training or employment 
(ETE). 

Links are being made with Legal Services to gather required 
information and the service is continuing to liaise with the 
corporate ICT Department to develop reporting facilities. Revised 
systems are being implemented, with a staff member in place, to 
monitor the most complex youth offending cases, prepare a 
programme of ETE intervention, and encourage engagement with 
the in-house Agored system. 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref, PI 
Type, link to 

WBO 
PI Description and Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q3 22-23 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 21-
22 

(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction 
of Travel 

compared 
to same 
period 

last year 

Comments 

Target Actual 

DEFS29 
CP 
WBO2 

The percentage of completed TAF (Team Around the 
Family) support plans that close with a successful 
outcome. 
Higher Preferred 

73.0% 70.0% 78% 70% 75% 73.0% 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Improved performance against a backdrop of 
increased demand and complexity of cases. 
Performance: Performance is above target, despite the 
increasing complexity of cases. 

 

  

P
age 110

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4318&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1138&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4102&read=true


    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

Page 7 of 11 
 

WBO3: Smarter use of resources 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.1.2 Provide sufficient school 
places in the right areas 
by delivering 21st 
Century Schools’ under 
the council’s schools’ 
modernisation 
programme. (EFS) 

Amber 

Quarter 3: The statutory processes in respect of the replacement Heronsbridge School and Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr have 
concluded, and Cabinet approval has been received to implement the proposals as per the published notices. Cabinet approval 
was received to co-locate Welsh-medium childcare provision with the replacement Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr. The design 
process has commenced for the replacement Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr. A multi-disciplinary design team is being procured for 
the Heronsbridge School scheme. Therefore, the design did not commence by the target date of 31 December 2022. The 
replacement Mynydd Cynffig Primary School is in the design process. The Stage 1 report in respect of the replacement Ysgol y 
Ferch o’r Sgêr and the new English-medium school (that is, the replacement for Afon Y Felin and Corneli Primary Schools) has 
been submitted to Welsh Government for consideration and the local authority is awaiting the outcome of this process. Cabinet 
has modified the opening date of the English-medium school to September 2024. Construction of the Welsh-medium childcare 
scheme at Bettws was completed and the building was handed over to the local authority. The Ogmore Valley scheme is under 
construction. The design process commenced in respect of a mobile classroom at Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Ogwr. Heronsbridge 
School – temporary accommodation at Bridgend College was handed-over to the local authority in September 2022. A planning 
application has been submitted for the six-classroom block for Bryntirion Comprehensive School. Following Cabinet approval, 
consultation commenced on a proposal to enlarge Coety Primary School. Cabinet approval was received to consult on a 
proposal to establish a Welsh-medium seedling school and to co-locate childcare provision at Porthcawl. There has been an 
increase in surplus places in our primary schools, primarily due to a reduction in the primary school population. There has been 
a decrease in surplus places in our secondary schools due to an increase in the secondary school population. Pupil population 
variations are not within the control of the local authority. 

Design on Heronsbridge 
School will commence 
once the multi-
disciplinary design team 
has been appointed and 
is expected before 
March 2023. 
Progress the design of  
capital schemes. 
Report the outcome of 
the Coety Primary 
School consultation to 
Cabinet. Commence 
consultation on the 
proposed Welsh-medium 
seedling school and 
childcare provision at 
Porthcawl. 

 

Performance Indicators 

PI Ref, PI 
Type, link to 

WBO 

PI Description and 
Preferred Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q3 22-23 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 21-
22 

(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction 
of Travel 

compared 
to same 
period 

last year 

Comments 

Target Actual 

DCH2.1.11.1 
Local 
WBO3 

The percentage surplus 
capacity in primary 
schools. 
Lower Preferred 11.63% 10% 

14.63% 
Annual 
Actual 

N/A 
14.63% 
Annual 
Actual 

11.63% 
Annual 
Actual 

 

 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: National guidance indicates a recommended 10% surplus. 
Performance: Two factors determine the number of surplus places - the size of the primary 
school population and the capacity in primary schools generated by the use of the available 
accommodation. A decrease in the primary school population and increased capacity due to 
changes in the way primary schools use their accommodation have resulted in an increase in 
surplus places. 

DCH2.1.11.2 
Local 
WBO3 

The percentage surplus 
capacity in secondary 
schools. 
Lower Preferred 18% 18% 

17% 
Annual 
Actual 

N/A 
17% 

Annual 
Actual 

18.0% 
Annual 
Actual 

 

 

Annual Indicator 
Target Setting: National guidance indicates a recommended 10% surplus. 
Performance: Two factors determine the number of surplus places - the size of the secondary 
school population and the capacity in secondary schools generated by the available 
accommodation. While there has been no change to total secondary school capacity, there has 
been increase in the secondary school population, which has reduced the number of surplus 
places. 

 

 

P
age 111

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1106&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4006&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4007&read=true


    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

Page 8 of 11 
 

Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.3 Implement the planned budget 
reductions identified in the 
MTFS, in particular for the 
2022-23 financial year, set 
annual balanced budgets and 
establish long term financially 
sustainable solutions. (EFS) 

Green 

Quarter 3: There has been a review of the Financial Scheme for Schools. The financial position of all schools is under constant 
review in a number of arenas. Schools in deficit budget positions are required to write a plan to manage the deficit and if the deficit is 
significant, they are required to meet with the Head of Service - these meetings are currently being undertaken. Significant surplus 
budgets are also subject to scrutiny. The Head of Service has oversight of all audits of schools. The Q3 budget position for the 
Education and Family Support Directorate is that the £68k savings target for 2022-2023 will be met in full. Welsh Government 
changed the terms and conditions of the grant for the Adult Community Learning service area, which impacted on the core budget 
and deliverability of the original proposal. However, the directorate has identified alternative budget reduction proposals to replace 
this saving. 

  

 

Performance Indicators 

 
Commitment 

Code Commitment Status Comments Next Steps 

WBO3.2.4 Adapt our ways of working to make better use 
of our assets and build on the technological 
progress accelerated by COVID. (EFS) 

Blue 
Quarter 3: Work is ongoing to implement the Capita One system across the directorate. While there have been 
several unforeseen security issues, these have been addressed and the base system has been implemented. 
The implementation timetable for the add-on modules remains under review. 

 

 

 

Other Performance Indicators 

PI Ref, PI 
Type, link 
to WBO 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q3 22-23 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction 
of Travel 

compared 
to same 
period 

last year 

Comments 

Target Actual 

CHR002iv 
Local 
Other 
priority 

Number of working days per full 
time equivalent lost due to 
sickness absence (Education 
and Family Support Directorate, 
excluding schools). 
Lower Preferred 

12.60 
days 

No 
target 

5.71 
days 

No 
target 

9.46 
days 

9.04 days 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Directorate sickness targets are set corporately. While there is no target 
for 2022-2023, the corporate aim is for a reduction in sickness absence. 
Performance: When compared with Q3 in 2021-2022: - there was an increase in the 
number of absences from 341 to 402; - the percentage of absences for 7 days or less 
increased from 68% to 75%; - the percentage of absences of 21 days or more decreased 
from 24% to 16%; and - the total number of FTE days lost in Q3 decreased from 1948 to 
1818. Cumulatively, the total number of FTE days lost increased from 4197 in 2021-2022 to 
4478 in 2022-2023. The top three reasons for FTE days lost up to the end of Q3 2022-2023 
were stress/anxiety/depression not related to work at 19.07%, musculoskeletal disorders at 
14.09% and bereavement-related absences at 12.63%. 

PI Ref No PI Description 

Annual 
target  
22-23 
£’000 

Performance as at Q3 Comments 

Red Amber Green Performance: . The £68k saving target for 2022-2023 will be met in full. Welsh 
Government changed the terms and conditions of the grant for the Adult 
Community Learning service area, which impacted on the core budget and 
deliverability of the original proposal. However, the Education and Family Support 
Directorate has identified alternative budget reduction proposals to replace this 
saving through a review of supplies and services budgets across the directorate. 

£’000 % £’000 % £’000 % 

DEF143 
CP feeder 
WBO 3 

Value of planned budget reductions 
achieved (Education and Family 
Support Directorate) 

£68 £0 0% £0 0% £68 100% 

P
age 112

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1126&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/actionplan/actionplan.asp?id=1118&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=3982&read=true


    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

Page 9 of 11 
 

PI Ref, PI 
Type, link 
to WBO 

PI Description and Preferred 
Outcome 

Year 
End 

21-22 

Target 
22-23 

Q2 
position 
22-23 & 
RYAG 

Q3 22-23 RYAG 
vs Target 

Q3 21-22 
(same 
period 

last 
year) 

Direction 
of Travel 

compared 
to same 
period 

last year 

Comments 

Target Actual 

DEFS132 
Local 
Other 
priority 

Number of working days per full 
time equivalent lost due to 
sickness absence (schools). 
Lower Preferred 

10.56 
days 

No 
target 

4.37 
days 

No 
target 

7.94 
days 

7.40 days 

 

 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: Directorate sickness targets are set corporately. While there is no target 
for 2022-2023, the corporate aim is for a reduction in sickness absence. 
Performance: When compared with Q3 in 2021-2022: - the number of absences increased 
from 1,327 to 1,803; - the percentage of absences for 7 days or less increased from 73% to 
80%, while the percentage of absences of 21 days or more decreased from 18% to 9%; 
and - the total number of FTE days lost in Q3 increased from 7,617 to 8,064. Cumulatively, 
the total number of FTE days lost to the end of Q3 was 12,097 for 2021-2022 and 
increased to 13,103 for 2022-2023. The top three reasons in terms of FTE days lost to the 
end of Q3 in 2022-2023 were stress/anxiety /depression not related to work at 20.61%, 
musculoskeletal disorders at 15.93% and infections at 14.54%. . 

CORPB1d 
Local 
Other 
priority 

Percentage of safeguarding e-
learning (including workbook) 
completions (EDFS Directorate) 
Higher Preferred 

90.46% 100.0% 
No data 
available 

100% 87.99% 90.7% 
 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: All staff should either have completed the existing e-learning module or 
should complete the new module, once available. 
Performance: Data for Q2 (not Q3) has just become available and the position is below 
target. It is believed that this is due to a number of new starters and staff being on long-
term sickness absence. However, the e-learning is a mandatory module and should be 
completed as part of induction. The Group Manager, Vulnerable Groups Support will 
address this with the directorate senior management team. 

CORPB1e 
Local 
Other 
priority 

Percentage of safeguarding e-
learning (including workbook) 
completions (schools) 
Higher Preferred 

72.04% 100.0% 
No data 
available 

100% 69.54% 64.41% 
 

Quarterly Indicator 
Target Setting: All staff should either have completed the module or should complete the 
new module, once available. 
Performance: Q2 (not Q3) data has just become available. Schools have reported that all 
staff have undertaken their mandatory two-year face-to-face training and are up to date 
with their safeguarding knowledge. However, e-learning is a mandatory module and must 
be completed. The Group Manager, Vulnerable Groups Support will reinforce this 
requirement with schools in all appropriate forums. 

 
  

P
age 113

https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4243&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4306&read=true
https://pmf.bridgend.gov.uk/live/pi/pi.asp?id=4307&read=true


    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

Page 10 of 11 
 

 
 
Additional Sickness Information by Service Area – Education 
 

 

 
 
Additional Sickness Information by Service Area – Schools 
 
 

 QTR3 2021-22 QTR3 2022-23    

Unit 

 FTE 
31.12.2022 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per 
FTE 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per FTE 

Cumulative 
Days per 
FTE 2021-

22 

Cumulative 
Days per FTE 

2022-23 

Primary Schools 1076.17 3534.35 623 3.26 3517.15 780 3.27 7.23 7.54 

Secondary Schools  933.35 2880.20 523 3.20 2849.21 717 3.05 5.92 6.53 

Special Schools  251.73 1202.24 181 5.02 1697.13 306 6.74 13.65 14.84 

Schools Total 2261.25 7616.79 1327 3.43 8063.49 1803 3.57 7.40 7.94 

 
  

 
 QTR3 2021-22 QTR3 2022-23    

Unit 
 FTE 

31.12.2022 
Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per 
FTE 

Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

No. of 
Absences 

Days 
per FTE 

Cumulative 
Days per 

FTE 2021-22 

Cumulative 
Days per 

FTE 2022-23 

Business Support 29.09 51.00 3 2.09 51.00 2 1.75 2.27 2.86 

Catering Services (CAT) 109.27 496.84 198 4.69 533.76 233 4.88 10.50 11.46 

Family Support 184.45 673.79 51 3.62 581.37 63 3.15 8.13 9.14 

Learner Support 123.15 725.93 89 5.89 621.57 98 5.05 12.08 12.08 

School Modernisation 4.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 2.00 0.00 

School Support 15.27 0.00 0 0.00 1.00 1 0.07 0.00 0.79 

Vulnerable Groups 19.46 0.00 0 0.00 29.34 5 1.51 0.00 2.23 

Education & Family Support 
Directorate Total 

484.69 1947.56 341 4.22 1818.04 402 3.75 9.07 9.46 

P
age 114



    Appendix F - Education and Family Support Performance against Corporate Plan Q3 2022-23 

Page 11 of 11 
 

 
Sickness Absence by Reason 
        
 Education & Family Support Directorate Schools 

Absence Reason 

Q1 
Number of 
FTE days 

lost 

Q2 Number 
of FTE days 

lost 

Q3 
Number 
of FTE 
days 
lost 

Total 
Number 
of FTE  
Days 
Lost 

% of 
Cumulative 
days lost 

Q1 
Number 
of FTE 
days 
lost 

Q2 
Number 
of FTE 

days lost 

Q3 
Number 
of FTE 
days 
lost 

Total 
Number 
of FTE  
Days 
Lost 

% of 
Cumulative 
days lost 

Bereavement Related 88.36 211.24 265.89 565.49 12.63% 330.30 169.99 284.95 785.24 4.39% 

Cancer 95.84 85.62 146.11 327.57 7.31% 146.59 154.26 151.25 452.09 2.53% 

Chest & Respiratory 57.66 63.26 115.69 236.60 5.28% 240.50 80.87 549.76 871.14 4.88% 

Coronavirus COVID - 19 99.61 6.05 56.64 162.31 3.62% 263.82 94.86 597.72 956.40 5.35% 

Eye/Ear/Throat/Nose/Mouth/Dental 76.73 11.14 67.75 155.62 3.47% 383.67 184.50 385.72 953.89 5.34% 

Genitourinary / Gynaecological  0.00 0.95 4.09 5.03 0.11% 87.70 12.66 4.22 104.59 0.59% 

Heart / Blood Pressure / Circulation 21.69 31.42 24.27 77.38 1.73% 264.66 99.32 146.68 510.65 2.86% 

Infections 97.34 86.86 299.25 483.44 10.80% 616.73 349.74 1631.56 2598.04 14.54% 

MSD including Back & Neck 245.74 210.60 174.44 630.77 14.09% 1031.54 716.42 1098.13 2846.09 15.93% 

Neurological 60.81 80.66 69.06 210.53 4.70% 382.61 239.09 350.58 972.28 5.44% 

Other / Medical Certificate 116.70 68.50 8.16 193.36 4.32% 6.35 24.76 113.32 144.43 0.81% 

Pregnancy related 23.92 18.54 16.01 58.47 1.31% 53.57 74.78 239.39 367.74 2.06% 

Stomach / Liver / Kidney / Digestion 42.23 38.78 120.99 202.00 4.51% 745.68 469.36 774.48 1989.51 11.13% 

Other Mental illness  0.00 14.00 20.00 34.00 0.76% 59.80 5.27 12.91 77.97 0.44% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression not work related 374.88 209.04 270.04 853.96 19.07% 1435.30 730.89 1516.41 3682.60 20.61% 

Stress/Anxiety/Depression work related 21.00 101.00 159.65 281.65 6.29% 140.58 209.18 206.41 556.17 3.11% 

Tests / Treatment / Operation  0.00 0.00  0.00  0.00 0.00% 0.00   0.00 0.00  0.00 0.00% 

TOTALS 1422.50 1237.64 1818.04 4478.19   6189.40 3615.96 8063.49 17868.84   

 

 
 

 

79% 74%

21%
26%

21-22 22-23

Education Sickness Absence at Q3 -
Long Term / Short Term

STS

LTS 71%
62%

29%
38%

21-22 22-23

Schools Sickness Absence at Q3 -
Long Term / Short Term

STS

LTS

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Gwasanaeth Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid a Chynllun Gweithredol
	4a. Appendix A - BYJS Plan 2023-204

	6 Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith
	6a. Appendix A - Draft Outline FWP - SOSC 1
	6b. Appendix B  - Action Sheet SOSC 1 - 2023-24
	6c. Appendix C - EFS Directorate Dashboard Q3 2022-2023


